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NEER
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10/F, Tower 1

Jing An Kerry Centre

1515 West Nanjing Road
Shanghai

PRC

Corporate Information
NAER

REEES

ABRMEE (TE)
BEUT 2L
BBt

REARXR

B—lg
TR L (ACG, HKACG)

M

KB R A B ISFT
(P E B AR
AR Tl s B REFZ208T)
B
Bl E0m
REBEITIHR
Kb — 2718

SRR

EEEREE

[E & R AR =TS P

B b 5T 58 7 122 B S A PTG
)

IR

BT B8R

LR E 3401

BETEERE

Jb R TR R R AN T AT
A

finbic

R 1515%
HEmEH 0
11018

Annual Report 2023 FE &

3



Corporate Information
NAER

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
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Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
(Fengxian Sub-Branch)

No. 7557 Nanfeng Road

Fengxian District

Shanghai, PRC

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

| am pleased to present our annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Qur revenue increased to RMB4,190.7 million in the full year of
2023 from RMB2,675.3 million in the full year of 2022. Our gross
profit increased to RMB3,019.5 million in the full year of 2023 from
RMB1,699.6 million in the full year of 2022. Our profit for the full year
of 2023 was RMB461.7 million whereas our profit for the full year of
2022 was RMB137.1 million.

Final Dividend of RMBO0.75 per share was proposed by the Board for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 of RMBO0.25 per share was approved by
the shareholders at shareholder’s meeting general meeting held on
15 June 2023. The interim dividends for the six months ended 30
June 2023 of RMBO0.2 per share was approved by the shareholders at
shareholder’s general meeting held on 16 October 2023.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Business Review

We are a multi-brand cosmetics company, focusing on research and
development, manufacturing and sales of skincare and maternity and
childcare products. We focus on the implementation of multi-brand
strategy and have remained dedicated to it since our establishment.
With an operational history of more than 20 years, today we are
one of the front runners in China’s cosmetics industry, possessing
comprehensive multi-brand development and operational capability
and expertise, and we have successfully built a variety of popular
cosmetic brands. Our decisive strategy originally to embark on and
persist with a multi-brand strategy gives us an advantage to timely
grasp market opportunities and sets us apart from our peers.

Brands and Products

We have successfully launched a couple of cosmetics brands in the
PRC to cater to various groups of consumers with different needs.
Our results mainly come from three major brands, namely KANS, One
Leaf and Baby Elephant, whereas other brands such as newpage and
ARMIYO have gradually become the second curve for the Company’s
business growth.
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KANS

Launched in 2003, KANS, being positioned as a “scientific anti-
aging” skincare brand, focuses on addressing the evolving anti-
aging needs of Asian females of various age groups, with a broad
target customer base, and is positioned to be a go-to brand in the
anti-aging skincare market. For more than 20 years, KANS has been
deeply engaging in anti-aging research, and continues to launch better
products and aims to empower youth with confidence.

We achieved substantial growth in sales of the KANS brand through
a series of plans such as focusing on the KANS brand, the KANS
Red, the KANS Red gift boxes and the Douyin channels. Our layout
in Douyin has been a huge success. For the twelve months ended 31
December 2023, the gross merchandise volume (the “GMV”) of KANS
through Douyin platform reached approximately RMB3,340 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 374.4% as
compared to that for the same period in 2022.

In 2023, we comprehensively upgraded the KANS brand, and
improved upgrading the brand’s visual system to make it more
youthful, thereby enhancing the recollection and presence of its image
as a quality China-made product.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERE

KANS intensively collaborated with experts with tens of millions of
fans to create a number of short plays, with the number of views of a
number of short plays exceeding one billion. Leveraging social media
platforms, we launched special projects on the occasion of the 20th
anniversary of the KANS brand as well as on International Women’s
Day, Mother’s Day, Double Seventh Day, Christmas and other holidays
to promote our brands and products so as to attract consumers. In
addition, the Copper Peptide Firming & Repairing Serum and Copper
Peptide Firming Essence Cream under KANS were promoted and
advertised widely to more than one hundred million viewers through
the video shows, including the “Great Chinese Ingredients Season 3*
(T TEAFBIK D) and “All Girls Streamer* (FTE L ER EE)".

In 2023, KANS established its first Scientific Anti-Aging* (EI&#
%) brand experience centre at Shanghai Honggiao Airport to attract
consumers and enhance consumers experience.

In 20283, KANS proposed and China Food and Drug Corporation
Quality and Safety Promotion Association formulated and released the
group standard of first Group Standard for Cosmetic Raw Materials —
Synthetic Peptides* ({t A REIE B Z IAEEIRA) in the PRC (the
“Group Standard”). The Group Standard provides clear direction and
guidance for domestic cosmetics companies from several perspective
such as research and development on peptide raw materials,
cosmetics production and efficacy evaluation, etc., and to further
standardize the development of Synthetic Peptides in China.
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A major hit product of KANS was the Polypeptide Collagen Softening
Set (AL JZ122), ranking first in a number of Douyin rankings. The
KANS brand achieved outstanding results in the Douyin e-commerce
rankings, securing the top in the annual cosmetics brands ranking
and in the popular/domestic skincare brands ranking in 2023,
according to the official information of Douyin. In addition to the series
of Polypeptide Collagen Softening (AL }Z £ 75l|), we successively
released new series of Neige Blanc Skin-Whitening (H %2 £7%1]) with
whitening effects to improve dullness and increase brighten skin, and
new series of Soothing Firming (85 & % %%]) with soothing and firming
effects to improve sensitive skin.

In 2023, KANS won the “Annual Super Brand in Beauty Industry* (4
JEEAMITEBR M) issued in Ocean Engine Beauty Industry Annual
Gala (E25|ZEMITEFERKM) and the series of Polypeptide
Collagen Softening won the “Annual Celebrity Skin Care Gift Box in
Beauty Industry* (FEEMITEPEEERES)” awards. In addition,
KANS was listed as the “2023 Super Growth Brand* (202384 1% & &
%42 %8)” and the “Cream/lotion Category of 2023 Excellent Domestic
Cosmetics Brands (cream/lotion products)* (2023 &1t itk mmE8 (M|
FIR)EFRIEETE IR MIEEE)" issued by Global Cosmetics
Fair ({b#Z@¥®FE). In addition, in the 2023 New Domestic Brand
Development Conference held by Xinhuanet and Boao Forum For
Entrepreneurs, KANS won the “Outstanding Case of New Domestic
Brand Innovation for the year of 2023* (2023 E ¥ EH & R4 &I FEFH

ESNS

We strive to consolidate the market position of KANS as a leading
Chinese domestic scientific anti-aging brand to seize the market
potential of anti-aging skincare products in the PRC. We are devoted
to develop more advanced technologies, in order to meet the
increasing needs of the consumers of KANS.

The revenue generated from KANS in 2023 was RMB3,090.4 million,
representing an increase of 143.8% as compared to 2022 and
accounting for 73.7% of our total revenue for the year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERE

One Leaf —EF

One Leaf was launched in 2014. Targeting younger women aged from —HFR2014FH L - T EHE18EISHAK
18 to 35, One Leaf blends ingredients from nature using advanced FE Y o —EFRBEERMREERAKD
techniques, creating effective and natural skincare products. BIRIE M RARIESE @ ©

In 2023, One Leaf released its “White Paper on Clean Beauty Industry* H2023%F - —HEFEAAHFEM - TMICKIEH
(HFE=RITEAKE) in collaboration with Tmall Beauty, TMIC mBIFRLRIE  BHBEAENGEFERTT
Tmall Innovation Center (TMICKFH¥@AIFT# 1) and Kantar, the XEARE) MiTES4E  HEANMFEATS
first paper issued in the PRC regarding the development of Chinese WSS REBERIFSETRZIR - 8
style beauty and comprehensive insight including market trend and FRRAFETEE o

consumer preferences in the domestic beauty market from an industry

perspective.

One leaf SRS
—ot ¥ ous

REPAIR & EMBELLISH MOISTURIZING MASK
One leaf iPBRAKDE

5%B5 One leaf

gL

(" REPAIR&EMBELLISH
oo

BIP+HER
48%" S | S ERRBS | SRIRRE

Bal: 25miSH
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In 2023, One Leaf won numerous awards, including: the “2022 —
ESG Brand of YOUNG 100 Influential Brands* (YOUNG1004F E &£
T 5 2022-ESGA%)” issued by YOUNG 100 and the “Sustainable
Practitioner® (AJ#5#EE1T48)” award issued by Jumeili (B2EE), in
the 2023 New Domestic Brand Development Conference held by
Xinhuanet and Boao Forum For Entrepreneurs, One Leaf won the
“Outstanding Case of New Domestic Brand Innovation in 2023* (2023
FEFEEREAFESEN)", and listed as the “2023 Excellent
Cases of ESG Environmental Protection in the Flavors, Fragrances
and Cosmetics Industry* (2023 F EEH I ERBLALmITEESGIRIFIR &
BFZ%M)” by China Association of Fragrance Flavour and Cosmetic
Industries (PR BRI EFBLARTERHE). In addition, One Leaf's
Repairing Moisturizing Face Mask has also won the “InnoCosme
Formulation Award* (InnoCosme 20233 #2H0 5 4%)" an authoritative
beauty industry research and development award issued by
InnoCosme.

The revenue generated from One Leaf in 2023 was RMB356.5 million,
representing a decrease of 32.7% as compared to 2022, accounting
for 8.5% of the total revenue for the year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Baby Elephant

We launched Baby Elephant in 2015. With “simple ingredients, safe
and effective” as its core, it is positioned as a professional maternity
and childcare brand for Chinese babies and children to accompany
each baby during its happy and healthy growth.

In 2023, we embarked on a new exploration and transformation of
Baby Elephant, with focus on the market of middle and senior school-
age children as the core strategy. Focusing on this strategy, at the
brand level, the visual system underwent a brand-new upgrade
and a brand Logo with an independent baby elephant image was
launched, presenting a brand red that symbolizes sincerity, bravery
and enthusiasm, implying that Baby Elephant has grown up. At the
product level, more new products were rolled out to meet the needs
of the school-age children market. Baby Elephant launched brand new
“Primary School Series” products, including primary school cream,
primary school lotion and primary school cleansing foam, with the aim
of providing a one-stop solution to cater to the personalized skin care
needs of primary school students. In addition, at the end of 2023,
Baby Elephant launched the “Universe Fun” kids’ makeup gift box,
which was well received by the market.

it 1

- [RWYY
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In 2023, we have established the Baby Elephant Special Fund (4L
B/ HIEHES), which created a heart-warming brand image and
contributed to winning of the “2023 Tmall Baby Awards —Maternal and
Child Charity Leader award* (20234 K& 81 — FBRNRERAE
H)".

In 2023, 90 Ultra Protection (Ultra Protection Cream) (90 Z /75 (87 %2
£ 55)) of Baby Elephant was awarded with the “2023 MEIYI Awards
— Annual favourite TOP list award for pregnancy, infant, and child
skincare products* (2023EFAREFERETOPHE — 2EEFEE K
#2)” and “Fashion.sohu.com 2022/2023 Trust in your Beauty — Annual
Trustworthy Infant Care* (3185 152022-2023 F [Z BESE B LAk miE
B - FEESEEEHREE) Kids Cleansing Foam (R & ERE HEZ
H8%) won the “New Cosme Awards — Super Single Product* (2022-
2023 F EHAANE — A KEFR)". In addition, Baby Elephant was
also the silver winner for the “2023 Muse Design Awards* (20234 2
HsR 5T 884R #%)”, and listed as the “2023 Excellent Brands in Domestic
Cosmetics Category* (2023 Bl &btk iEE TS R IE5E)" issued by
Global Cosmetics Fair ({b#Z R FE D).

We seek to maintain the leading position of Baby Elephant in the
maternity and childcare segment in China. We intend to continue
to offer skincare products suitable for the skin type of Chinese
babies and children to adapt to the rising demand for high-quality
maternity and childcare products. We aim to conduct R&D activities
for additives-free, safe, organic, and simple products. We will devote
resources to the standardization and advancement of the maternity
and childcare industry.

The revenue generated from Baby Elephant in 2023 was RMB375.7
million, representing a decrease of 42.6% as compared to 2022,
accounting for 9.0% of the total revenue for the year.

In 2023, we primarily generated revenue from these three brands with
the amount of RMB3,822.6 million, representing a increase of 55.9%
as compared to 2022, which in aggregate contributed 91.2% of our
total revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERE

newpage

newpage was launched in May 2022. It is positioned as a functional
skincare brand focusing on sensitive skins of babies and children. It
was co-founded by Ms. Zhang Ziyi (2-F18), a famous actress, Mr. Cui
Yutao (B EJF), a puericulturist and Dr. Hiroshi Huang Oh (ER), the
current global chief scientist of the Group. This brand was established
based on the concept of “medical and research co-creation*” (Z&fiff £
£l) and aimed to build a comprehensive system taking into account
customer experience, pediatric expertise, and scientific research.
newpage has laid out three main directions: skincare, bathing, and
cleansing.

For online channels, newpage products have been distributed on
Tmall, JD, and Douyin. newpage’s Baby Balancing Cream and Baby
Moisturizing Body Lotion ranked no.1 on several Douyin rankings in
2023. newpage has offline presence in Watsons, maternal and child
stores and postpartum care centres.

In 20283, newpage established its first brand offline experience centre
in Mr. Cui Yutao’s Clinic in Beijing Taiyang Palace, which is the first
domestic brand to launch an experience centre in a clinic, aiming
to provide consumers with professional and scientific products and
service.

Further, in 2023, we introduced the Baby Soothing Essence, that
contains natural organic Bisabolol, natural Dipotassium Glycyrrhizinate,
and the strong barrier exclusive ingredient Omega-Pro which can
strengthen skin barrier and improve fragile and sensitive skin.

In 2023, newpage won the “Double 11 Emerging Brand Award* (11
Hid MR %) issued by Tmall, which is the only brand in the maternal
and infant care industry to be listed.

The revenue generated from newpage in 2023 was RMB152.5 million,

representing an increase of 498.0% as compared to 2022, accounting
for 3.6% of the total revenue for the year.
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Other Brands

To address the increased demands for high-quality functional
products from consumers, we launched brands such as ARMIYO,
asnami, KYOCA and 2032, focusing on sensitive skincare, middle to
high-end maternity skincare and washing care products. In addition,
we are preparing to launch brand 632, a middle to high-end washing
care brand, and brand TAZU, a high-end anti-aging skincare brand
developed in cooperation with scientist, Kosaku Yamada.

In 20283, our products were mainly focused on the mass market. We
currently manufacture and offer skin care products, maternity and
childcare products and toiletries products, with some other categories
as a supplement:

skin care

Eiali7S

TAZU®

mid-to-high

o 2L A

— ~
=Y AIMIYO asnami

KANS &R

ONE LEAF —MHF

Research and Development

We started our independent R&D activities in 2003 and have insisted
on product self-development. Our dual R&D centers are dedicated
to building power platforms for advanced fundamental research and
product development work. Staying close to consumers’ needs, we
focus on product development and new technology applications in
response to the changing market. We strive to attract and cultivate
talents and have formed a strong team with rich R&D experience.
We maintained high and effective R&D investment persistently. In
2023 and 2022, we incurred R&D expenses of RMB125.8 million and
RMB110.3 million, respectively, accounting for 3.0% and 4.1% of our
revenue, respectively.

maternity and childcare

NEW PAQE

* Baby Elephant
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In 2023, we worked with relevant industry departments and
associations to formulate and release multiple industry group
standards, including China’s first industry group standard for synthetic
peptides, a raw material used in cosmetics — Synthetic Peptide
as Raw Material in Cosmetics* ({bits A REA K %K), General
Principles for Pure Cosmetics* (4E)¥{tAzami@Al), Group Standard for
Cosmetics with Raw Material — Olea Europaea Leaf Extract* ({tksh
DA R - hh B S B AL E ) (B B2 12 %), Quality Requirements and Efficacy
Evaluation Methods of Recombinant Collagen Raw Materials* (EZ4H
BREAQRMESERKEINMEE %) and Evaluation of the Efficacy
of Cosmetic Products with Skin Microecological Adjustment* (5
B e RE AR AN b AR AT AET(E), reflecting our R&D strength. One
Leaf proposed and Shanghai Daily Chemical Industry Association
formulated and released the group standard of General Principles of
Clean Cosmetics* (40)F{tszm#Al), which has clarified the definition
of clean cosmetics and quantified the standards for clean beauty in
terms of materials used, formula design and product safety, and the
group standard of Cosmetic Ingredients — Olea Europaea (Olive) Leaf
Extract* ({bAkmn AIRE - AEEEREYEFEIZ®E)” which is the first
group standard in relation to the live leaf extract in the PRC making
the application of olive leaf extract standardized and accelerating
development of the industries of olive leaf extract.

Ingredients

In 20283, we introduced a new cyclic peptide and upgrade the ordinary
linear peptide to a three-dimensional cyclic peptide, which has the
advantages of stronger absorption, longer effective time, stronger
physiological activity, etc.

Patents
In 2023, we newly applied for 58 patents, including 35 invention
patents. We have been granted 18 patents, 3 of which are invention
patents.
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Awards

Our self-developed core ingredient, Tiracle Pro was awarded with
the InnoCosme Ingredient Awards and is currently utilised in various
products, including the series of Copper Peptide Firming Essence. In
2023, the Group’s fundamental research result “Artemisia Annua Oil
AN+* (FEHAN+)” won the “Ringier Technology Innovation Award
(Award categories: Functional Ingredients)* (58#&£:1lr 1% 88 (Thais
FERHER))” and the “Amazing Chinese Ingredients “Top 10 Chinese
Innovative Ingredients” Award* (7 ~RAIF IR S (R BIBIET R A Top
10)#¥)" issued by Chunlei Agency (F&E L), a cosmetic news media in
the PRC. In addition, in 2023, the Group has won the “Annual Beauty
Product Innovation Achiever Award* (FJE xR s 8l ¥k 5t & 28)”
issued by 2023 WWD HONORS, the “National Business Science and
Technology Innovation Enterprise Award* (ZBREERRAIFA D%
#%)” issued by the China Cosmetics Technology Conference.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2023, we had 1,883 full-time employees, amongst
which 1,796 full-time employees were based in the PRC and 87 full-
time employees were based in overseas. The total remuneration
cost for the year of 2023 was RMB494.6 million, as compared to
RMB473.6 million for the year of 2022, maintaining a reasonable
increase in remuneration to ensure the Group’s strong competitive

advantage in the human resources market.

We recruit our employees through on-campus recruitment, job fairs,
recruitment agencies and internal and external referrals. Committed to
providing fair and equal opportunities in all our employment practices,
we have adopted policies and procedures including candidate
competency analysis models designed by third parties to ensure a fair
selection and hiring process. As part of our retention strategy, we offer
our employees competitive salaries, additional insurance packages
and merit-based incentive schemes which are generally based on
performance of the individual employees and the overall performance
of our business.
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We provide new hire training to new joiners on our culture, business
and industry improving their understanding of the Company and
their abilities to perform their duties. We also regularly provide tailor-
made in-house training sessions to our employees that aim to
improve their technical skills or arrange for our employees to attend
training sessions provided by third parties. In addition, we provide
management skills training opportunities to certain employees to help
them transition into a management role.

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditure of RMB88.4 million in 2023 was
mainly related to the new items of property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB87.8 million, and other intangible assets amounting
to RMBO0.6 million.

Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liability

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 — Lease (HKFRS 16)
came into effect on 1 January 2019. At the commencement date, the
Group should recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The
related right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are located in the PRC
and overseas. As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s right-of-use
assets were RMB131.2 million (RMB144.5 million as of 31 December
2022) and its lease liabilities were RMB65.6 million (RMB77.8 million
as of 31 December 2022). In 2023, depreciation charges of right-
of-use assets amounted to RMB29.3 million and interest charges of
lease liabilities amounted to RMB4.0 million.

OUTLOOK

We are committed to our “six-six” strategy to promote overall business
growth through six main competitive aspects and the planning of six
major sectors in order to support sustainable development of the
Group.
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Six main competitive aspects:

Maintain organization-driven leadership and support sustainable
development of the Group with talents

We believe that talents with excellent management or technical
skills are our valuable assets as well as the impetus of providing
customers with products of continuous innovation and high
quality, and is the necessary condition for the achievement of
a multi-brand cosmetics group. Implementing our corporate
values of “Diversity, Optimism, Innovation and Legacy”, we plan
to continuously improve our corporate structure and corporate
culture to attract talents.

We will continue to focus on improving our recruitment
and training system to recruit talents with an international
perspective, such as graduates from prestigious schools such
as the world’s first-class universities and disciplines and the
QS200. By establishing joint training projects in cooperation with
universities, we can more effectively identify suitable talents. In
order to remain competitive in the recruitment market, we strive
to provide industry-leading salary and welfare systems and open
up promotion channels, forming a scientific talent selection
and incentive mechanism. In addition, we will implement job
rotation and duty rotation for our employees to promote the all-
rounder employee model, and prevent solidification of hierarchy.
By leveraging a flat and effective management system, we
encourage employees at the primary level to give play to
their creativity, and maintain the enthusiasm and stability of
management and technical staff. We aim to build up corporate
culture and team atmosphere among employees to enhance
their sense of belonging, and a talent training system for our
employees to achieve their personal growth and to support the
operation and development of multiple brands of the Group.
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20

Maintain R&D leadership, continue to invest in R&D to drive
product innovations and make popular products enjoyed by our
consumers

Leveraging our advanced R&D and production capabilities in the
PRC and overseas, we will increase investments in fundamental
research projects on trendy core ingredients in the skincare
area such as anti-aging technology and skin barrier repairing
technology, including development on new raw materials, new
technologies, and new formulas; and applied science projects
including application of the raw materials and formulas, and
improving the overall skin feel of consumers. We have now
established an independent scientific research system of
Chicmax, with the aim of breaking down international scientific
research barriers. We will continue to conduct pilot projects for
new brands and new products to improve consumer experience
and meet diverse consumer demands, and ultimately create
more growth opportunities.

Artificial intelligence (Al) leadership and introduce Al empowered
management tools to improve the Group’s management and
operation efficiency

We plan to introduce leading Al empowered tools which will
be used to intelligently process large amounts of data and
information to conduct intelligent data analysis and prediction,
providing data and insights to support decision-making, further
optimizing the allocation and utilization of resources, and thus
improving the Group’s management and operation efficiency,
innovation capabilities and competitiveness.
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Maintain marketing leadership and continue to enhance and
expand products marketing networks to penetrate users and
build a consumer-centric mindset

We will make full use of our advantageous resources and adopt
stronger and more effective competitive strategies and marketing
tools to increase the breadth and depth of our sales channels
and in particular, to further deepen the marketing and promotion
of our online e-commerce platforms and the offline omnichannel
strategy. In addition to continuing to maintain and enhance
KANS'’s leading position in the Douyin channel and driving more
of the Group’s brands to achieve breakthroughs in Douyin, we
aim to achieve better development on platforms such as Tmall/
Taobao, JD and Kuaishou.

Maintain intelligent production leadership and accelerate the
Group’s intelligent production to enhance the production
efficiency and standardized product quality

We will continue to design and establish the direction and plan
of the Group’s intelligent transformation in conjunction with our
practical production and operation, comprehensively applying
the artificial intelligence and other technologies to build and
refine intelligent production lines to increase the production
efficiency and improve standardized product quality of the
Group.

Promote the Group’s strategies from “personalization”
development to “generality” development and drive development
with platforms to further expand our business

We aim to achieve development of our business by diversified
cooperation with our talents and business partners. We are
committed to gathering talents and providing them with a broad
platform to assist them in achieving their development. We will
continue to strengthen cooperation with multiple partners to
build a brand incubation platform and to continuously cultivate
breakthroughs in various aspects of our business.

4.
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Planning of six major sectors:

Based on our existing multi-brand matrix, we will have a broader
strategic layout in the next decade in building six major sectors
of mass skin care, washing and personal care, maternal and
baby products, skin medical beauty, makeup, high-end skin care
and instrument, hence expanding our business boundaries in the
cosmetics industry.

Looking forward, we are committed to conveying Chinese branding
power to the world and promoting the brand image of Chinese
domestic cosmetics products. Through developing our international
R&D capabilities, business presence and brand awareness, we aim to
become a world-class cosmetics group.

Best regards,

Lyu Yixiong

Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EEEREmBROERAR

Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd.

Shanghai, the PRC

21 March 2024
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Our revenue increased to RMB4,190.7 million in the full year of
2023 from RMB2,675.3 million in the full year of 2022. Our gross
profit increased to RMB3,019.5 million in the full year of 2023 from
RMB1,699.6 million in the full year of 2022. Our profit for the full year
of 2023 was RMB461.7 million whereas our profit for the full year of
2022 was RMB137.1 million.

Final Dividend of RMBO0.75 per share was proposed by the Board for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 of RMBO0.25 per share was approved by
the shareholders at shareholder’s meeting general meeting held on
15 June 2023. The interim dividends for the six months ended 30
June 2023 of RMBO0.2 per share was approved by the shareholders at
shareholder ‘ s general meeting held on 16 October 2023.

Financial Summary

i A

HPIRUWAB2022F 2 FHARK2,675.38E
TCHEINZE2023F 2 FMARKE41900.7HETT °
BN EFNHE2022F2FHARKE1,609.662
JTCIEMNZE20283F 2 FMARMES 019.56HETT ©
BF2023F 2 FFHAARKI61.7TEHEETL - M
2022 F = FFHABAREIZTAETET

EEeRERNEE2023F12A31 B IEFEN
REAMR B FIRARKE0.757T - HE2022%12 A
S1HLEFERNRAKRBESRARKC.25TEER
RA2023F6 15 HEITHR R ARG LHE - &
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FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 20234
BRFE BMERFE MRFE BRFE BIREE
(Except per share data) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(SR EUERRIM) ARBF T AREFT AREFRT ARETI ARETT
Revenue WA 2,874,321 3,381,633 3,618,882 2,675,331 4,190,727
Cost of sales SHERA 1,124,948 1,195,042 1,258,243 975,699 1,171,275
Gross profit E7 1,749,373 2,186,591 2,360,639 1,699,632 3,019,452
Profit before tax BRI E N bE 52,921 279,626 408,124 154,232 559,213
Profit for the year REFREF 59,398 203,182 338,771 137,080 461,663
Dividends A&l - - 200,000 99,489 298,468
79,5920
Earning Per Share (EPS) BRAF 0.17 0.57 0.94 0.41 1.16
Dividend Per Share (DPS) & B% A% - - 0.56 0.25 0.75M
0.20@
Total assets BEE 2,323,838 2,224,288 2,274,563 3,145,667 3,128,827
Total liabilities BEE 2,517,505 1,639,898 1,319,525 1,439,022 1,099,600
Net asset value BESE (193,667) 584,390 955,038 1,706,645 2,029,227
Return on Equity (ROE) s ElRE NA 34.8% 44.0% 10.3% 24.7%
A
Return on Total Assets (ROA) 447 B3R X 2.6% 8.9% 15.1% 5.1% 14.7%
Notes: st

(1) Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023

2) Interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2023

1) EZE20234%12 A31 B I FE & RS

2 HZE2023F6 A30H 1L/ E A B HIR S

Annual Report 2023 £E#R%E | 23



Management Discussion and Analysis

SEEI =R i)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

We generated revenue primarily from the manufacture and sale of
cosmetic products. Revenue of the Group in 2023 increased by
56.6% to RMB4,190.7 million compared to RMB2,675.3 million in
2022 owing to the increased revenue generated from KANS, one of
the Group’s major brands.

Revenue by brands

g JEIN L

PN

BRPMWAEERBE A RERERIBE - BRAR
SEFXERB —H#REENBALN A&
E R WA B2022F M ARKE2,675.38 BT
56.6% Z2023F M ARKE4,190.7EE T

B &) 7 BT A

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
% of % of
Revenue Revenue
Amount Amount Amount Amount
X WAELEE(%) TE HABE(%)

(RMB in millions, except percentages)

(AR BET  BDHEIN)

KANS BER 3,090.4 73.7 1,267.4 47.4
One Leaf —E7 356.5 8.5 529.9 19.8
Baby Elephant AT/ 5% 375.7 9.0 655.1 24.5
Others Brands™®© H b 5 g D) 368.1 8.8 222.9 8.3
Total et 4,190.7 100.0 2,675.3 100.0

Note: Other brands primarily consist of newpage, ARMIYO, asnami, KYOCA etc.

The Group’s revenue attributable to KANS increased by 143.8% from
RMB1,267.4 million in 2022 to RMB3,090.4 million in 2023, primarily
due to the overall upgrading of the KANS brand, and the increased
revenue from our self-operated sale of the series of Polypeptide
Collagen Softening on e-commerce platforms such as Douyin.

The Group’s revenue attributable to One Leaf decreased by 32.7%
from RMB529.9 million in 2022 to RMB356.5 million in 2023, primarily
because we are in the process of transforming, upgrading and
adjusting One Leaf.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s revenue attributable to Baby Elephant decreased by
42.6% from RMB655.1 million in 2022 to RMB375.7 million in 2023,
primarily due to the intense competitive environment of the market.

Revenue by sales channels

IR E RS wm M AT

A REMAEENRABR2022FHAR
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Year ended 31 December
BHZE12A31BLEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
% of % of
Revenue Revenue
Amount Amount Amount Amount
2 WBAELEE(%) 8 WAGE(%)

(RMB in millions, except percentages)

(ANEEBET  BOHEIN)

Online Channels B ERE 3,586.9 85.6 2,004.8 74.9
Online direct sales =R 2,909.0 69.4 1,059.9 39.6
Sales to Online Retailers BETER 364.8 8.7 474.8 17.7
Sales to Online Distributors R ED R 313.1 7.5 470.1 17.6
Offline Channels BTRE 539.6 12.9 614.9 23.0
Sales to Offline Retailers HBTIEER 387.4 9.2 330.7 12.4
Sales to Offline Distributors BT 152.2 3.6 284.2 10.6
Others Hith 64.2 1.5 55.6 2.1
Total st 4,190.7 100.0 2,675.3 100.0

The Group’s revenue attributable to online direct sales increased
by 174.5% from RMB1,059.9 million in 2022 to RMB2,909.0 million
in 2023 primarily due to the increase in revenue generated from
e-commerce platforms such as Douyin.

The Group’s revenue attributable to sales to online retailers decreased
by 283.2% from RMB474.8 million in 2022 to RMB364.8 million in
2023, primarily due to the decrease in revenue generated by One
Leaf and Baby Elephant from online retailers such as JD, Tmall
Supermarket.

BrAEHEREAEENRAR2022FHAR
#1,059.9 B BT IN174.5% F2023F AR
2,909.0B&8TT ' TEZERHRAESSTEHTAT
REGULAIE AN o

B ETERMHERMAEENAR2022F M A
R¥474 8B BRI 23.2%E2023F W AR
364.8BETT FERENR—EF AB/) KK
R~ AT E R ETEEH RO D -
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The Group’s revenue attributable to sales to online distributors
decreased by 33.4% from RMB470.1 million in 2022 to RMB313.1
million in 2023, primarily due to adjustments of our online sales
strategies to enhance our online direct sales channel.

The Group’s revenue attributable to sales to offline retailers increased
by 17.1% from RMB330.7 million in 2022 to RMB387.4 million in
2023, primarily due to the offline retailers’ gradual recovery from the
impact of economic environment.

The Group’s revenue attributable to sales to offline distributors
decreased by 46.4% from RMB284.2 million in 2022 to RMB152.2
million in 2023, primarily due to changes in consumer habits and
purchase channels.

Revenue by categories

FED R HE GRS EARAR2022F /A
REAT0A B E LML 33.4%E 2023 F M AR
313 1HEBL FERHRKMABRRLHEER
BELAMNSE K PIMAR A& HERE -

BTIEENHERLAEENRAR2022FMH A
R¥330.7BB TEM17.1%E2023F M AR
387 4EEL FEESHNKRTTEMELER
BR R ERELMIE o

BTOHEMEEREAEENIABR2022F 8 A
R#284. 2B B LR 46.4%E2023F W AR
152 2B BT FZERHRNEBEEEBNEER
BEACFTE -

BEFIE 7 HIRA

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224

% of % of
Revenue Revenue
Amount Amount Amount Amount
WAL WAL
X (%) ©F (%)

(RMB in millions, except percentages)

(AREBHET  BAHEI)

Skin Care EE 3,601.6 86.0 1,944.8 72.7
Maternity and childcare (S22 35 542.6 12.9 706.7 26.4
Others HAtb 46.5 1.1 23.8 0.9
Total et 4,190.7 100.0 2,675.3 100.0

The Group’s revenue attributable to skin care increased by 85.2%
from RMB1,944.8 million in 2022 to RMB3,601.6 million in 2023,
primarily due to the increase in revenue generated from KANS.

The Group’s revenue attributable to maternity and childcare decreased
by 23.2% from RMB706.7 million in 2022 to RMB542.6 million in
2023, primarily due to the decrease in revenue generated from Baby
Elephant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by 77.7% from RMB1,699.6 million
in 2022 to RMB3,019.5 million in 2023. Our gross profit margins were
72.1% and 63.5% in 2023 and 2022, respectively, primarily due to the
increase of gross profit margin under KANS.

Other Income and Gains
The Group’s other income and gains increased by 27.4% from
RMB122.8 million in 2022 to RMB156.5 million in 2023, primarily due
to the increase of foreign exchange gain and gains from the changes
in fair values of financial assets.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses as a percentage of
the Group’s revenue increased to 53.5% in 2023 compared with
47.0% in 2022. The selling and distribution expenses increased by
RMB982.6 million to RMB2,240.3 million in 2023 from RMB1,257.7
million in 2022. The marketing and promotion expenses increased
by RMB897.5 million to RMB1,745.9 million in 2023 from RMB848.4
million in 2022, primarily due to increased brand exposure, seizure of
new channel opportunities, increased brand promotion and channel
construction investments. Employee benefits expenses in relation
to distribution work increased by RMB31.8 million to RMB316.4
million in 2023 from RMB284.6 million in 2022. Other key expenses
included transportation expenses of RMB148.5 million, travelling and
entertainment expenses of RMB20.2 million and others of RMB9.3
million in 2023.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 6.2% to
RMB209.6 million in 2023 as compared to RMB223.4 million in
2022. Administrative expenses mainly comprised employee benefits
expenses (including directors’ emoluments) of RMB89.8 million,
profession and consulting fees of RMB16.0 million, depreciation and
amortisation charges of RMB41.8 million and office, utility expense of
RMB46.4 million and others of RMB15.6 million in 2023.

Research and Development Costs

The Group’s R&D costs increased by 14.1% from RMB110.3 million
in 2022 to RMB125.8 million in 2023, primarily due to the increase in
R&D activities.

IR E RS wm M AT
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Impairment Losses on Financial Assets, net

The Group’s impairment losses on financial assets, net changed
from RMB12.1 million loss in 2022 to the reversal of RMB15.3 million
in 2023, primarily due to the decrease in provision for bad debts in
respect of trade receivables.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 21.0% from RMB43.0
million in 2022 to RMB34.0 million in 2023, primarily due to decreases
of inventory impairment and scrap and no foreign exchange loss in
2023.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 21.0% from RMB20.5 million
in 2022 to RMB16.2 million in 20283, primarily due to the decrease of
bank and other borrowings and the decrease in average interest rate

on borrowings.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense costs increased to RMB97.6 million in 2023 from
RMB17.2 million in 2022. The effective tax rates of the Group in 2023
and in 2022 were 17.4% and 11.1% respectively.

Profit for the Year
In summary, our profit for the year was RMB461.7 million and
RMB137.1 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash generated from operating activities of the Group in 2023 was
approximately RMB746.2 million, compared with RMB36.6 million
which were generated in 2022. As of 31 December 2023, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB697.7 million
and external bank borrowings of approximately RMB100.0 million;
whereas as at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB1,147.7 million and external bank
borrowings of approximately RMB650.4 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of gearing, the Group’s debt to asset ratios (defined as total
liabilities divided by total assets) in 2023 and in 2022 were 35.1%
and 45.7%, respectively. The current ratios of the Group (defined as
current assets divided by current liabilities) as at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 were 2.0 times and 1.7 times respectively.
The Group’s gearing ratios (defined as total interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity)
in 2023 and in 2022 were 8.2% and 42.7%, respectively. As at 31
December 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities,
other than those disclosed in its consolidated financial statements
and the notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand, the
Group’s liquidity position remains strong to meet its working capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings were RMB100.0 million, which comprised of bank loans
(current) of RMB100.0 million at effective interest rates of 2.50% to
3.55% per annum, of which RMB40.0 million is secured. The Group’s
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings decreased by 84.6% to
RMB100.0 million as at 31 December 2023 from RMB650.4 million
as at 31 December 2022, primarily due to the Group’s abundant
working capital and proactive reduction in the interest-bearing bank

borrowings.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s secured short-term and long-
term bank borrowings were secured by (i) buildings and right-of-
use assets related to leasehold land, with carrying amounts of nil
(RMB327.4 million as at 31 December 2022); and (i) investment
properties with a net carrying amounts values of approximately
RMB8.1 million (RMB9.3 million as at 31 December 2022).

As at 31 December 2023, the amount of the Group’s letter of credit
guarantee deposits and bank guarantee deposits was nil (RMB11.5
million as at 31 December 2022).
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Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

Hongyi Zhiyuan Equity Investment Management (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (*Hongyi Zhiyuan”), the Company and Huzhou Wuxing Jingkai
Bogu Equity Investment Co., Ltd. (“Jingkai Bogu”) entered into the
Partnership Agreement in relation to the formation of the Partnership
Fund (the “Partnership Fund”) on 26 October 2023. The name of
Partnership Fund is Huzhou Hongshang 2023 Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/ML TRHEREHRES
B (ERAE)). The total capital commitments subscribed by
all Partners to the Partnership Fund are RMB276,380,600. The
capital commitments subscribed by Hongyi Zhiyuan, the Company
and Jingkai Bogu are RMB3,482,420, RMB189,984,000 and
RMB82,914,180 respectively. Hongyi Zhiyuan is the general partner
and executive partner of the Partnership Fund while the Company and
Jingkai Bogu are limited partners. The main purpose of the formation
of the Partnership Fund is, to the extent permitted by applicable laws
and regulations and its scope of business, to invest in companies
in the beauty care related industry chain and to realise profits from
such investments. The reason for the Company participating in the
Partnership Fund is to focus on investing in upstream and downstream
enterprises in the beauty industry chain, seizing industry development
opportunities, promoting the Company’s strategic development,
enhancing the Company’s overall competitiveness and thereby
generating higher return to the Shareholders. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 October
2023.

Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the PRC, with most
transactions settled in Renminbi, and the reporting currency of the
Group is Renminbi. The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and
overseas use local currencies as their functional currencies, including
Japanese yen, Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. The Group has a
partial amount of cash and bank deposits denominated in Japanese
yen, Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. The Group continues to adopt a
conservative approach in its foreign exchange exposure management.
In 20283, the Group did not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group reviews its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge against such risks when
necessary.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and

B35

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lyu Yixiong (=), aged 45, is our executive Director and
chairman of the Board. Since our Company (previously known as
Shanghai Kaka Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (F#RR{bE@BERA
founded in June 2004, Mr. Lyu has been its chief executive officer,

7)) was

responsible for overall management of the Group. Mr. Lyu is also one
of the Controlling Shareholders of the Group. Mr. Lyu holds positions
in various subsidiaries of our Group, including:

Position held

AR

Name of subsidiary

(IlEPNCIER

EEREREEEZERE

Senior Management

R

HITES

BEELE 455 WITER EFR-8%
EBEAQA (FBLERFEARBERA T)%
20046 AN AR —EETEEREHTE -
EAEEMNEEEE - E?ﬁi)ﬁ%$%lﬁtqﬂ—
EEBRBRE - atEEAEEZRHBRRER
LATBRAL - BIE

Period of Appointment
ZEHAME

Shanghai Leading Investment Co., Ltd.

FEBRRERRAR EERRAFNITES
Nippon Shuichi Cosmetics Co., Ltd. Representative director
ARF—LimiR gt RERRAFR

Shanghai KPC Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
FERELEYBRERATF FEERKARESR

Mr. Lyu completed the executive management education courses at
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (K;IE2Fx) in the PRC
in November 2018.

Ms. Luo Yan (#3E), aged 36, is our executive Director. Ms. Luo
joined our Group in March 2012, and was once the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group and is currently the vice president of the Group,
responsible for the overall management and marketing of KANS, One
Leaf and Baby Elephant.

Legal representative and Executive director

Legal representative and Chairman of the board

April 2016 — Present
20165F4AES
January 2019 - Present
20191 AES

August 2020 - Present
202058 AE S

B ER2018F 11 AEEF B R IHERMIT
KRERHRERRE °

L 365% WMITEE - BT MN20124F3
Hbu/\zri%l CBEAEEEEELEE BEAR
SEEBY  BEER —EFRAE/)F=H
R BEREIEN B -
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EX EELefREERBCERHS

In addition, Ms. Luo currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Group, primarily including serving as the executive director of
Shanghai Zhongyi Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. (L& BE/{LERAR])
since December 2018, the director of Nippon Shuichi Cosmetics Co.,
Ltd. (BAF—{camik\&4t) since January 2019, the executive
director of Shanghai Kans Cosmetic Sales Service Co., Ltd (/&
BRIAMIEERFERAF) since January 2019, the executive
director of Shanghai One Leaf Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (F/8—EF bk
AR /A R]) since February 2019, the executive director of Shanghai
Baby Elephant Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (H/B &/ RIbmBBERAT)
since March 2019, the executive director of Shanghai Baby Elephant
Cosmetic Sales Service Co., Ltd. (BB @/ N RILMBEERSE
[R 22 \]) since July 2019, the executive director of Shanghai Shumei
Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (E/@RELMMBERAE]) since January 2021,
and the executive director of Shanghai Kans Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
(8RR REYMEE AR A F]) since March 2021,

Ms. Luo obtained a college degree in international trade and
economics from Shanghai Lixin University of Accounting and Finance
(BFS7 85 &R ERR) in the PRC in June 2020.

Mr. Feng Yifeng (5—1#), aged 44, is our executive Director. Mr.
Feng was a senior audit manager of PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP (¥ #5KEFR K E:TAIEFT), the chairman of the supervisory
board of China National Accord Medicines Corporation (%5 E
—HEERMNARAT) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000028)), the head of finance and asset
management of Sinopharm Group Co., Ltd. (BZ&%EREAL () AR A 7))
(a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
1099)), and the independent director of Yaojin (Shanghai) Private
Equity Fund Management Co., Ltd. (B& (L8)REELERER
A} (with the former name of Sinopharma-CICC (Shanghai) Private
Equity Investment management Co., Ltd. (BZh & (i) FLERE
BEERARAT). Mr. Feng joined our Group in July 2016, and is
currently the vice president and the chief financial officer of the Group,
responsible for financial matters.

In addition, Mr. Feng had held or currently holds directorship in
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mainly, Mr. Feng served as the
director of Shanghai Yuzi Technology Co., Ltd. (B8R TREAR
~7\]) from July 2020 to December 2023; had been serving as the
director of Shanghai KPC Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (\F/& & ZA4 yRHL
BBRAR]) since August 2020; and had been serving as the chairman
of Shanghai Yiye Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (B8 BRI AR A F)
since January 2022.
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Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/&8 AZ) in the PRC
in July 2001 and a Master of Business Administration from China
Europe International Business School (FEIEEE TEET) in the
PRC in October 2015. Mr. Feng was accredited as a certified public
accountant (non-practicing) by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (F BIzEft& 51 E11%E) and as a chartered certified
accountant by the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. Song Yang (’¥), aged 34, is our executive Director. Ms. Song
joined our Group in December 2013, and was once the director of
projects, the general manager of our global new product innovation
center and the general manager of One Leaf brand division of our
Group, and is currently the vice president of our Group, responsible
for research and development, and product innovation of the Group.

Ms. Song obtained a bachelor’s degree in literature from Xianda
College of Economics and Humanities, Shanghai International Studies
University (_E/89MNE B K E B 2 48 A XEP7) in the PRC in July 2012.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Li Hangiong (Z%E), aged 46, is our non-executive Director.
Ms. Li served as a vice president at Youngor (Hong Kong) Industrial
Company Limited (X (F8) FEEBMR2AA), and the chief
executive officer of Youngor Garment Holdings Co., Ltd. (#X AR
R AR AT]). Ms. Liis currently the chairman of the board and
chief executive officer of Youngor Investment Co., Ltd. (HEXEIRE
AR A7), the chairman of the board of Youngor Fashion (Shanghai)
Technology Co., Ltd. (X @K (_)8) B AR AF]), the chairman
of the board of Youngor Garment Holdings Co., Ltd. (HX & ARE %
% BPBRAF]), and the vice chairman of the board and chief executive
officer of Youngor Fashion Co., Ltd. (HEXBRERKRMDERAR)
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600177))

Senior Management
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and

Senior Management

EX EELefREERBCERHS

Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration
from California State University in the US in December 2000 and
an Executive Master of Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School (FEEER TEZET) in the PRC in
September 2010.

Mr. Sun Hao (& £), aged 33, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Sun
worked in Audit Department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Hong Kong
office) and Advisory Practice of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
in its Hong Kong office. Mr. Sun has been the director of Shanghai
Premium Bright Global Capital Co. Ltd. (/8% BEEREEEER
A \]) since May 2017, primarily focusing on investments in consumer
and retail sector.

Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Economics from
City University of Hong Kong in May 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson (&%), aged 43, is our independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Leung worked at Credit Suisse Group (¥
T{EEETT) and Ernst & Young (LK &&TE5FT), and served as a
director of Madison Pacific Trust Limited (25 A+ 2L B R A F)
from December 2018 to January 2024.

Mr. Leung obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration
(Accounting and Finance) from the University of Hong Kong in
December 2002. Mr. Leung is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Luo Yan (#&#F), aged 40, is our independent non-executive
Director. Ms. Luo served as an associate professor at the School
of Management at Fudan University (fEE X2, and is currently a
professor at the School of Management at Fudan University. Ms. Luo
has also been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai CEO Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (£
BEZRRERIBRAT) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 688335)) since July 2021; an independent
non-executive director of 3 Peak Incorporated (B M E FRIHk (%
M) B fn B R AF]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 688536)) since December 2019; and an independent
non-executive director of Soochow Securities Co., Ltd. (3R2 & F% 7D
BR27]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 601555)) since December 2023.
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Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/884 KE) in the PRC in
June 2005 and a doctorate degree in philosophy from the University of
Hong Kong in November 2010. She was employed as a postdoctoral
fellow at the School of Economics and Finance of the University of
Hong Kong from November 2010 to February 2013.

Mr. Liu Yi (21%), aged 37, is our independent non-executive Director.
In addition to his position in our Group, Mr. Liu has been a senior
partner of Everbright Law Firm (/&M X KEZAIERAT) since July
2009, and a member of the Financial Instrument Business Specialized
Committee of the Shanghai Lawyers Association (/2RI &£ /T
BEBMREES).

Mr. Liu has been a researcher at the Land and Housing Policy Law
Institute of East China University of Political Science and Law (ZE
REUAREB B EEREEAEPIAT) since January 2010. He
participated in the translation of Contemporary National Property
Management Laws (&R EZBIRYEEIEE)) in 2014,

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Anhui University (%
BIKE) in the PRC in July 2006 and a master’s degree in law from
East China University of Political Science and Law (ERBUEAAZ) in
the PRC in June 2009. Mr. Liu was admitted to practice law in the
PRC in March 2008.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Li Tao (&%), aged 48, is a Supervisor and the chairman of
the Supervisory Committee. Mr. Li served as an audit manager of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP (EEHGER KX &SR
F) and the director of audit of Opple Lighting Co., Ltd. (& &2 RER% 1%
ABRAF]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603515)). Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2016, and is
currently the audit director of our Group, responsible for the internal
audit matters. Mr. Li has also been serving as the supervisor of
various subsidiaries of the Group, primarily including Shanghai Shumei
Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (E/BRFELAMBERZAT) since January 2021,
Shanghai Kans Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (/&8 RAMEHR AR A A)
since March 2021, Shanghai Leading Investment Co., Ltd. (/&1
B AR A A]) since April 2021, and Shanghai Zhongyi Daily Chemical
Co., Ltd. (E)8H I A{LHB R A7), Shanghai One Leaf Cosmetic Co.,
Ltd. (E/8—ZEF{tiz@BEBRAF]), Shanghai Baby Elephant Cosmetic
Co., Ltd. (B84 &/ &bt AB R A F]), and Shanghai Kans Cosmetic
Sales Service Co., Ltd. (/88 R{LAk R HERBEBR2AR]) since May
2021.
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Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics from Nanjing University
(AR AE) in the PRC in July 1998. Mr. Li is a certified public
accountant, as accredited by Guam Board of Accountancy in June
2016, and a certified fraud examiner (FEf /& &8 E M), as awarded
by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiner in January 2020.

Mr. Li was further employed as the expert of Enterprise Anti-Fraud
Alliance (>3 R E¥
member of Shanghai Criminology Society (L/8MIEFEEEE) in April
2020.

BB3) in January 2020, and recognized as a

Ms. Shi Tenghua (FERETE), aged 39, is a Supervisor. Ms. Shi was
a manager of the finance department of Shanghai Robam Electric
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd. (L/B8EFMEEHEBR A ). Ms. Shi joined
our Group in September 2017, and was once the manager and
the senior manager of our finance department, the deputy financial
director, the general manager of the e-commerce department Il (&
—&F) and the deputy general manager of One Leaf brand division. Ms.
Shi is currently the brand director of our Group and deputy general
manager of operation department.

Ms. Shi obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shandong
University (LLE AXE) in the PRC in July 2007.

Ms. Cao Ying (Z¥), aged 45, is an employee representative
Supervisor. Ms. Cao served as a lawyer with Watson & Band (_E/&
MEREAIETSFT); as the deputy general manager of the general
management center and the director of the audit and legal department
at Shanghai OCJ Co., Ltd.(E/BRAHEEEBEMRAF) (with the
former name of Shanghai OCJ Co., Ltd. (EBREFHLEEBERA
Al)); and as the director of legal department and representative of
securities-related matters at Shanghai Milkground Food Tech Co.,
Ltd. (BB AIEZRREHRMNERAE]) (@ company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600882)). Ms. Cao joined our
Group in June 2020, and is currently the director of legal department
of our Group, responsible for legal related matters.
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% EERBREREZBEF

Ms. Cao obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Shanghai University
(/8 KE2) in the PRC in July 2000 and a master's degree in law from
Fudan University ({8 B X&) in the PRC in January 2014. Ms. Cao was
admitted to practice law in the PRC in March 2001.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lyu is our executive Director, chief executive officer and the
chairman of the Board. See “Executive Directors” in this section for
the biographical details of Mr. Lyu.

Ms. Luo Yan (Z&3#%) is our executive Director and vice president. See
“Executive Directors” in this section for the biographical details of Ms.
Luo.

Mr. Feng is our executive Director, vice president, and chief financial
officer. See “Executive Directors” in this section for the biographical
details of Mr. Feng.

Ms. Song is our executive Director and vice president. See “Executive
Directors” in this section for the biographical details of Ms. Song.

Mr. Lian Ming (5&85), aged 40, is the secretary of the Board. Mr. Lian
was once an employee of the Jiangsu branch of the China Petroleum
and Chemical Corporation (FE/AM{ETRDBERARLERLBD A
Al) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600028) and on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 386)),
and served as the director and secretary of the board of directors of
Guangdong Marubi Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (BRAELEFITKD
ABRAF]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603983)). Mr. Lian joined our Group in September 2020, and is
currently the secretary of the Board of our Group.

Mr. Lian was recognized as “Guangzhou High-tier Financial Talent” by
the Guangzhou Municipal Financial Regulatory Bureau in June 2020.

Mr. Lian obtained a master’s degree in law from Tsinghua University
(BEAE) in the PRC in July 2009.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Lian is the secretary of the Board, and was appointed as the joint
company secretary of our Group (“Joint Company Secretaries”) on
21 December 2021 with his appointment taking effect on the Listing
Date. See “Senior Management” above for the biographical details of
Mr. Lian.

Mr. Li Kin Wai (=), has been appointed as the Joint Company
Secretary of our Group since 21 December 2021 with his appointment
taking effect on the Listing Date where he is responsible for company
secretarial matters of the Group.

Mr. Li Kin Wai has over 10 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial and compliance services field. He is a senior manager of
Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional
service provider. He currently serves as company secretary or joint
company secretary for a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Li Kin Wai is a Chartered Secretary and a Chartered Governance
Professional. He is also an associate of both The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) and the Chartered
Governance Institute (CGI) in the United Kingdom. Mr. Li obtained a
bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in corporate governance
from the Open University of Hong Kong in August 2010 and November
2020, respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board (the “Board”) hereby presents this corporate governance
report (the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

Built on our vision, values and culture, we are committed to developing
a positive corporate governance culture that allows employees across
the Group to thrive, meet their full potential, and that enables our
Company to deliver long-term sustainable growth and success.
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OUR VISION
HFRFESR

Our vision is to be a world-class influential cosmetics company that makes popular
products enjoyed by consumers around the world.
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Diversity, Optimism, Innovation, Legacy

OUR VALUES ®
KM\ EE . NI

OUR CULTURE ¢
wREKx ©

Because We Love

ARER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”),
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) on the The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as the basis
of the Company’s corporate governance practices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
except for Code Provision C.2.1 described in the paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”. The Board will continue to
review and monitor the code of corporate governance practices of
the Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate

governance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix C3 to the the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as its code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the directors (the “Director(s)”) and the supervisors
of the Company (the “Supervisors”), and the Group’s employees who,
because of his/her office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities.
Specific enquiries have been made to all Directors and Supervisors
and the Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the employees
was noted by the Company for the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively
responsible for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors take decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and regularly reviews the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them that are
commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities. The
Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors
and non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element on the Board,
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board as at the date of this annual report is as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lyu Yixiong (Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer)
Ms. Luo Yan (Z## % T)

Mr. Feng Yifeng

Ms. Song Yang

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Hangiong
Mr. Sun Hao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson

Ms. Luo Yan (¥ & +)

Mr. Liu Yi

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on pages 31 to 38 of this annual report. Save as
disclosed therein, there is no other relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) between the
Board members and the Chief Executive Officer.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records
Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation of the Directors, either in person or

through electronic means of communication.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held four Board meetings.
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The attendance record of each Director during their respective
tenure of office at the Board meeting of the Company held during the
Reporting Period is set out in the table below:

EEFNEEEHRNEFEARBRNRERAETT
MEFESENCHEIN TR

Attendance/Number of Board Meetings

Name of Director EEMA HERE B2 H N
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lyu Yixiong EEBELE 4/4
Ms. Luo Yan (Z##E %2 1) FER 4/4
Mr. Feng Yifeng Bt 4/4
Ms. Song Yang RAFZL 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Li Hangiong FRELL 4/4
Mr. Sun Hao HREE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYEHITES

Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson REF e E 4/4
Ms. Luo Yan (@ Zt) Figuiedun 4/4
Mr. Liu Vi EiE S 4/4

General Meeting
During the Reporting Period, three general meetings were held and
the attendance record of each Director is set out in the table below:

BRAE
RBEBWR - ERTZRREAGASEFMY
FEREHRN TR -

Attendance/Number of general meeting(s)

Name of Director EEML LERE S BRERAREIRE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lyu Yixiong BERMSEE 3/3
Ms. Luo Yan (ZE# & 1) EHZL 3/3
Mr. Feng Yifeng g & 3/3
Ms. Song Yang RAFZT 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Li Hangiong TRELT 3/3
Mr. Sun Hao RERE 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson RIER T 3/3
Ms. Luo Yan (@ &z +) Pt 3/3
Mr. Liu Vi 23R %EE 3/3
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound corporate governance,
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision of all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’, Supervisors’ and senior management’s liabilities in respect
of any legal actions taken against Directors, Supervisors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lyu Yixiong is both the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.
Notwithstanding the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code, given Mr. Lyu Yixiong’'s extensive knowledge and experience
of the Group’s business, the Board considers that vesting the roles
of both chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company in the same person brings the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enabling more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will not
be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

The Board will nevertheless continue to review the structure from time
to time and consider the appropriate move to take when appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure
a strong independent element on the Board, and allows the Board
effectively exercises independent judgment to better safeguard
Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement
or further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what
actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the
Board performance, for instance, addressing individual training and
development needs of each Director.
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Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the
Board had conducted annual review on its independence during the
Reporting Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Under the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”
or “Articles of Association”), Directors (including non-executive
Directors) shall be elected or replaced at the general meeting with a
term of three years. The term of office of a director shall be from the
date of his appointment until the expiration of the term of office of the
current board of directors. Each of the current non-executive Directors
have been appointed on the following dates:

Directors

B

TEERRS

REESSHIIENEHES  EFTECNREH
WS EB 7 T FEE ©

ZERERES

REALAER ([RRAER])  EF (BHEFH
TEF)ABRRAGESRELNER  BETH
=F - BREMUNEZAEFE  EXAEES
SEHERE AL - REFNTESFHCD A T
HEAREE R

Appointment Date
ZEBH

Non-executive Directors
FHITES

Ms. Li Hangiong
FRELL

Mr. Sun Hao

RERE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson

R

Ms. Luo Yan (@2 +)

myti+

Mr. Liu Yi

2Rk E

A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiry
of his/her term. A Director shall continue to perform his duties in
accordance with the laws, administrative regulations, department rules,
Listing Rules and Articles until a duly re-elected director takes office, if
re-election is not conducted in a timely manner upon the expiry of his
term of office, or if the resignation of directors results in the number
of directors being less than the quorum. The Articles also provides
that each Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to
the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/her
appointment. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors, independent
non-executive Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with the Company with a specific term.

16 December 2020
202012 A816H
30 September 2022
202249 H30H

21 December 2021
20211221 H
21 December 2021
202112 821H
21 December 2021
20214128218

E=THER A AERET - FRETHEMA
ARBETEERE  FEEFNHIENEEHA
DPIEEAE  AIESFABBERRER  TBE
Mo BPRE - EMRARAREREITER
B HEELABEEINESEEIR/L RFAE
RITRE  BEENEFHBRREZRIMAZESS
MEBEHIREERZERNEARRKRE -
REEETRBEET -

il

WITES  FRTES BUFRTEERES
BEBRARRFZEEHRNRBEERHEE
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The service term of the first session of the Board of Directors and
the first session of the Supervisory Committee have expired on 15
December 2023. The term of office of the first session of the Board
of Directors and the first session of the Supervisory Committee
are extended to the date on which the new session of the Board
of Directors and the Supervisory Committee are approved at the
forthcoming AGM and the new session of the Board of Directors
and the Supervisory Committee formally assumes their duties. On 21
March 2024, the Nomination Committee nominated part of members
of the first session of the Board of Directors of the Company (namely,
Mr. Lyu Yixiong, Ms. Luo Yan (Z#), Mr. Feng Yifeng and Ms.
Song Yang, who are the Executive Directors, Ms. Li Hangiong and
Mr. Sun Hao, who are the Non-executive Directors, and Mr. Leung
Ho Sun Wilson and Ms. Luo Yan (Z#f), who are the Independent
Non-executive Directors) to the Board for it to recommend to the
Shareholders for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Li Yang
(%) has also been nominated as an Independent Non-executive
Director to recommend to the Shareholders for election at the
forthcoming AGM. The nominations were made in accordance with
the Company’s terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and
the Board Diversity Policy.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits to the
Company and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company organized all Directors to
continuously learn regulatory information related to Directors’ duties
and responsibilities. In addition, relevant reading materials covering
Directors’ duties and responsibilities have been provided to the

Directors for their reference and studying.

During the Reporting Period, the training records of the Directors are

summarized as follows:

TEERRS

RI|ESMA - ARREBERESHERBRE
FREASTHHEMMEEEM © ttH ARF
MESRUMREEFHE LR TNMEBIENH
MERELERER -

RBEHRN > EFEINFIIREILET

Type of Training Nete

Directors = B FIFE AL mE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lyu Yixiong BERMEE A B
Ms. Luo Yan (¥ +) #EIM L A B
Mr. Feng Yifeng g E A, B
Ms. Song Yang RFLZL A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Li Hangiong TRELT A B, C D, E
Mr. Sun Hao BRESLE A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson RIEF S E A B, C
Ms. Luo Yan (@& +) FEP L A, B
Mr. Liu Yi 25k E A, B, C

Note: =

Types of Training 3| kA

A. Reading articles and journals on the latest listing rules and regulations, the duties, A. MEBEBAEMESTZ ETHRANFNER  EFHEANELRIT

responsibilities and businesses of directors, and industry developments, etc.

B. Obtaining learning resources related to new listing rules and regulations, the duties,

responsibilities and businesses of directors, and industry developments, etc. through

the Internet

C. Attending seminars/conferences/forums/study workshops
D. Giving a speech at seminars/conferences/forums/study workshops
E. Attending internal training on ongoing compliance responsibilities, corporate

governance and other relevant topics

ERRENXERHT
B. BRMEEREN ETRRRD - EFREMEL R
TERERZIRMEBER

C. SMAEE S &E S wES2EY
D. R ® &R BEDNRERER
E. 2MEBBESRER  ARABMEMABEERENA

#BIED

Annual Report 2023 £E#R%E | 47



Corporate Governance Report
PEERME

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee and Nomination Committee are published
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Leung
Ho Sun Wilson, Ms. Luo Yan (&% t) and Mr. Liu Yi. All Audit
Committee members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Leung Ho Sun Wilson is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
the PRC laws. The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are (a) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
replacement and removal of the external auditor, to consider and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) to review
and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Audit Committee shall discuss with the external
auditors the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences; (c) to develop and implement policy
on engaging an external auditor to provide non-audit services; (d)
to monitor internal audit system of the Company and ensure the
implementation of such systems; (e) to facilitate communications
between the internal audit department and external auditors; (f)
to review the financial information and relevant disclosures of the
Company; and (g) to monitor the Company in respect of financial
reporting system, risk management and internal controls system. The
Audit Committee shall report to the Board on its work.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2023 ' and
reviewed the internal systems including financial reporting system, risk
management, internal control systems and Anti-Corruption, Whistle-
blowing and Rewarding System. The Audit Committee evaluated the
reasonableness of the continuing connected transactions. The Audit
Committee also assessed its own performance, its working rules and
the composition of its members, and confirmed that the Company had
complied with applicable laws and regulatory requirements such as
the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditors twice to discuss audit issues.
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During the Reporting Period, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance records of the Audit Committee member is set out
in the table below:

TEERRS

RSN BRAMAEHEE RS A%
ZERREMNEELHEATE -

Attendance/Number of meeting(s)

Name of Director EEME HERE S gHERE
Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson (Chairman) P E (FE) 2/2
Ms. Luo Yan (Z&#fz 1) B+ 2/2
Mr. Liu Yi 2R E 2/2

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Lyu Yixiong (executive Director), Ms. Luo
Yan (ZEPFZZ L) (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Liu Yi
(independent non-executive Director). Ms. Luo Yan is the chairperson
of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
are of no less exacting terms than those set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and the PRC laws. The primary functions of
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee include (a) to make
recommendations to the Board on our Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors, Supervisors and senior
management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy; (b) to review and
approve the remuneration proposals of senior management with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Director and senior management or to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of the executive
Director and senior management. The remuneration packages shall
include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments
(including compensation for loss or termination of their office or
appointment); (d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors; (e) to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in our Group; (f) to review
and approve the compensation payable to the executive Director
and senior management for their loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that such compensation is consistent with
the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (g)
to review and approve the compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to ensure that
such compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; and (h) to ensure that no Director or
any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee during the Reporting Period: (a) reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management; (b) reviewed and
made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management; and (c) reviewed the performance of duties of Directors
and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company, whose biographical details are included
in section headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2023 falls within the following bands:

AT RFMEZEZZBEN RS RAN TR
Z: (@RI EFRERERENFHINTELME
EZEFEHERE  ORIARFNEERGREERE
BFMR R REB L MESSIELER - ko)
ANARREENEREEERBITREANBER -

EHE2023F12A31BIEFE  ARAIES - &
ERREERENFMRUTHEARN - HBEF
BEHRARNFERE(EF - EFRaREEEZ
BRG] —& :

Number of Individuals

Remuneration (RMB) M (AREIT) AE
0-500,000 0%&500,000 5
500,001-1,000,000 500,001 % 1,000,000 2
1,000,001-2,000,000 1,000,001 22,000,000 4
over 2,000,000 2,000,000 2

The Company’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the remuneration
offered to the Directors, Supervisors and senior management,
is based on skill, knowledge, responsibilities and involvement
in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration and compensation
packages of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management
are also determined with reference to account salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and Supervisors and the performance of the Group.
The remuneration for the Directors and Supervisors comprises fees,
salaries, allowances, benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses,
equity-settled share-based compensation expense and pension
scheme contributions. Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors shall not receive options and awards to be
granted under the Company’s share option scheme and share award
scheme. Individual Directors and senior management have not been
involved in deciding their own remuneration.
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During the Reporting Period, one Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee meeting was held and the attendance records of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee member is set out in the table
below:

TEERRS

RBERR > BEBRT-RAFWEEZZBEEER
B¥MEEZZEENBNHFREHENTX

Attendance/Number of meeting(s)

Name of Director EE=HA HERE S SHRE
Ms. Luo Yan (Z&#f 2z +) (Chairperson) BT+ (/&) 1/1
Mr. Lyu Yixiong BERBELE 1/1
Mr. Liu Yi Bt 1/1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Lyu Yixiong (executive Director), Ms. Luo Yan (2 Jf 2 1) (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Liu Yi (independent non-executive
Director). Mr. Lyu Yixiong is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and the PRC laws. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include (a) to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement our Company’s corporate strategy; (b)
to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and select and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and (d)
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors (in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer).

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Board Diversity Policy that are necessary
to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,
where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.
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e
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed
Board Diversity Policy and the standardized procedures for nominating
Shareholders as the candidates for Directors, and reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board annually. The Nomination Committee
also accessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and confirmed the time that the Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors devoted to fulfilling their
duties was sufficient.

During the Reporting Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held and the attendance records of the Nomination Committee
member is set out in the table below:

WEHAN REZESEHNTEEFTELIEEE

EBEREAANBSBESNIEFRE  YCOHE
EEMRE - ABREK (B - AEEE
BOE)ETTFEEN -REZBENFET

BUERITEENBLNE - RERIERTEER
BIFATERTEBREMRANKEITRE

RIESHA - BERT-RELZEEEZARE
ZEEREMHFELCHEHNTX

Attendance/Number of meeting(s)

Name of Director EE2HA HERE S SHRE
Mr. Lyu Yixiong (Chairman) BERBELE (FFE) 1/1
Ms. Luo Yan (@2 +) Et L 1/1
Mr. Liu Vi IRk E 1/1
i
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE EEg
The Supervisory Committee is a supervisory body of the Company Et$@ﬁ$“ﬂﬁ’\]§t’ﬂ7f%% BREHESERA
which is responsible for the supervision of the Board and its members REUREREEBETES  BLEEEAR
and senior management so as to prevent them from the misuse of o 12511]&% CARBRAREEENEERE
authority and infringement upon lawful rights of the Shareholders, the o EEESHMNEABMRAKRTEER  EHRK

Company and the Company’s employees. The number of members
and the composition of the Supervisory Committee are in line with the
provisions and requirements of the laws, regulations and the Articles.
The Supervisory Committee is comprised of three Supervisors, of
whom one was an employee representative democratically elected by
the employees of the Company.

The biographical information of the Supervisors is set out in the

section headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” on pages 31 to 38 of this annual report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
diversity of the Board through the consideration of a wide range
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical capabilities,
professional qualifications and skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit of the selected
candidates and contribution that they will bring to the Board.

The Board has a balanced mixed of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, finance, accounting
and risk management in addition to industry experience in cosmetics.
The Directors obtained degrees in various majors including business
administration, finance, accounting, economics and laws. The
Company have three Independent Non-executive Directors with
different industry background, representing one-third of the members
of the Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
Board has set the following measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives:

(A) at least one of the members of the Board shall be female;

(B) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

(C) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications/knowledge of
environmental protection issues.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition based on the

measurable objectives is set out below:

Gender
gl
Male:
B
Female:

it

Designation

Bz

Executive Directors:

WITES :

Non-executive Directors:
FEHITESE -

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BIUFMITES

Business Experience
ETBEER

Accounting & Finance:
BRTERT

Legal:

ER

Experience Related to the Company’s Business:

EARRNRIRFBAROER

The Nomination Committee and the Board are of the view that the
current composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set in

the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy

annually to ensure its effectiveness.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The Company has taken, and will continue to take, steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but not limited
to the Board and the senior management levels.
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The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Group as at 31 December 2023:

TEERRS

TREFNEHE2023F 124310 - KAEBEETH
MERIEE ) -

Female Male
pegis Bt
Overall workforce 2HEET 1,341 542

The Board had targeted to achieve and had achieved at least 1 female
Director, and considers that the above current gender diversity is
satisfactory.

The Company will continue to work to enhance gender diversity of
the Board. The Board will use its best endeavors to appoint female
Directors to the Board and the Nomination Committee will use its
best endeavors to identify and recommend suitable female candidates
to the Board for its consideration of appointment of Directors. The
Company will also continue to ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff from mid to senior level, such that it will have a
pipeline of female management and potential successors to our Board
in due time to ensure gender diversity of the Board. The Group will
continue to emphasise training of female talents and provide long-term
development opportunities for the female staff.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy, as contained
in the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which sets
out the selection criteria and nomination process and the Board
succession planning considerations in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The nomination process of appointment of new Director set out in the
Director Nomination Policy is as follows:

(i) the Nomination Committee shall actively communicate with the
relevant departments of the Company to assess the Company’s
demand for new directors and senior management, and produce
materials in writing;

(i) the Nomination Committee may extensively seek for candidates
for directors and senior management within the Company, its
holding (shareholding) enterprises as well as the job market;

(i) the Nomination Committee shall collect and learn the information
of the occupation, education background, job title, detailed
working experience and all the part-time jobs of the initially
proposed candidates, and produce materials in writing;

(iv) to seek for the nominee’s written consent to the nomination,
otherwise, he/she shall not be considered as a candidate for
directors and senior management;

(v)  to convene Nomination Committee meetings to review the
qualifications of the initially proposed candidates according to
the job requirements of directors and senior management;

(vi)  to submit proposals and the relevant materials to the Board
in respect of candidates of directors and senior management
within a reasonable period of time prior to the election of new
directors and senior management; and

(vii)  to carry out other follow-up work according to the decision and
feedback of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall submit its decisions,
recommendations and/or proposals to the Board for consideration
and decision. Among which, the nomination of director candidates
must be submitted to the general meeting of shareholders for
review and approval after being reviewed by the Board and before
implementation.

The criteria for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution
to the Board of a proposed candidate as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to the following, are gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical
capabilities, professional qualifications and skills, knowledge and
length of service.
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During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the composition
of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

In accordance with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules (CG Code) and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
duties.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has established a risk management and internal control
system in accordance with the requirements of paragraph D.2 under
Section Il of the CG Code, which is responsible for independently
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Company, and continuously
monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of its operation once a
year. The system aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, promote effective and efficient
operations, reasonably ensure the reliability of financial reports and
comply with applicable laws and regulations and protect the assets
of the Group. The Board can only give reasonable but not absolute
assurance that there will be no material misrepresentation or loss.
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Characteristics of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Organization System

In accordance with the requirements of code provision D.2.2 under
Section Il of the CG Code, the Group has established a sound risk
management and internal control organization system which includes
the Board, the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Committee, the
management of the Group, the office of the Board, the internal audit
department, the legal department and other departments to ensure
that the Group has sufficient resources, qualified and experienced
staffs, training courses and related budget for risk management and
internal audit. The various departments of the Group are the first line
of defense for risk management and internal control; the office of
the Board and the management of the Group are the second line of
defense; while the internal audit department, the legal department,
the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Committee are the third
line of defense. The Board bears the ultimate responsibility for the
establishment and improvement of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system as well as the effective implementation of the
risk management work, and serves as the highest decision maker for
the Group’s risk management and internal control.

Implementation of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Group reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems every year and assesses all important
monitoring aspects including supervision on financial, operation and
compliance affairs, etc. based on the elements of internal control
such as the internal environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication as well as internal supervision,
and optimizes and updates the risk control mechanism. After risk
assessment, the Company’s major risks during the Reporting Period
mainly involve business risks, financial risks, compliance risks,
inside information and internal control risks. According to our actual
situation, we have formulated practical and feasible response plans to
effectively manage risks:

Business risks: The business risks the Group mainly faces in
respect of its operations in the PRC include macro-economic risks,
competition risks, supply chain risks, reputation risks and sustainability
risks. The Board regularly reviews and identifies potential risks of
the Group, and adjusts strategies and policies in a timely manner, to
ensure that the business risks are controlled and managed.
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Financial risks: The Group has adopted financial risk management
policies to control the Group’s financial risk exposure, such as
taxation risks and financial reporting risks. Also, the Board monitors
the financial results and key operating statistics with the assistance of
the Group’s internal finance department on a regular basis.

Compliance risks: The Group has adopted internal procedures to
monitor the Group’s compliance risks to ensure that the Group has
complied with the laws and regulations of the regions where the
Group conducts business. In addition, the Group engages professional
advisers from time to time to keep the Group updated with the latest
development in the regulatory environments.

Formation of a Long-term Mechanism for Risk
Management and Internal Control

We continue to improve risk management policies and procedures,
specify the risk management structure and responsibilities. We identify
major risks that hinder the achievement of objectives and control
them within acceptable levels to ensure the achievement of business
objectives, the improvement of operational efficiency, the reliability of
financial reports and compliance with national regulations and other
compliance requirements. We evaluate and check the effectiveness of
our risk management and internal control systems through channels
such as the management, business units in the risk management
system, audit and inspection teams of the Group, external auditors,
and external legal advisor to improve risk response measures.
Meanwhile, in order to ensure the effective operation of the risk
management system, the Audit Committee reviews and supervises the

risk management work.

Our management focuses on business risks, financial risks
and compliance risks. Through agile audits, it achieves more
comprehensive and accurate risk control, identifies potential risks
more quickly, and promotes the improvement in management and
system processes to support the achievement of the mid- to long-term
vision and strategic goals of the Company. The Group’s management
procedures for financial reporting and information disclosure, etc. are
in strict compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Office
of the Board conducts information reporting, reviewing and disclosure
in strict accordance with the Information Disclosure Management
formulated by the Company. Prior to disclosing relevant information
to the public, the Group will ensure that such information is kept
confidential properly and will perform the obligation to inform and
supervise the insiders of inside information as required.
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The Board reviewed the risk management and internal control during
the Reporting Period and concluded that there had been no deficiency
in material risk control nor any weakness in material risk control based
on the outcome of the risk management and internal control work
implemented by the Group. The Board was of the view that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group is effective and
sufficient.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has in place the Whistleblowing Policy for employees
of the Company and those who deal with the Company to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee
about possible improprieties in any matters related to the Company.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to
safeguard against corruption and bribery within the Company. The
Company has an internal reporting channel that is open and available
for employees of the Company to report any suspected corruption
and bribery. Employees can also make anonymous reports according
to the procedures as set out in the Whistleblowing Policy.

Disclosure of Inside Information Policy

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control
procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements with the support of the accounting and finance
team.

The Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. Appropriate accounting
policies have also been used and applied consistently except the
adoption of revised standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation.

60 | Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. £ bR M B R A F

EReCHBEHANRREIRERARES TIEE
TRNYRAS - AREORREERABEST
EFREMERKS - TEEEARBRIEHI KR
B MABREARBIZFIFHE EFERE
AEENRBREEMABENRREEALEH
ty o

SHMMEK

ARREFIERFRE @ BARANEER R HE A A
AEEREREAARBER TR ARNETZ
SEREEHEAAUEMRARTNTE FEN
BT -

RIBBE

ARRIFEHERBEE - UHEBARR A
ERBMITH - ARAHEREEFABABERE
B HESREMRUBRITES - R - EED
AREBEERBERABEREFERRR -

RRBEREBE
ARAEHIEARBEE - AARAES  B&
EREREMEREHAMAERTER  BER
HEEBREESAN—RIES - ARFEKE
BT - DARBMRAIS A L ARAS R B I 5 P
RFHE -

ESRRYBHRR2EE

EENERERAEEHA M BEGNIHTAR
RIS

EECRBEERSHMASEMNRRIT RS
HRRBEMBHRE Y- HERERAREREGE
VEETBER (RETER MRS - R NEER
EERERIN) -



Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis,
the Directors are of the view that they give a true and fair view of
the financial position, performance and cash flow of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023, and the disclosure of other
financial information and report therein complies with relevant legal

requirements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid and payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

Service Category
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Fees Paid/Payable

FR7 48 R B ENER
(RMB’000)

(ARETIT)

Audit Services ZH RS 3,640.0
Non-audit Services IERZ RIS nil &
Total 5t 3,640.0

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has appointed Mr. Lian Ming, a full-time employee of
the Company, and Mr. Li Kin Wai, a senior manager of corporate
services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated business, corporate and investor
services, as the Company’s joint company secretaries.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries on corporate governance and board practices
and matters. Mr. Lian, who is also the secretary to the Board, has
been designated as the primary contact person at the Company
which would work and communicate with Mr. Li on the Company’s
corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Lian and Mr. Li have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographies of Mr. Lian and Mr. Li are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” section of
this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 47 of the Articles, Shareholders severally or jointly
holding ten percent (10%) or more of shares of the Company have the
right to request the Board of Directors to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and such request shall be made in writing to the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall, in accordance with
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
in writing as to whether the Board of Directors agrees or disagrees
on the convening of the extraordinary general meeting within ten (10)
days upon the receipt of the requisition.

If the Board of Directors agrees to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, a convening notice shall be issued within five (5) days after
the resolution of the Board of Directors. Any modification to the
original requisition(s) shall be approved by the relevant shareholders.

If the Board of Directors disagrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, or fails to issue a reply within ten (10) days upon
receipt of the requisition(s), shareholders severally or jointly holding
ten percent (10%) or more of the shares of the Company are entitled
to propose to the Supervisory Committee to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, and shall make such requests in writing to the
Supervisory Committee.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, a convening notice will be issued within five (5) days
upon the receipt of the request, and any maodification to the original
requisition(s) shall be approved by relevant shareholders.

In the event that the Supervisory Committee fails to issue the
convening notice within the prescribed period, the Supervisory
Committee will be deemed as not to convene or preside the general
meeting. Shareholders severally or jointly holding ten percent (10%) or
more of the shares of the Company for consecutive ninety (90) days

may convene the general meeting and preside over on their own.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Article 52 of the Articles, Shareholders individually
or collectively holding three percent (3%) or more of the total voting
shares of the Company shall be entitled to propose new resolutions
to the Company in writing which should be submitted to the convener
ten (10) days prior to the convening of the general meeting. The
convener of the general meeting shall issue a supplemental notice
of general meeting to other shareholders within two (2) days of the
receipt of such proposal to announce the contents of the provisional
proposal and incorporate such newly proposed matters falling within
the scope of duties of the general meeting into the agenda of such
meeting for consideration at the general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally
deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 25 Floor, Building B, No. 3300 Zhongshan North Road,
Putuo District, Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Telephone: (8621)52035333

Email: ir@kans.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company is endeavoured to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and
answer their enquiries.
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To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders Communication Policy. The
policy aims at promoting effective communication with Shareholders
and other stakeholders, encouraging Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company and enabling Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively.

The Board has considered and reviewed the Shareholders
Communication Policy and considers it to be effective.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(@) Corporate Communication

“Corporate Communication” as defined under the Listing
Rules refers to any document issued or to be issued by the
Company for the information or action of holders of any
of its securities, including but not limited to the following
documents of the Company: (a) the Directors’ report, annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report and,
where applicable, its summary financial report; (b) the interim
report and, where applicable, its summary interim report; (c) a
notice of meeting; (d) a listing document; (e) a circular; and (f)
a proxy form. The Corporate Communication of the Company
will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkex.
com.hk) in a timely manner as required by the Listing Rules.
Corporate Communication will be provided to Shareholders
and non-registered holders of the Company’s securities in both
English and Chinese versions or where permitted, in a single
language, in a timely manner as required by the Listing Rules.
Shareholders and non-registered holders of the Company’s
securities shall have the right to choose the language (either
English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the Corporate
Communication (in printed form or through electronic means).
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(b)

()

(d)

Corporate Governance Report

Announcements and Other Documents pursuant to the
Listing Rules

The Company shall publish announcements (on inside
information, corporate actions and transactions etc.) and
other documents (e.g. Articles of Association) on the Stock
Exchange’s website in a timely manner in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Corporate Website

Any information or documents of the Company posted on
the Stock Exchange’s website will also be published on the
Company’s website (www.chicmaxgroup.com). Other corporate
information about the Company’s corporate governance will also
be available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the
Company are primary forum for communication between the
Company and its Shareholders. The Company shall provide
Shareholders with relevant information on the resolutions(s)
proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The information provided shall be
reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings for and on
their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. Where
appropriate or required, the Chairman of the Board and other
Board members, the chairmen of board committees or their
delegates, and the external auditors should attend general
meetings of the Company to answer Shareholders’ questions (if
any).

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(e) Shareholders’ Enquiries

Enquiries about Shareholdings

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s H share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry service at
www.tricoris.com, or send email to is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com or
call its hotline at (852) 2980 1333, or go in person to its public
counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

Enquiries about Corporate Governance or Other Matters to be
put to the Board and the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders may send any enquiries to the Board by
email: ir@kans.cn or by post to 25 Floor, Building B, No. 3300
Zhongshan North Road, Putuo District, Shanghai, The People’s
Republic of China.

(f)  Other Investor Relations Communication Platforms
Investor/analysts briefings, roadshows (both domestic and
international), media interviews, marketing activities for investors
and specialist industry forums etc. will be launched on a regular
basis.

Amendments to Constitutional Documents

The Articles of Association was approved for amendment by the
shareholders of the Company at the 2023 first extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 16 October 2023 and an up to
date version of the Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Dividend Policy

In relation to the dividend policy of the Company, please refer to
“Report of the Board of Directors” in this annual report for details.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the PRC with limited liability on
11 June 2004 and restructured to a joint-stock company with limited
liability on 24 December 2020. The Company was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 22 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Group is a multi-brand cosmetics company and primarily engaged
in research and development, manufacturing and sales of skincare
and maternity and childcare products in the PRC.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are shown under note 1 to the Financial Statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year ended 31
December 2023, including an analysis of which using financial key
performance indicators and the outlook of the Group’s business
are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report, which
forms part of this “Report of the Board of Directors”.
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USE OF PROFEEDS FROM THE
GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds
received by the Company from the Global Offering in the amount
of approximately HK$859.7 million” after deducting underwriting
commissions and all related expenses. The following table sets forth
the Company’s use of the proceeds from the Listing and the planned
timetable as at 31 December 2023.

Approximate Net proceeds

percentage of from the

the total Global

net proceeds Offering
(EFG3E

L 2HEE
RoEs  FERER

RIRBEMEGRERE

ARERRD ([BRD 1) 7 77 A BATE RS 32 Fr £ 4Rk
W MARFERIREEWN 2 ERIBFERS
#1859.7EEEITY (KINREHAE RATEER
Fis) » T&REBIN2023F 128318 » AAFH
RETAERIBRGNFERBERRETEIRMEEX -

Remaining net  Utiised amount ~ Remaining net  Expected time

proceeds as at duringthe  proceeds as of  to utilize the
31 December reporting 31 December  remaining net
2022 period 2023 proceeds in full
2025 HENEF RERRAG

12431 AfE REEER  12A38ER  METERE
FERRRE EREEE  AENERE  MEERR

(HKD' million) (HKD' million) (HKD millon) - (HKD' million)
(6E#T) (BEET) (&%) (&%)
Branding activities to continue to ~~ RIZRIEE - WEERAREN & 32.0% 2755 2755 1.4 2041 By 31 December
enhance the brand image and TRRAMBERENRIERN 2026
raise brand awareness of our B URAZMOFRERT R HZ026F
existing brands, as well as to F% 128318280
establish the brand images of our
new brands
Enhancing our R&D capabilties by A FMAMERES - BBIMBER 12.2% 104.9 104.9 2.1 768 By 31 December
strengthening our fundamental FENERRE - RERENHEE 2026
research and product Bl HZ2026%
development, to maintain the 12831825
continuous innovation of our
brands
Strengthen our production and NEEMNAERRERE N T 19.8% 170.6 170.6 12.2 1584 By 31 December
supply chain capablliies, mainly ERRMEE TRAEHNY 2024
involving the renovation of our £ BB EEARRELER HZ0UF
production faciltties, upgrading our 12R318. 28

automation equipment, and the
expansion of production capacities
in the Fengxian Plant
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Approximate Netproceeds ~ Remainingnet  Utilised amount ~ Remaining net  Expected time
percentage of fromthe  proceeds as at duringthe  proceeds asof  to utilize the
the total Global 31 December reporting 31 December  remaining net
net proceeds Offering 2022 period 2023 proceeds in ful
(EFAERE R2000% HENBF BYRRAG
EEn BE 1ANAEE RESER  12A3REE  FAEZETE
f0Esl  FERERE  FEIERE ERREE  MEIERE  OEHEE
(HKD' million) (HKD' million) (HKD millon) - (HKD' million)
(B&#7T) (BE37) (BE#T) (BERT)
Increasing the breadth and depth of MBI EERENEENRE - 11 18.0% 1545 1545 1545 0.0 Fuly Utiized
our sales networks o enhance the R FERMEER B i
penetration of our products
Enhancing our digtization and FERMNE T RES R R 8.0% 69.2 69.2 59 63.3 By 31 December
information infrastructure 2024
HEo0045
12R31828
Working capital and other generll ~ £EESREM R0 ERR 9.9% 85.1 85.1 85.1 00  Fully Utiized
corporate purposes ERYEA
Total® #te 100% 859.7 859.7 367.2 502.5
Notes: et
1) The total proceeds of approximately HK$859.7 million include approximately (1) FTiS 7B 3EHI850.7T B BB L BIERA2022F12A%

HK$835.1 million from the Global Offering in December 2022 and approximately
HK$24.6 million from the partial exercise of the Over-allotment Option in January
2023 as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16 January 2023.

) Any discrepancies in the above table between the total shown and the sum of the
amounts listed are due to rounding.

The net proceeds have been and will be utilized in accordance with

the purposes set out in the Prospectus.

The expected timeline is based on the best estimation of future market

conditions and business operations made by the Company currently,

and will be subject to change based on future development of market

conditions and actual business needs.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out
in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 117 to 124.

The Board recommends the payment of final dividends of RMB298.5
million (equals to RMBO0.75 per share) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: RMBO0.25 per share).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Business risks

° The domestic and foreign economic which in turn significantly
impacted the Group’s product manufacturing and led to the
decrease in demand in the consumer market.

° Our business and future growth prospects rely on consumer
demand for our products. Any shift in consumer demand, or
any unexpected situation with a negative impact on consumer
demand, may materially and adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

° Our business depends on market recognition of our brands.
Any damage to our reputation or brands may materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

° Any quality issues related to our products or the cosmetics
industry could result in a loss of customers and sales and,
if related to our products, may subject us to product liability
claims.
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Operational risks

Our sales and marketing strategies may not be able to adapt
to market changes, which could harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our marketing activities may not be cost-effective in attracting
consumers, which may in turn adversely affect our results of
operations.

Changes in supply, quality and costs of raw materials,
transportation and other necessary supplies or services
may impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Any failure to obtain, maintain or renew any of the requisite
licenses, permits, registrations and filings required for our
business could adversely affect our operations.

Brand and products research and development risks

Our efforts in developing, launching and promoting new brands
and products, and diversifying our brand and product portfolio,
may not be successful.

Our efforts in developing and investing in research and
development may not generate expected outcomes.

Production Risks

We may face inadequate production capacity issue, which could
hinder our capabilities to satisfy customers’ demand and growth
prospects.

We may experience disruptions and delays in our production,
which may materially and adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

Compliance and legal risks

Failure to comply with applicable advertising laws and
regulations when promoting our products may subject us to
potential risks and penalties.

Any failure or perceived failure to comply with data privacy and
security laws, or other concerns about our practices or policies
with respect the collection, use, storage, retention, transfer,
disclosure, and other processing of data, could damage our
reputation and deter current and potential users from using our

services.
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We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual
property rights, which could harm the value of our brands and
adversely affect our business.

Laws and regulations related to e-commerce activities in China
may impose additional requirements and obligations on our
online operations.

We may be subject to intellectual property infringement claims,
which may be expensive to defend and may disrupt our business
and operations.

Manpower and Retention Risks

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and
retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet the
business objectives of the Group.

We may not be able to retain or promptly recruit senior
management members or other key personnel required for our
operations.

We may be unable to attract and retain the research and
development personnel required for our operations.

Financial Risks

The Group also faces financial risks including foreign currency
risk, credit risk, maximum exposure and year-end staging and
liquidity risk. Details of these financial risks are set out in note
36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the

year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 29 to the Financial

Statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB415.5 million (as at 31 December 2022:
RMB284.2 million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 20283, the Group’s aggregate
revenue from the five largest customers accounted for less than 30%
of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases from the
Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for 8.89% and 35.23% respectively of the Group’s total
purchase.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, any
of their close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the issued
Shares of the Company) was interested in the top five suppliers of the
Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of final dividends
of RMBO0.75 per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMBO0.25 per share). The payment of final dividends above is still
subject to the approval from Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), and will be made on
or around Friday, 28 June 2024. There is no arrangement that a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year
will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to
the Financial Statements on pages 125 to 128 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s total capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB87.8 million (2022:
RMB54.3 million) which is primarily attributable to the new items of
property, plant and equipment. The details of the property, plant
and equipment of the Group and their movements during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and
the details of the charging on the Group’s assets are set out in note
28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES OR JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group did not have any significant investments,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures. As for the Group’s significant investments, major acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the reporting period, please refer to “Management Discussion and
Analysis—Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposal
of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements
could lead to the termination of operating licences. The Group
has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations and to maintain cordial
working relationships with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year ended 31 December 2023, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group, by
the Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in the section headed “Use
of Proceeds from the Global Offering” in this annual report, the Group
did not have plan for material investments and capital assets.

SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lyu Yixiong (&= 3 Iff %0 &)
(Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Luo Yan (&% +)
Mr. Feng Yifeng ()6 — &5t 4)
Ms. Song Yang (R & L)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Hangiong (&g iz +)
Mr. Sun Hao (12 2 % 4)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Ho Sun Wilson (Z5& 5 5t 4)

Ms. Luo Yan (Z## % +)

Mr. Liu Vi (B3R5 4)

Supervisors

Mr. Li Tao (&%)

Ms. Shi Tenghua (FE#E{EZ£)
Ms. Cao Ying (BEiZ )

The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and the
senior management of the Group are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on pages 31 to 38 of this annual report.
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Pursuant to Articles 94 and 134 of the Articles of Association, the
term for Directors and Supervisors shall be three years. Each of the
Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract or a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years.

There are no service contracts or letters of appointment between the
Company or its subsidiaries and any of the Directors or Supervisors
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation apart from statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ AND
SUPERVISORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2023.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined by the Board with reference to the respective
responsibilities and duties, experience, individual performance,
and time devoted to the Group and may be adjusted upon the
recommendation of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. The
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was set up for reviewing the
Company’s emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Please refer to the
paragraph headed “Share Incentive Scheme” in this section for details
of long-term incentive schemes of the Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the Financial
Statements on pages 184 to 188 of this annual report.

The following table sets forth the emoluments of the Supervisors for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

&

THE

EXE CEERAEBESFHMA

+ A9 55 A

EERAEERAERTHATOFTIEEER
NEIRFE184E 188 B M HEIRERMEI N 10 ©

TREFNEENEE2023F12 A31 B ILFEH

e

Year ended 31 December 2023
EZE2023F12A31HIEFEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension Performance -
and benefits scheme related Share-based
in kind contributions bonuses payment Total
E2iic A= 32 1 RIRE B3 LUR 1D %
REVER sTEIHR HHBATEAL B 873 OENEN e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TT ARBTT ARBTT AR¥ETT
Supervisors: BE
Mr. Li Tao FEEAE 423 217 46 130 816
Ms. Shi Tenghua MEREIE 2 & 447 217 144 1,300 2,108
Ms. Cao Ying EE e 526 217 70 390 1,203
1,396 651 260 1,820 4,127

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director, any Supervisor or any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors or the
Supervisors has waived any emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
his or her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly in any transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Company to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No non-competition agreements or arrangement has been provided by
any of the Controlling Shareholders at any time during the Reporting
Period or as at 31 December 2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance in respect of
legal actions arising out of corporate activities against the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRA
AND CONTINUING
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had the
following connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into the following continuing connected
transaction with the connected persons as defined in the Listing
Rules, and transactions have been conducted in accordance with the
agreed terms.

1. Products Purchasing Framework Agreement

ESEWE

\

BR 5

BEX S RITER

REZE2023F12 A31 E¢¢J§ AR ERETTIA
THREXSFRFBEBERS  ATHBENEER
/E\ltmiﬁ,ﬁ\'J%MAaE’UiﬁE °

ARFCHEREAL (EEE LEMARA) FTZAT
FERER S - BRXHERBEIRTETT -

pu)

1. EmXRBEZXRNS

Parties (1) Suzhou Xiongze (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries); and
BEsba FMEE (RERFRRKENBAR) &

(2)  the Group
REE

Principal terms

On 24 November 2022, the Group has entered into a framework
agreement with Suzhou Xiongze Packaging Co., Ltd. (&r/N7#

BEER AT
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed

) (“Suzhou Xiongze”) (the “Products Purchasing

to purchase packaging and ancillary materials as well as printing
materials from Suzhou Xiongze. The initial term of the Products
Purchasing Framework Agreement shall commence on the
Listing Date until 31 December 2024.

FEMRK
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Reasons for the transaction

During the three years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and
2021 and the six months ended 30 June 2022, we have been
purchasing packaging and ancillary materials as well as printing
materials from Suzhou Xiongze to satisfy our business needs in
our ordinary and usual course of business. Owing to the supplier
relationship, Suzhou Xiongze has acquired a comprehensive
understanding of our business and operational requirements
and has established a foundation for mutual trust. Taking into
account our previous procurement experience with Suzhou
Xiongze, we believe that Suzhou Xiongze is capable of fulfilling
our demands efficiently and reliably with a stable supply of
products and materials.

Amount

The total procurement amount paid by the Group to
Suzhou Xiongze for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB74.3 million, exceeding the annual cap for
2023 (i.e. RMB50.2 million). In the fourth quarter of 2023, the
Group expanded its business. In order to meet the Group’s
business needs, the packaging and ancillary materials as well as
printing materials we purchased from Suzhou Xiongze increased,
as a result, the amount exceeded the annual cap for 2023.

Annual caps

In view of the fact that the annual cap for 2023 has been
exceeded, and taking into account the Group’s business needs
in 2024 and the expected increase in the production of cosmetic
gift sets, we issued an announcement on 2 February 2024 to
revise the annual cap for the year ending on 31 December 2024
under the Products Purchasing Framework Agreement. For
details, please see the Company’s announcement on 2 February
2024.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The following table shows (i) the actual transaction amount
for the three years ended on 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023; (ii) the original annual cap under the Products Purchasing
Framework Agreement for the year ending on 31 December
2024; and (iii) the revised annual cap:

Actual transaction amount
for the year ended 31 December

BEABLFENERR LR

&

THE

TRAENEZE2021F + 20224 & 20234F
12A31BE=FENEBRRZEE ; (i)
EmRBEIELEDRIE T8 E2024F12 A31

BIEFENRFELR  RiNVEETFE

R

Original annual
cap for the
year ending

31 December

Revised Annual
Cap for the
year ending

31 December

2021 2022 2023 2024 2024
BZE2024F BZE20245F

12A31HLEEFE 12A31HLEEFE

20214 20224 20234 HRFEE LR HARERTFE LR
RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBBHET ARBBHET ARBBHET ARBBEETR ARBBEETR
44.6 28.2 74.3 55.2 110.0

Basis of caps

The proposed annual caps for procurement amount are
determined after taking into account: (i) our historical
procurement amount from Suzhou Xiongze for the year ended
31 December 2021; (ii) our expected growth in revenue; and (jii)
our expected procurement from Suzhou Xiongze remaining at a
relatively stable rate.

Listing Rules implications

Suzhou Xiongze is a company wholly owned by the husband
(the “Relative”) of Ms. Lyu Lichun (= RB4f), a sibling of Mr. Lyu
Yixiong as of the Listing Date. Having consulted with the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rule 14A.21 taking into account the
Relative’s association with Mr. Lyu, the transaction between
Suzhou Xiongze and the Group should be subject to the
connected transaction requirements.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio of the transactions
under the Products Purchasing Framework Agreement for each
of the three years ended/ending 31 December 2022, 2023 and
2024 calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules is expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%
on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the
Products Purchasing Framework Agreement are subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but
will be exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Annual Review by the Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out in note 35 to the
Financial Statements in this annual report, and are of the view
that the transactions have been entered into under the following
circumstances:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable
to the Group than terms offered to/by independent third
parties; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
those transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the Shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

For related party transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
Financial Statements which constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
the Company has complied with all the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Confirmation from the Company’s Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditors, were
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditors’ Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
(the “Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions”), the
Company’s auditors confirmed that, with respect to those
entered into during the financial year ended 31 December 2023
or before:

a. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

b. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

C. the actual transaction amount of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023
reached approximately RMB74.3 million, which exceeded
the annual cap for 2023 disclosed in the prospectus dated
12 December 2022. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 2 February 2024,

In order to avoid any recurrence of similar events in the future
and to ensure the applicable Listing Rules requirements will be
complied with going forward, the Company has taken steps to
further strengthen its internal monitoring procedures regarding
connected transactions, details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 2 February 2024.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, SHARE
CR)IF(’ETI-:'IQSNS’ WARRANTS OR SIMILAR

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not issue
any convertible securities, share options, warrants or similar rights.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is keen to taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the registered
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

HE EERESTRASR
AN R AR B R G -
HIBRIR 7 I A o 0 o
IRE

M2023F12A31H » AREEE EERER
TTHA BRAR A sk AR AR (T& BF
H BB HAIXVER) B9k - FERIRR (5 K (B 3%
FHEAREBEESKBEKAIEXVBET R8H I
EAMEANRRERAERIAE (BIEIRE
BH LB GOIE IR SOR B 1ESUR 1B A )18
WA R) - KIREBE S KA E RG] 2235215785
AZGFTl s R MEOERSRE - RIBIREST
AIBAE AR R MREESOAB T

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the

Number of Unlisted Shares/ Approximate
Description of Shares held/ H Shares percentage in
Name Shares® Nature of Interest interested (as appropriate)® the Company®
Bt/ 153 LR
HEEE=D H A% B9 49 s e RARTIH
e & A7 Fie i © EmME f& 1 28 A5t (aniEA)e WA E D e
Mr. Lyu Yixiong Unlisted Shares Beneficial interest 46,640,000(L) 23.25% 11.72%
AERERE EsE 3% EnlEn
H shares 100,800,000(L) 51.08% 25.33%
HA%
Unlisted Shares Interest in controlled 145,112,560(L) 72.33% 36.46%
corporation
I ik REEHEE R
H shares 36,000,000(L) 18.24% 9.05%
HiE
Notes: HRE
1) (L) denotes long position. 1) (LT R -
@) The calculation is based on a total of 397,957,000 Shares in issue as at 31 @) EF2023F12 31 HE #1715 4221397,957,000 A% ik
December 2023, which consists of 200,614,140 Unlisted Shares and 197,343,760 3 (2#5200,614,1400% 3 £ M5 5 197,343,760 H
H Shares. fR)FHE ©
(3) For the avoidance of doubt, both Unlisted Shares and H Shares are ordinary Shares (3) BREE  FEETMRMMHBRS BARQRRAFHE

in the share capital of the Company, and are considered as one class of Shares.
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Report of the Board of Directors

(4) As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Lyu Yixiong holds 93.33% equity interest in Shanghai
Hongyin Investment Co., Ltd. (E/BAENEEAFRARF]) (‘Hongyin Investment”),
84.15% equity interest in Shanghai Nanyin Investment Co., Ltd. (L/EMENIRER
fRA7R]) (“Nanyin Investment”), and the entire equity interest in Shanghai Kans
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (F/H@ERMEEEFIRAE]) (“Shanghai Kans”)
and Shanghai Shengyan Business Management Centre (L/8EEERIMEIEF D)
(“Shanghai Shengyan”). Therefore, Mr. Lyu Yixiong is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Hongyin Investment, Nanyin Investment, Shanghai Kans and
Shanghai Shengyan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, to the knowledge
of the Board, none of the Directors, the Supervisors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be (i) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors,
the Supervisors and chief executive of the Company were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
(iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

Employee Share Ownership Plan

We have established an employee share ownership plan (‘ESOP”)
since 2016 to attract and retain the talents, to provide incentives that
align the interests of shareholders, the Company and employees, and
to facilitate the long-term development of the Company. The terms
of the ESOP are not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
ESOP.

As at 31 December 2023, all the Shares underlying the ESOP have
been issued and granted, and to the extent that there is any change
to the grants under the ESOP after the Listing, the Company will
comply with the applicable Listing Rules (including the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules applicable to grants to
connected persons, if any).
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ESOP Platforms

There are three employee share ownership platforms (the “ESOP
Platforms”) for the ESOP, namely (i) Hongyin Investment, (i) Nanyin
Investment and (i) Shanghai Chengyin.

As at 31 December 2023, Hongyin Investment and Nanyin Investment
holds 27.14% and 15.30% equity interest in the Company,
respectively, and Shanghai Chengyin holds 5.00% equity interest in
Nanyin Investment.

Participants of the ESOP (the “ESOP Participants” and each an
“ESOP Participant”) shall indirectly hold equity interest in the
Company through holding shares of Hongyin Investment, Nanyin
Investment or Shanghai Chengyin transferred by Mr. Lyu Yixiong
pursuant to the ESOP.

Set out below is the shareholding structure of the ESOP platforms as
at 31 December 2023:

° Hongyin Investment: Hongyin Investment is a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 11
February 2015 and is an incentive platform for employees of
our Group who hold shares in Hongyin Investment. Hongyin
Investment is held by (i) Mr. Lyu Yixiong, our executive Director,
as to 93.33%, (i) Ms. Luo Yan (& #E), our executive Director, as
to 1.67%. The remaining 2.00% and 3.00% equity interests in
Hongyin Investment are held by three employees of the Group
and three former employees of the Group, respectively.

° Nanyin Investment. Nanyin Investment is a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on 11 February 2015 and
is an incentive platform for employees of our Group who hold
shares in Nanyin Investment. Nanyin Investment is held by (i) Mr.
Lyu Yixiong, our executive Director, as to 84.15%, (i) Mr. Feng
Yifeng (5 —I&), our executive Director, as to 1.77%, (i) Ms.
Song Yang (R7¥), our executive Director, as to 1.77%, (iv) Mr.
Li Tao (ZF), Ms. Shi Tenghua (JERTE), Ms. Cao Ying (B EL),
our Supervisors, as to 0.06%, 0.59% and 0.18%, respectively,
and (v) Shanghai Chengyin, another incentive platform, as to
5.00%. The remaining 3.58%, 1.89% and 1.00% equity interests
in Nanyin Investment are held by 15 employees of the Group, 2
former employees of the Group, and Ms. Lyu Lichun (R E4%), a
sibling of Mr. Lyu Yixiong, respectively.
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° Shanghai Chengyin: Shanghai Chengyin is a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on 8 February 2021 and is an
incentive platform for employees of our Group who hold shares
in Shanghai Chengyin. Shanghai Chengyin is held by Mr. Lyu
Yixiong, our executive Director, as to 81.07%, and the remaining
18.93% equity interests in Shanghai Chengyin is held by 16
employees of the Group.

The specific terms and conditions of the ESOP for each ESOP
Participant is subject to the agreement entered into between (i) the
relevant ESOP Platforms, (i) Mr. Lyu Yixiong and (iii) the relevant
ESOP Participants.

Shares and Share Price Granted under the ESOP

On 20 July 2016, respective agreements were entered into between
Hongyin Investment, Mr. Lyu Yixiong and the relevant ESOP
Participants, pursuant to which the relevant equity interest in Hongyin
Investment was transferred to eligible grantees in their capacity as
employees of the Group. The price per share granted to each ESOP
Participant under the ESOP is RMB1.00 and each ESOP Participant
shall pay the relevant price to Mr. Lyu Yixiong on the date of transfer.
The price per share was determined based on the registered share
capital per share of relevant ESOP Platforms. Depending on the
clauses of each agreement, some of the ESOP Participants are not
allowed to transfer or in any way dispose of the shares for a period of
four (4) or five (5) years commencing on the date when the registration
of the transfer of equity interest is completed. Between March 2021
and July 2022, respective agreements were entered into between
Nanyin Investment or Shanghai Chengyin (as the case may be), Mr.
Lyu Yixiong and the relevant ESOP Participants, pursuant to which the
relevant equity interest in Nanyin Investment or Shanghai Chengyin
was transferred to eligible grantees in their capacity as employees
of the Group. The price per share granted to each ESOP Participant
under the ESOP is RMB1.00 and each ESOP Participant shall pay the
relevant price to Mr. Lyu Yixiong on the date of transfer of the equity
interest. The price per share was determined based on the registered
share capital per share of relevant ESOP Platforms. Depending on the
clauses of each agreement, some of the ESOP Participants are not
allowed to transfer or in any way dispose of the shares for a period
of four (4) years commencing on 1 January 2021 or for a period of
two and a half (2.5) years or four (4) years commencing on 1 July
2022, respectively. Under the ESOP, there is no maximum entitlement
limitation for the ESOP Participants. All underlying shares under
the ESOP have been issued to ESOP Participants and there is no
provision under the ESOP and relevant agreements in respect of the
remaining life of the ESOP.
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Repurchase of Shares Granted

Under the following circumstances, Mr. Lyu Yixiong has the right to

purchase the shares transferred under the ESOP at the grant price of
RMB1.00 per share:

(i

(i)

(i)

88

the termination of the ESOP Participant’s employment
relationship with the Company or any of its subsidiaries for any
reasons during the share transfer restriction period (if any) as
specified in the agreements entered into between the relevant
ESOP Platforms, Mr. Lyu Yixiong and the relevant ESOP
Participants;

the transfer, disposal, or pledge of the shares by the ESOP
Participant during the share transfer restriction period (if any)
as specified in the agreements entered into between the
relevant ESOP Platforms, Mr. Lyu Yixiong and the relevant
ESOP Participants without the approval of the relevant ESOP
Platforms; or

any violation of law, breach of professional ethics, confidential

information leakage, corruption or other malpractices of the
ESOP Participant.
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Movements of Awards under the ESOP

Unvested Unvested

ESEWE
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Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed

awards  awards at of during the during the during the during the

at the 31 December Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting

Listing Date 2023 Period Period Period Period
20235
M Em A 12H31H REEEE AREHE  AREHE RAREHE
Category of grantees @ AR BENRE KEBRNEE BEEL ERE B B R
Directors: =
Lyu Yixiong BRI 0 0 0 0 0 0
Luo Yan (Z#) B 0 0 0 0 0 0
Feng Yifeng & 0 0 0 0 0 0
Song Yang RF 0 0 0 0 0 0
Li Hangiong TRE 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sun Hao 7= 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leung Ho Sun Wilson &5 0 0 0 0 0 0
Luo Yan (Z ) I 0 0 0 0 0 0
Liu'Yi 213 0 0 0 0 0 0
Five highest paid EEES
individuals FMA L 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other grantees HthZEA 0

The RSU Scheme

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the
RSU Scheme at the Second 2023 EGM held on 14 December 2023
(the “Adoption Date”) for the purpose of attracting new talents and
retaining employees whose contributions are important to the long-
term growth and success of the Group, recognising and rewarding
Employee Participants for their contributions to the Group, providing
Employee Participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and encouraging Employee Participants to
further contribute to the Company and work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.
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Employee Participants

Employee Participants who may participate in the RSU Scheme
include any director (executive Directors or non-executive Directors
but does not include independent non-executive Directors), member
of the management team, senior management and current employee
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including any persons who
are granted Share Awards under the RSU Scheme as an inducement
to enter into employment contracts with these companies). The above
is subject to the Board’s consideration, in its sole discretion, that
the Employee Participants have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

Maximum Number of RSUs

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all
options and awards involving issue of new Shares that may be
granted under the RSU Scheme and any other share scheme(s)
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date, being
39,795,790 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”, representing 10%
of the total number of Shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of this annual report), unless otherwise permitted by the Listing Rules
or the Company obtains the approval of its Shareholders to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Based on the Company’s estimates, the total number of new Shares
to be issued under the RSU Scheme by 31 December 2027 is
expected to be approximately 1% of the total number of Shares
issued as at the Adoption Date (and not more than 2%). The actual
grant of the RSU and the issuance of the underlying shares may vary
and will be reviewed by the Company’s Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee in accordance with its terms of reference in due course.
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Maximum Entitlement to Each Employee Participant

According to the RSU Scheme, there are no restrictions on the
maximum entitlement of Share Awards to be granted to an Employee
Participant (save for any requirements under the Listing Rules).

Where any grant of options or Share Awards to an Employee
Participant except for a Director (other than an independent non-
executive Director) or chief executive of the Company (or any of
their associates), would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
in respect of all options and share awards granted to such person
(excluding any options and Share Awards lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the RSU Scheme) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue (the 1% individual limit), such grant
must be separately approved by Shareholders in general meeting with
such Employee Participant and his/her close associates (or associates
if the participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

Where any grant of Share Awards (excluding grant of options) to a
Director (other than an independent non-executive Director) or chief
executive of the Company (or any of their associates) would result in
the number of Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all awards
involving issue of new Shares already granted under the RSU Scheme
and any other share scheme(s) of the Company (excluding any awards
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the RSU Scheme or any other
share scheme(s) of the Company) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant representing in
aggregate over 0.1% (or such other higher percentage as may from
time to time be specified by the Stock Exchange) of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the Date of Grant, such further grant of Share
Awards shall be subject to prior approval by the Shareholders (voting
by way of poll) in general meeting.
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Where any grant of options or Share Awards to a substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective associates)
would result in the number of Shares issued and to be issued in
respect of all options and awards involving issue of new Shares
already granted under the RSU Scheme and any other share
scheme(s) of the Company (excluding any awards lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other share
scheme(s) of the Company) to such person in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant representing in aggregate
over 0.1% (or such other higher percentage as may from time to time
be specified by the Stock Exchange) of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the Date of Grant, such further grant of Share Awards shall
be subject to prior approval by the Shareholders (voting by way of
poll) in general meeting.

Duration

Unless early termination of the RSU Scheme pursuant to the RSU
Scheme Rules, the RSU Scheme shall be valid and effective for the
Award Period (i.e. the period from the date of approval of the RSU
Scheme by the Shareholders to the Business Day immediately before
the expiry of the tenth (10th) anniversary of the date of approval of the
RSU Scheme by the Shareholders) (after which no further RSUs will be
granted or accepted), and thereafter for so long as there are any non-
vested RSUs granted and accepted hereunder prior to the expiration
of the RSU Scheme, in order to give effect to the vesting of such RSU
or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the RSU Scheme Rules.

As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the RSU Scheme is
approximately nine years and eight months.
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Vesting period

Save for the circumstances described below, the vesting period in
respect of any Share Award granted shall be no less than 12 months
from (and including) the Date of Grant. Share Awards granted to an
Employee Participant may be subject to a shorter vesting period in
the following circumstances at the sole discretion of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee: (i) grants of “make-whole” Share Awards
to new joiners to replace the share awards or options forfeited when
leaving their previous employers; (i) grants that are made in batches
during a year for administrative or compliance reasons, which include
Share Awards that should have been granted earlier if not for such
administrative or compliance reasons but end up having to wait for a
subsequent batch. In such case, the vesting period may be shorter
to reflect the time from which the Share Award would have been
granted; (i) grants with a mixed or accelerated vesting schedule
such as where the Share Awards may vest evenly over a period of
12 months, or where the Share Awards may vest by several batches
with the first batch vesting within 12 months of the Date of Grant and
the last batch vesting 12 months after the Date of Grant; (iv) grants
with performance-based vesting conditions provided in the Scheme or
as specified in the Offer documentation in lieu of time-based vesting
criteria; and (v) grants with a total vesting and holding period of more
than 12 months.

Purchase price of RSUs

A Grantee to whom a RSU shall be granted under the RSU Scheme
is required to pay RMB1.00 (per RSU) for any grant or purchase
price to the Company to purchase each RSU underlying a Share
Award granted, unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion or as required by applicable law. The purchase price of
RMB1.00 is determined with reference to the nominal value of the
Shares. Considering that the Employee Participants have contributed
or will contribute to the Group, the Board is of the view that the
nominal consideration of RMB1.00 (instead of any lower or higher
amount) to be paid by each Employee Participant for purchasing
each RSU is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board considers that such
arrangement aligns with the purpose of the RSU Scheme where the
Share Awards are intended to be granted to the Employee Participants
to reward their contributions to the Group.
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Performance targets and clawback mechanism

Vesting of Share Award shall be subject to the performance
targets, if any, to be satisfied by the Grantees as determined
by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee from time to
time. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee shall have the
authority, after the grant of any Share Award which is performance-
linked, to make fair and reasonable adjustments to the prescribed
performance targets during the vesting period if there is a change
in circumstances, provided that any such adjustments shall be less
onerous than the prescribed performance targets and are considered
fair and reasonable by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.
The performance targets may include the attainment of program
milestones and market capitalisation milestones by the Group, which
may vary among the Grantees. The Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee will conduct assessment from time to time by comparing
the performance with the pre-set targets to determine whether
such targets and the extents to which have been met. If, after the
assessment, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee determines
that any prescribed performance targets have not been met, the
unvested Share Award shall lapse automatically. For the avoidance
of doubt, the performance targets are not applicable to independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The RSU Scheme was considered and passed at the Second 2023
EGM of the Company. The Date of Grant of the RSU Scheme shall be
further determined by the Board. For details of the RSU Scheme of
the Company, please refer to the notice dated 23 November 2023 and
the circular and the announcement dated 24 November 2023 issued
by the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, no RSUs had been granted or agreed to be
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the RSU Scheme.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following persons/
entities had an interest or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or are directly and indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company (the interests in
Shares and/or short positions, if any, disclosed herein are in addition
to those disclosed in respect of the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company):
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEEWE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in the Prospectus,
none of the Directors or Controlling Shareholders or any of their
respective associates has any interests in any business that competes
or may compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (including contract of significance for the
provision of services) was entered into between the Company or its
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no purchase,
sale or redemption of any listed securities of the Company by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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Report of the Board of Directors

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the PRC laws, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules at all time as of the
date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code on the Stock Exchange as the basis of the
Company’s corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that during the Reporting Period, the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code, except for Code Provision
C.2.1 described in the Corporate Governance Report.

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found
in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 39 to 66 of
this annual report.
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Report of the Board of Directors
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C8 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and Supervisors.

The Board is pleased to confirm that, after making specific enquiries
with all Directors and Supervisors, all Directors and Supervisors have
fully complied with the standards required according to the Model
Code set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. In 2023, the Group has won the “Social
Responsibility Pioneer Award (tt& & {T% 8 AX48)" granted by the
Organizing Committee of the 12th Public Welfare Festival (5+—/&
N#5ER); the “2023 Virtuous Enterprise Award (2023FEHEEDE K
#%)” issued by Jiemian News (FRHE#H), a news media in the PRC;
the “EDGE AWARDS Global Innovation Selection-ESG Innovative
Enterprise of the Year (EDGE AWARDS & Bkl 51:& - &£ EESGAI# b
%¥)" issued by TMTPost (§X#%8), a TMT media in the PRC; the “8th
Zhitong Finance Best ESG Company Award (5 /\ /&8 @ & & EESG
A F)4%)” issued by Zhitong Finance (£ @814%), a finance media in the
PRC; and the “ESG Pioneer Award (ESG 4t #£4¥)” issued by CailianShe
(BfB4t), a finance media in the PRC ' which reflected our strong
sense of social responsibility. The Group has not noted any material
non-compliance with all relevant laws and regulations in relation
to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment, anti-corruption and the environment. The Group
understands that a better future depends on everyone’s participation
and contribution. The Group has encouraged employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and
social activities which benefit the community as a whole. Further,
the Group has adopted policies, charters and code of conducts to
govern the environmental, social and governance (ESG) aspects of
our day-to-day operations, ranging from reducing energy and water
consumption caused by our operations, health and work safety,
and social contribution to environmental protection and corporate
governance. The Group endeavours to maintain the relationships
with its employees, suppliers and customers to ensure sustainable
development. For further details of the Group’s ESG policies and
performance, compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
relationship with its employees, suppliers and customers, please refer
to our standalone Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report is
published in electronic form only at the same time on the websites of
the Company at www.chicmaxgroup.com under the section “Investor
Relations” and the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk. If you wish
to receive a printed copy of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, you may submit your request to the Hong Kong H Share
Registrar by post at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that various stakeholders including employees,
customers, suppliers and other other stakeholders are key to the
Group’s success. The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability
through engaging, collaborating, and cultivating strong relationship
with them.

The Group believes that it is vital to attract, recruit and retain quality
employees. To maintain the quality, knowledge and skill levels of
the Group’s workforce, the Group provides employees with periodic
training, including introductory training for new employees, technical
training, professional and management training and health and safety
training. The Group believes that it maintains a good relationship with
its employees and the Group did not experience any significant labor
disputes or any difficulty in recruiting staff for its operations.

We strive to establish long-term, reliable and mutually beneficial
cooperative relationship with our suppliers. We make all-out efforts
to ensure that all suppliers deliver high-quality raw materials and that
they are on the same page with us in terms of providing high-quality
products to customers. We select suppliers in a prudent manner
and assess their performance based on factors, including but not
limited to quality, cost, delivery and services, in order to make sure
that their quality standards are in line with the Group’s requirements.
Meanwhile, we also encourage suppliers to improve environmental,
social and governance performance with us with a goal to grow and
develop together.

A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality. The Group is in
good relationship with its employees, suppliers and customers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.
For details of an account of the Company’s key relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a significant
impact on the Company is set out in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report.
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Report of the Board of Directors
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement during the year ended 31 December
2023.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group had not made any loan or provided any
guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, Supervisors,
senior management of the Company, the Controlling Shareholders or
their respective connected persons.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company confirmed that it had received the annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that the independent non-executive Directors
remain independent during the year ended 31 December 2023 in
accordance with the relevant requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on 30 May 2024. Shareholders should refer to
details regarding the AGM in the circular of the Company dated 25
April 2024 and the notice of meeting and form of proxy accompanying
thereto.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM to be held on 30 May 2024, the register of members will
be closed from Monday, 27 May 2024 to Thursday, 30 May 2024,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Hong Kong H Share Registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong, for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 May 2024.

On the assumption that the resolution for declaring the final dividend
is duly passed at the AGM, the register of members will be closed
from Wednesday, 5 June 2024 to Friday, 7 June 2024, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to qualify for entitlement to the final dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s H Share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (for
holders of H shares) before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 June 2024.

AUDITORS

There has been no change in auditors since the Listing Date. A
resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Ernst & Young, is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

DONATION

Approximately RMB2.5 million of charitable or other donations were
made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.
For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEEWE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 23 February 2024, the Board announced that the Company has
recently received notifications from certain minority shareholders
in respect of the conversion of an aggregate of 8,861,580 unlisted
shares of the Company (the “Unlisted Shares”) into H shares (the “H
Shares”), representing approximately 2.23% of the total share capital
of the Company. The Company has submitted an application (the
“Application”) to the CSRC on 23 February 2024 in respect of the
conversion of the Unlisted Shares into H Shares. Upon obtaining all
the relevant approvals (including the approvals from the CSRC and
the Stock Exchange) and having complied with all the applicable laws,
regulations and rules, such Unlisted Shares will be converted into H
Shares, and the Company will apply for the listing of and permission
to deal in such H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Conversion and Listing”). As at the date of this report, the
Company has not received approval from the CSRC in respect of the
Application and the details of implementation plan of the Conversion
and Listing have not been finalised. For details, please refer to the
announcement dated 23 February 2024 of the Company.

Best regards,

Lyu Yixiong

Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EEERtEmBROERAR

Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd.

Shanghai, the PRC
21 March 2024
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

The supervisory committee of Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd.

(the “Supervisory Committee”) exercises its duties independently, with

a dedicated and diligent attitude, in accordance with the Company

Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association, the Rules of Procedures

of the Supervisory Committee and relevant laws and regulations. From

the perspective of safeguarding the interests of the Company and

the rights and interests of shareholders, the Supervisory Committee

performs its supervisory duties earnestly to promote the further

improvement of the corporate governance structure of the Company.

1.

CONSIDERATION BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE IN 2023

On 30 March 2023, the Company held the sixth meeting of
the First Session of the Supervisory Committee, at which the
“Proposal on the Work Report of the Supervisory Committee
in 2022”, “Proposal on the Audited Combined Financial
Statements, Results Announcement and Annual Report of the
Group for the Year Ended 31 December 2022”, “Proposal on the

»oo«

2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report”, “Proposal
on 2022 Final Financial Report and 2023 Financial Budget
Report”, “Proposal on Supervisors Remuneration”, “Proposal
on the Annual Profit Distribution in 2022” and “Proposal on
the Re-appointment of Accounting Firm” were considered and

approved.

On 30 August 2023, the Company held the seventh meeting of
the First Session of the Supervisory Committee, at which the
“Proposal on the Unaudited Combined Financial Statements,
Results Announcement and Interim Report of the Group
for the Six Months Ended 30 June 2023”, “Proposal on the
Amendments to the Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory
Committee of Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd.” and
“Proposal on Interim Profit Distribution in 2023” were considered
and approved.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEgHnE

2.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE OF THE
COMPANY IN 2023

The Supervisory Committee of the Company performed its
duties and responsibilities, attended the Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company, and supervised the regulated
operation, production and operation, financial position and the
performance of duties by the Directors and senior management
of the Company, in accordance with the laws and regulations
such as the Company Law of the PRC and the corporate
systems such as the Articles of Association and the Rules of
Procedures of the Supervisory Committee in 2023.

The Supervisory Committee is of the view that the Board of
the Company is well operated, makes reasonable decisions
and follows lawful procedures, and earnestly implements the
resolutions of the general meeting, and there is no violation of
laws, regulations or the Articles of Association or act against the
interests of the Company and its shareholders by the Directors
and senior management of the Company in the performance of
their duties for the Company. The Company’s financial operation
is regular with complete systems. The Company has established
a relatively sound internal control system in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
and there is no any illegal or non-compliant act.

WORK PLAN OF SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE FOR 2024

In 2024, the Supervisory Committee will continue to exercise due
diligence in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the work plan is as follows:

(1)  The Supervisory Committee will continue to strengthen its
supervisory functions and perform its duties earnestly, hold
regular meetings of the Supervisory Committee and attend
the Board meetings and general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the law, supervise the legality of various
decision-making procedures, supervise the Board and
senior management in accordance with the law, promote
the further improvement of the corporate governance
structure of the Company, prevent acts against the
interests of the Company, protect the legitimate interests
of the Company and all shareholders, and strive to
improve the standard of corporate governance and regular
operation.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

(2)  The Supervisory Committee will continue to focus on
the risk management of the Company, monitor the legal
compliance of the Company, and actively supervise
the construction and effective operation of the internal
management control system to effectively reduce
operational risks and improve operational efficiency.

(3)  The Supervisory Committee will examine the financial
position of the Company and focus on significant financial
matters, such as the preparation and disclosure of financial
reports and the application of accounting standards, to
continuously deepen its supervision on the Company’s
financial operation.

(4) The Supervisory Committee will further enhance the
ability of the Supervisory Committee to perform its
duties and strengthen its knowledge of various laws and
regulations, corporate governance, financial and internal
control management to better protect the interests of the
Company and all Shareholders.

Best regards,

Li Tao

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
EEEXRCHRRDERAR
Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd.

Shanghai, the PRC
21 March 2024
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Independent auditor’s report

18 M A% A R

e

Ernst & Young K EETEN RIS Tel & 5%: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place B BRI EE 979 5 Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
§* 979 King's Road K —Z 07 12 ey.com
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report B ZEERE

To the shareholders of Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shanghai
Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 240, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report
PRV % GRS

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREETSER

BARETSEIR ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HMES AR IEERET SR

Loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables

B EU IR B RRE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to RMB317,448,000 and the
corresponding loss allowance for trade receivables for
the year then ended amounted to RMB12,005,000, which
were material to the consolidated financial statements.
R2023F12A31H  ESZRKRFEREERARE
317,448,000t M B ZZ H IFFENE SR FIBEHENES
BERHRARKE12,005,0007T + ZEHEHEEENGE N
BHRERMEBERK -

Under IFRS 9, the loss allowance for trade receivables is
based on expected credit loss (“ECL”") approach.

B RWFIEEEEESREERY B REENEIFTR
EWIEMEEEE ([ABEEEE]) AR -

In developing the loss allowance, the ECL rates of trade
receivables assessed individually are determined based
on corresponding external default data of the customers,
their repayment and default histories and on-going
business relationship with them by the management. For
trade receivables assessed collectively, the ECL rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experienced.
The loss rates are then adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
REEEBEER - ERFENE SEREHIERBEEER
ETHERBREFPHBRIIMBENEE  RENERIE
HEL AR BRFEENHEEXBHEMNET - HEATENE
SRYGKRIENS - BAEEEEXDRBINEEBEMNE
Eo BAXREESERRAE  URMEARATEEER - 0
FEEPENEBRFEE NN EBKBERE -

Our procedures in relation to assessment of ECLs of trade
and bills receivables included:

BB E P REKFE RERE BN TE R EE BRETH
B

- Discussed with the management about the credit
policy of the Group and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors involved in the loss allowance estimation
such as subjectivity;
HEBEIRESENEERE - WHBBEEMH
NHEE MR E RBBEEE LT REE b ERR
B= (PIAEEM) #KF - FHEE R R R ) A
[BLFz

- Understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls and assessment processes of estimating
ECL allowance for trade receivables;
THREHEERBYHEE S RYGKIENTEREEE
BREE ARG LT EE

- Evaluated the basis the management used to

determine different credit risk portfolios;
A EREERAREE NRAEERRASHELE
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRETSER

Independent auditor’s report
B iz BN

BARREITSER (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RO ET O EERERENSE

Loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables (Continued)

B RNH IR EE R ()

The estimation of relevant ECL involves significant
judgement and subjective assumptions of the management
of the Group such as the assessment of the correlation
among historical observed default rates and forecast
economic conditions. As a result, we identified the
assessment of provision of trade receivables of the Group
as a key audit matter.
HENTEREEFENAE YR EREEIE BN ERHE X
FTERR (DIanE B BV R PS8 O X R IR RIS B IR 2 [
BEM TR - Bt - MK ERENE 5 RIFIE
BB LT AT EE -

Details are set out in note 2.4, note 3 and note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosures.
HEEENFBENGAMBHREWE2.4 - WE3 R
22 0

- Analysed and tested the trade receivables ageing
profiles adopted in the collective assessment;
AWM EAHEBTEMRANE S ERFIERER T
5

- Evaluated management’s judgements involved in the
determination of loss allowance of trade receivables,
including the historical experience and forward-
looking adjustments;

SHEE R EN T 8 5 R WKIE B R ER S L a) )
B BREELEBRRAELEARE

- Assessed the related parameters used by the Group
in ECL estimation by comparing with the underlying
historical and external data;
iR BRI R RN BURETTHE - FIAERE
PG TRREEBERERNER2E

- Evaluated the outcome of prior year’s ECL allowance
by testing, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables by checking to
relevant bank receipt records;

BRMME AR RTYVORR S - RSB 5 REIEY
BEFEBR L -FENEREEBERED
MR

- Reviewed the related disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

BELRA VMR TS AR E

o
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Independent auditor’s report
PRV % GRS

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRETSER

BARETSEIR ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RO ET O EERERENSE

Provision for impairment of inventories

FE R ER

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
inventories amounted to RMB510,757,000 and the
corresponding provision for inventories for the year then
ended amounted to RMB47,468,000, which were material
to the consolidated financial statements.

K2023F12 A31H - FEREERARES10,757,0007T
EEEZAIEFENFERERBASAREA7,468,0007T -
ZEHEHGEAMBHREAMEBERX

Significant judgement is required in assessing the
appropriate level of the provision for slow moving
and/or obsolete inventory. Such judgements include
management’s expectations of forecast inventory demand,
product expiry dates and plans to dispose of inventories
that are close to expiry. As a result, we identified the
provisioning for slow moving and obsolete inventories as a
key audit matter.

RiEEEER  SREFEREBENBEE KTR - AiED
BBAHE - ARG BEEEBHENFTESFRONEY &
mAE A REEEA MM FENTE o Bt - HRMEEE
HERREFERFHRTE RARETEE -

Details are set out in note 2.4, note 3 and note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosures.
HERENFBEIEN G BEHRERNT2.4 « 3 R
21 °

Our procedures in relation to assessment of provision of
inventories included:

BT EREETHIZEF B

- Understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls and assessment processes of provision for

inventories;
TEHEFEBEERENABZEG RIFEREHT R
FE

- Obtained the calculation of the provision for
inventories prepared by the management of
the Group, evaluated the ageing information of
inventories used in the calculation by checking
relevant supporting documents;
EREEEERERUENTREBIES  BikE
IERER XA E R AN FERIRES

- Compared the estimated selling prices of inventories
in the calculation to their recent or subsequent
selling price, on a sample basis, by checking
invoices;
BAREESE B ERTOFEMRTSERTHN
B EEEETHRLE

- Assessed the provision amount by recalculating the
net realizable value on a sample basis independently,
and comparing it with the cost of inventories of the
Group;

BB MR BN EAERFE  WHESENT
BERAMLE - FHEREDRE

- Reviewed the related disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

BLRAVHEMAM T BRI RKE -
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
BARETEIE

Independent auditor’s report
B iz BN

BARETSEIR ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BT REERERENSE

Recognition of deferred tax assets

AL H B E AR

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of deferred tax
assets amounted to RMB122,766,000, which were
material to the consolidated financial statements.
M2023%F12A31H  BEMEHREERBRARE
122,766,0007T * ZBEH G SV BHRRMEEERX -

The deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits would be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and
tax losses can be utilized. The process of estimating the
amount and timing of future taxable profits is complex and
involves estimates and judgements that would be affected
by future operations, tax regulations, market or economic
conditions. As a result, we identified the recognition of
deferred tax assets as a key audit matter.

IRAE IR & 2E ) W RR LA S B FE ER TN AT A DA R SH AT HRUES
I ERBRIABERR o 5 RRERT TR BEE M
B BIZRAEME - PRI GIIRREE  BUCEHR - ™
SR AOEAR SR S B B i ET A RIET o Eitt - FAPIIGIELER K
BENERRT RERETEE -

Details are set out in note 2.4, note 3 and note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosures.
HEEENFBEN G BEHREWNE2.4 - WE3 R
20~

- Discussed with the management about the business

- Obtained the future profit forecasts prepared by

Our procedures in relation to assessment the recognition
of deferred tax assets included:
BB TEREEREHEENERETNRFRE

- Understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls and assessment processes of recognition of
deferred tax assets;

TR R E IR B N AR R ) R R R IE A I B E Y
FHEIZFE

plans of the Group approved by those charged with
governance;
HERBENRAETEAEAENESEEBTE

the management, evaluated the appropriateness of
the parameters used in the forecasts by comparing
with the historical information of the Group and the
industry;

EISEEERENARRABEIEDN  BBEEEERT
ENRELESETHR  FHBATRERN2HES

/|L\'*é.‘--
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Independent auditor’s report
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Key audit matters (Continued)

BARREITSER (&

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERETEIR BT REERERENSE

Recognition of deferred tax assets (Continued)

EAL B ENI R (.

Performed sensitivity analysis of the parameters used

in the forecasts;
TR AN EEITERRMEDT

Obtained the calculation of the deferred tax assets
prepared by the management, recalculated the
deferred tax assets and compared the results;
ERERERUNBELCAESHEETES  EHitHE
RIEFTIS T E BT LB A

Reviewed the related disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEHA VMR M P HERKE
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Other information included in the

Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report
PRV % GRS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melEmK

Year ended 31 December 2023

2 2202312 31 HIFF/E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it  AR®BFTR ARBTT

Revenue ON 5 4,190,727 2,675,331
Cost of sales SHE KR (1,171,275) (975,699)
Gross profit EF 3,019,452 1,699,632
Other income and gains E U A RS 6 156,496 122,768
Selling and distribution expenses HE ko iER (2,240,332)  (1,257,691)
Administrative expenses FTERBA 2 (209,609) (223,388)
Research and development costs A AR (125,814) (110,283)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net SRMEERBEREETE 7 15,252 (12,054)
Other expenses HEmMx 6 (34,000) (43,049)
Finance costs IR IDN 8 (16,227) (20,474)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE AT E TR K &8

Joint venture BEDE (4,652) -

Associates =N (1,353) (1,229)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRAE A1 R 7 559,213 154,232
Income tax expense FrisHi X 11 (97,550) (17,152)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 461,663 137,080
Attributable to: A& 7 e

Owners of the parent [SYNEIEFEPN 461,104 147,104

Non-controlling interests FEVERR A 2 559 (10,024)

461,663 137,080

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BRAREBEREEA

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF B RER

THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HEAR RS
— For profit for the year — F AN HE 13 RMB1.16 RMBO0.41

AR®1.16t ARKE0.417T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meETHWRR

Year ended 31 December 2023
B2 20239F 12 31 HILFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETET

Profit for the year FRFE 461,663 137,080
Other comprehensive income HibZEUWA
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified RHEEEAMAIEET D BE BN

to profit or loss in subsequent periods: H2mEEE -
Exchange differences on translation of MEEINEIBHE R =58

foreign operations (4,138) (955)
Net other comprehensive loss that REZIEREEF S BEEEEN

may be reclassified to profit or Hitt 2 EE BT

loss in subsequent periods (4,138) (955)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHEHKRALZE 457,525 136,125
Attributable to: LU % 75 FEfh -

Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZ PPN 456,966 146,149

Non-controlling interests FEEAR AR 559 (10,024)

457,525 136,125
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BIFBAMR R

n‘/-ﬁ
31 December 2023
2023412431 A
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B eE ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE 14 594,412 601,251
Investment properties "EME 15 8,065 9,286
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets  JEfFIE - Hth flE U 7718 Kz
Em&EE 23 18,950 16,748
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 131,171 144,494
Other intangible assets HivmEEE 17 16,860 19,424
Investment in a joint venture NEEPENTE 18 2,698 -
Investments in associates REE RN ENIRE 19 64,184 1,797
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IZAFEFT ABENESREE 24 101,230 -
Deferred tax assets RERRIBE E 20 112,941 100,501
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 1,050,511 893,501
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories ﬁé 21 510,757 518,113
Trade and bills receivables B SRR KRR EE 22 321,246 373,985
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets  FEfTFRIE « b fE U FUIE &
Hih &&= 23 331,812 200,860
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss #HAFEF ABHFNERIEE 24 216,812 -
Pledged deposits RGeS 25 - 11,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 25 697,689 1,147,708
Total current assets RBEERE 2,078,316 2 252,166
CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBARE
Trade payables B SR RIE 26 518,613 424,150
Other payables and accruals Hi e RE ke &R 27 266,824 235,722
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERIT REAERK 28 100,008 590,278
Lease liabilities HEamE 16 29,763 26,890
Tax payable FERTREIE 136,198 36,690
Total current liabilities mBBERE 1,051,406 1,313,730
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,026,910 938,436
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERASAR 2,077,421 1,831,937
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 35,803 50,939
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AT BRTT R E A 1E K 28 - 60,089
Other payables HAth fE T FIE 27 12,391 14,264
Total non-current liabilities B e DR =Rk 48,194 125,292
Net assets AEFE 2,029,227 1,706,645
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRAREEAELER
Share capital &N 29 397,958 396,958
Reserves 1 31 1,611,078 1,308,128
2,009,036 1,705,086
Non-controlling interests JEVERR M = 20,191 1,559
Total equity 1B 2,029,227 1,706,645

Lyu Yixiong @&

Feng Yifeng /& —I&

Director &%

Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FARRRDE

Year ended 31 December 2023

/F20234F 12 531 HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAAREARL
Share-based Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Share  payment Capital reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reseve*  reserve’ funds*  reserve’ profits* Total interests equity
St
AEEN EE HE
Re  RiER AREE  ENER GBES  REER  REAR Gt FBRER  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTR  ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARMTR  ARETr  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
(note 29)  (note 29) (note 31)  (note31)  (note 31)
(W) (o9) (Wes1) (W) (Wisn)
At1 January 2023 H0BE1A1A 396,958 172,386 194,083 119,679 40,207 (707 188980 1,705,086 1,959 1,706,645
Proft for the year ERE - - - - - - e104 41,104 559 461,663
Other comprehensive income for the year: ERER2ERA -
Exchange difierences reated to foregn operations /M E AR
EXZE - - - - - (4138) - (4.138) - (4,138)
Total comprehensive incomef{oss) for the year  ERZEWA /(B
g - - - - - (4138) 461,104 456966 559 457,525
Contibution from non- controling shareholders FERRRLE - - - - - - - - 18,780 18,780
Acquiston of non-controling nterests WEsnER - - - 0 - - - 0 (107) -
Final 2022 dividend declared ERMN0ERSRE - - - - - - (99489 (99489) - (99489)
interim 2023 iidend AR - - - - - -y s )
Issuance of ordinary shares relating to inifial public ~~ EIEENLERERT
offering (note 29] fE 8k () 100 20m - - 5 - - oam - am
Share issue expenses RivEfRxR - (1,304) - - - - - (1% - (1%
Fquity-settled share-based compensation EREERNAERY
il - - 4975 - - - - 4,975 5 4,975
Transfer fiom retained profts BREfIEER - - - - 488 - (8 - - -
At 31 December 2023 HOBE12F3 B W TN 19908 1036 465 (1085  MB655 2090 2091 20820
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

fk)’\,ﬁ%@)%

;:efa; ended 31 December 2023
EF2023%F 1231 HIFF/E
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRTEEARE
Share-based Stautory  Exchange Non-
Share Share payment Capital reseve  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
captal  premum™  resenve”  resenve” funds® reserve” profits” Totdl  interests equiy
Wit
RERA E IE
BE o RBRE  RRER  ERER  BRES  RBRE  REWR g smERER  EASE
RVBOO  RMBOO0  RWBOOO  RMBOO0  RWB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00
MRETR ARMTR  ARETT ABETR AR®TR  ARETR ARMTT ARETR ARBTR  ARETR
(ote29)  {note 29) (note81)  [note81)  (note 31)
(o) (o) (s)  (Wast)  (WiEs)
At 1 January 2022 202251418 360,000 - 194969 119,679 30,556 6752 251521 949979 5059 995038
Profitloss) for the year ERHE/ (58 - - - - - ST 4704 (10024 137,080
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREf2ENA:
Exchange diferences reated to foregn operaions /NS AEEH
EfEE - - - - - (055 - (955 - (955
Total comprehensive income/{oss) for the year ~ ERAENA /
(BB)4% - - - - - (055 147104 1619 (1002 13812
Contibution from non-controling shareholders FARRRIA - - - - - - - - 7,860 7,860
Acquiston of non-controling interests WEsnhEs - - - - - - - - (13%) (3%
Dividends declared BERE - - - - - 00000 (200,000) - (200000)
Issuance of orcinary shares relating to infial public. ~~ AT EERARRERE
offering (note 29) fEER (Mi0) 398 809,450 - - - - S X1 - dlpdos
Share issue expenses RBAER -8y - - - - - 5y - 8656y
Equity-setted share-based compensation IEREERNAERY
i - - (626) - - - - (639] - 18
Transfer flom retained profts BRE7IEER - - - - 9,651 - (0,651) - - -
At 31 December 2022 20228123318 36958 772886 194083 119679 027 (7707 188980 1,705,086 1559 1,706,645
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB1,611,078,000 * ZEREEFPBRIEGAVBRRRPNGEEHE  AA

(2022:RMB1,308,128,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ll"T/\Iﬁlﬁljle%

Year ended 31 December 2023

2 2202312 F31 HIFF/E
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
15 AR¥T T AREEFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BESEEIERER
Profit before tax % 752 A R 559,213 154,232
Adjustments for: AT SBELFHE -
Finance costs U 16,227 20,474
Inventory impairment and scrap FERERRE 26,708 33,546
(Reversal of provision)/impairment of trade and B 5 N E M ER IR
other receivables (B@Em),/mE (15,252) 12,054
Share of profits and losses of a joint venture and e B hEREE QTR
associates AE & E1E 6,005 1,229
Interest income F B2 WA (9,365) (814)
Depreciation of investment properties REMETE 1,221 1,237
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BEREETE 67,367 63,272
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 29,275 25,994
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 2,737 3,669
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and LEWE - BEAEEEE
equipment K& 60 44
Loss on disposal of items of right-of-use assets HEFRELEEEB NS - 774
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BRATEFAERN SR
through profit or loss BENTENE (16,121) (79)
Equity-settled share-based compensation expense  MAREZRAE & LD AEREHY
BB X 4,975 (886)
673,050 314,746
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEMm,m (19,352) 69,542
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables = %fﬂﬁ( RIE K BN R %
() 70,437 (12,244)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables and FERTFRIE B At FEURIE &2
other assets Eﬁﬂﬁ?i hn (138,322) (3,366)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEIRFFURL (38 n) 11,500 (11,500)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables f’f%f‘éﬁ IEi*jJD/
R A) 94,463 (140,462)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — E il B FRIE & A+ &
g,/ Cld) 50,158 (160,306)
Cash generated from operations KBRS RE 741,934 56,410
Interest received BUF B 9,365 814
Income tax paid =ANIZIESE (5,135) (20,663)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities &2 EBFT1SIR &M /F58 746,164 36,561
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

. \/\Iﬁrﬁ;ﬁéﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2023
B2 20239F 12431 HILFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETT AREFT
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEFMARESR
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE  WMENMRHEEER

and equipment (87,834) (54,328)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - WEREZHEEE

plant and equipment FTiS 3R 3,568 4,836
Additions to other intangible assets REHMELEE (640) (6,741)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other HEEMEEEEERR

intangible assets Fris s 431 549
Proceeds from disposal of associates SR AR TS RIE 460 -
Purchase of shareholdings in a joint venture and BEAELER é‘?%" Al

associates g (71,550) (1,380)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERATEFABRD

profit or loss SEREE (301,921) (58,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair HEEZEAFETAEBEN

value through profit or loss SREEMSHIA - 58,079
Intention money paid for financial assets at fair BIEA ${§u+)\TEﬁﬁm

value through profit or loss SRMEELNHNERS - (10,799)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEESTARESMEE (457,486) (66,784)
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM BEEE (FTA),/

FINANCING ACTIVITIES FBEER
Proceeds from bank loans BRFERIE 354,220 615,598
Repayment of bank loans Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁgﬂ (904,579) (155,290)
Capital contribution from minority shareholders LEREHE 18,780 7,860
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT D 1S 308 21,777 846,408
Share issue expenses fo F1TRX (4,185) (36,564)
Advances of offering expenses of over-allotment BRERC AR B TTRI S B - (1,394)
Purchases of non-controlling interests BEIFERER - (1,336)
Disposal of non-controlling interests o FEE Hx%/\/\ 300 -
Principal portion of lease payments HMERRAEE D (28,215) (26,747)
Dividend paid BT E (179,081) (200,000)
Interest paid EENEYISY (16,227) (20,474)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from mMEEE (),

financing activities TSR & m F58 (737,210) 1,028,061
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND IE%&EE%£1“¢9Z)

CASH EQUIVALENTS W), nEE (448,532) 997,838
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ﬁ%ﬂfﬂﬁ)}fﬁ ZEW 1,147,708 145,208
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net KRPER AT (1,487) 4,662
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FERESNRESEEY

YEAR 25 697,689 1,147,708
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH R&RRE&EEWEERDM
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEUBRARERERE

consolidated statement of financial position and EYBR e RIREEEY

statement of cash flows 697,689 1,147,708
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is
a limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China on 11 June 2004. The registered office is located at
Room 701, No.515 Yinxiang Road, Nanxiang Town, Jiading
District, Shanghai, Chinese Mainland. The Company was
restructured from a limited company to a joint-stock company
on 24 December 2020. The Company was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 22 December 2022.

In the opinion of the directors, the controlling shareholder is Mr.
Lyu Yixiong.

During the year, Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) were principally involved in the
following activities: research and development, production and
sales of cosmetics.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

BA 5 R M RE

31 December 2023
2023%F 1231 H

AREH

B EERMmERHERAT ([ARF])
A—ZKN2004%6 11 BEFE AR KL
Bl W EREE AR - A EE
Az pA R B A Hh |8 T 3 E [ R PR SR AR A BR
51555701 % « NAFIR202056F12 A24H
BERDRNH ARG GIQF o AAER
2022F 12 A2 B E B BB AR IMBRA
A ([BE3AT)) =R b -

EERR BRERABEERL -

RER - EBEXRbERRNERAFR
EMBAR (AR TEREUTE
% Aot RS - AERHE

BEMBATNEN
AATEEMHBARMFENT

Place and date of Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued Percentage of
registration and ordinary/registered equity attributable Principal
Company name place of operations share capital to the Company activities
FHfa /S g Rk BETLE/
NEER! HEA R BB AMRANEE ARAEGREASL  FEEH
Direct Indirect
L ffE
Shanghai Shumei Cosmetic Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100% - Sales of
(EERECHBEROA) > 08 September 2009 cosmetics
FERECARERAR B REN, AK#10,000,0007 femisE
2009F9H8H
Shanghai Zhongyi Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB260,000,000 100% - Production of
(EgRBALERQE") 05 August 2010 cosmetics
LETBALERRA hE/HERL AR#260,000,0007 R
2010%8A5H

Annual Report 2023 £ E#R% | 125



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 i M ek
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

1. Corporate Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of

1. RAER (&)

BEMBRRNER (&

Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued Percentage of
registration and ordinary/registered equity attributable Principal
Company name place of operations share capital to the Company activities
A/ s Rk BRITER/
NCIEE HERA R 252 AMBRANEE ARFRGREESL  FEEK
Direct Indirect
BE faE
Suzhou Industrial Park Lizi Cosmetic Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB42,000,000 100% - Lease of
(BNIEEERZHREBRAR") 23 April 2004 properties
FNIXERRE M ARERLA hE/RERL AR#42,000,0007C MERE
200454 A23H
Shanghai Baby Elephant Cosmetic Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100% - Sales of
(BB RERERAE") 28 December 2015 cosmetics
R R anERAR B REN AK#10,000,0007 thmiEE
201512 A28H
Shanghai Kans Cosmetic Sales Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Sales of
(BRI HBEEREERD) 29 June 2016 cosmetics
BRI AREERBEERAR HE/REN, AR#5,000,0007 {Ezm e
201656 A29H
Nippon Hondo Co., Ltd. (‘BA4TERA€4")  Japan JPY62,000,000 - 100%  Sales of
30 July 2015 cosmetics
BRALERA G4 B 62,000,000 Al e inE
20157 A30H
Nippon Shuichi Cosmetics Co., Ltd. Japan JPY80,600,000 - 100%  Production of
(BAFE—EtHaEKA L") 04 July 2017 cosmetics
BRE-Eltimif gt BAR 80,600,000 5 El Ehrm e E
2017E7R4R
Shanghai Hongdao Cosmetic Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100% - Sales of
(BB ERERARF") > 02 February 2018 cosmetics
BB RERAR" R/ B AR#5,000,0007C e
2018%2H2H
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1. Corporate Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of

Notes to Financial Statements

1. RAER (&)

BEMBRRNER (&

Nominal value of

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

incorporation/ issued Percentage of
registration and ordinary/registered equity attributable Principal
Company name place of operations share capital to the Company activities
A/ s Rk BEITER/
NS HERA R 22 AMBRANEE ARFRGREESL  FEEK
Direct Indirect
BE fE
Shanghai One Leaf Cosmetic Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100% - Sales of
(EE—EFHRERAF") 09 September 2014 cosmetics
HE-EFHRERAR hE/HERL AR #10,000,0007C e
2014F9H9H
Shanghai HiFace Cosmetic Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Sales of
(“ Bt mB R AR 28 December 2017 cosmetics
R R ERAR B/ REN AR5,000,0007T ftmiEE
2017412 A28H
Shanghai Baby Elephant Cosmetic PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Sales of
Sales Service Co., Ltd. 12 June 2018 cosmetics
(EERIE KR ERBEERAR)
HEIE R REEREERA R hE/HERL AR #10,000,0007C et ise
201867124
Shanghai Asnami Cosmetics Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Sales of
(EERRRIARERAR") > 15 May 2019 cosmetics
FRZER ARERAR B REN AK#10,000,0007 ftAmiEe
201955A15H
Shanghai KPC Biotechnology Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMBb54,444,444 51% 9.61%  Sales of
(EERBEEYRRERAR") 11 August 2020 cosmetics
FERBEMRRBERAA" hE/REN, ARH54,444,4447T {Ezm e

202058111
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R 2R MY 5 E

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

1. Corporate Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of

1. RAER (&)

BEMBRRNER (&

Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued Percentage of
registration and ordinary/registered equity attributable Principal
Company name place of operations share capital to the Company activities
A/ s Rk BRAEE/
NCIER HERA R 252 AMBRANEE ARFRGREESL  FEEK
Direct Indirect
BE faE
Shanghai Jinmao Biotechnology Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 100% - Sales of
(‘EESBEAYRBERAR) 4 November 2020 cosmetics
LESBENHBARRT hE /HERL AR#1,000,0007C e
202011 A4H
Shanghai Qingdao Enterprise Management PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB80,000,000 100% - Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (L BBELEERBRAA) 30 April 2021 management
LEBECRERBRAF" R/ HERL AR ¥80,000,0007C rRER
202154 A30H
Shanghai Yiye Biotechnology Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 56%  Sales of
(EEREEMRRERAR") 4 August 2020 cosmetics
FEREEMRRERAA" hE/REN, AR¥10,000,0007 e ipE
202058A4A
* The English names of the companies registered in the People’s Republic of * AR EARLME ([FHE]) FMa QR0 &

China (the “PRC”) represent the best efforts of management of the Company
in directly translating the Chinese names of these companies as no English

names have been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

** These companies are registered as limited liability companies under PRC

law.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FETER ()

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE ()
Basis of consolidation (Continued) HERE (&)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve cumulative; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised

IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs

that are applicable to the Group are described below:

a)

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note 2 to
the financial statements. The amendments did not
have any impact on the measurement, recognition
or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial

statements.
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

b)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies. Accounting estimates
are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group's
approach and policy align with the amendments, the
amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available)
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The Group has
applied the amendments on temporary differences
related to leases as at 1 January 2022, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions other than leases that occurred on or
after 1 January 2022, if any.

The adoption of amendments to IAS 12 did not
have any material impact on the basic and diluted
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, other comprehensive income
and the consolidated statements of cash flows for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

d)

Amendments to IAS 12 /International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and
the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively.
Since the Group did not fall within the scope of the
Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did not have
any impact to the Group.
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements. The Group intends to apply these

revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)"4

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)’?

Supplier Finance
Arrangements’

Lack of Exchangeabilitys?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,

Presentation of Financial Statements Classification by the Borrower

of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in

conclusion.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or
loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early
application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application
of the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide
certain transition reliefs regarding comparative information,
quantitative information as at the beginning of the annual
reporting period and interim disclosures. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Material Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investment in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets include an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2. BETHEK (&)

TEETHR (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.4

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial information are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
information on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of the reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it

arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group; and the
sponsoring employers of the post-employment
benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

SETHER (&)

2.4 FTESEBX (&)

M BERREBARIFTE

ME -~ BB REE (ER TR
THRRRANE R 5t T B R AR E R 18
SR - M2~ BE MR f%IEHE’]}ﬁZK
BREBREEREEEEIHTER
1’&#%&1@59’Mﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ§fﬁﬁk$ °

ME - BELERBEBEAEFRE
EM#EERRESRAY  BEREL
HEBEENR - RTEERREN
BERT - AIRENRIEREEK
ZK‘|’)\§%E’]E§@@L TERILE
o W% - BEREEBNEEEED
EET\HE’U1§%¢BE IR E R E
ERERREBEE - ji‘“*%iﬂ’]
AEAFRL AR RNE -

NEDNREGEREFZBYE  BE

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and HIEE E’])ﬂiﬁﬁf\,iﬁu‘l'—ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful BAMBEEEFREEMTE - st
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as B B FTfE E’\]Ixiﬁﬁﬂ? :
follows:
Annual rates
Category =gl FER
Buildings BF 4.75%
Plant and machinery R M Es 9.50% - 47.50%
Motor vehicles s 23.75% — 47.50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment FiL - RBEREE 19.00% — 47.50%
Leasehold improvements HEWMHEEE 19.00% - 47.50%
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FEETHE(E)

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

The Group measures its investment properties at cost,
including related transaction costs. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost over their estimated useful lives in 20 years.
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Transfers among investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying
amount of the property transferred and they do not change
the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure
purposes.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Other intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The principal estimated useful
lives of intangible assets are as follows:
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Categories kel T A6 A H
Software EIgts 3-10 years, considering the software

Hip (X 2BREEM)

Others, mainly include
vehicle license plate

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

technology updates in the market and the
development stage of the Group
BE10%F (B BT 5 L8 Bl AR
SENERERER)

2-10 years, vehicle license plate is
amortised on a straight-line basis over
the useful life of 10 years, based on the
Group’s minimal planned years of usage.
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20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:
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Estimated useful lives

Category gl 5T A fE A
Land use right TR AR 50 years
504

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established.
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2. SETBX (&

TEETHR (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.4

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or

loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and other liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average cost basis, and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R 2R MY 5 E

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R 2R MY 5 E

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical

expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods
or upon the confirmation by the customer.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a
right to return the goods within a specified period,
the expected value method is used to estimate the
goods that will not be returned because this method
best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements
in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For goods that
are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a
refund liability is recognised. A right-of-return asset
(and the corresponding adjustment to cost of sales)
is also recognised for the right to recover products
from a customer.

Transportation services

The Group provides transportation services between
its warehouses and its customers. The Group
recognise transportation services revenue over time
as customers receive the benefit of the services
as the goods are transported from one location to
another. As such, transportation service revenue
is recognised proportionally as goods move from
one location to another and the related costs are
recognised as incurred. The Group uses an output
method of progress based on time-in-transit as it
best depicts the transfer of control to the customer.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R 2R MY 5 E

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FEETHE(E)

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive the payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract. (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover
the goods expected to be returned by customers. The
asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the
goods to be returned, less any expected costs to recover
the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the
returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of
the asset for any revisions to the expected level of returns
and any additional decreases in the value of the returned
goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from a customer and is measured at the amount the Group
ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer.
The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates certain incentive shares schemes.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of the reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R 2R MY 5 E

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2. BETHEK (&)

TEETHR (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.4

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

The financial information is presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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20234 12 31 H

2. BETHEK (&)

2.4 FESEE (A

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the
differences are attributable to non-controlling interests. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in
the reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Social pension plans

The Group has the social pension plans for its employees
arranged by local government labour and security
authorities. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentages of its payroll costs on a monthly basis to the
social pension plans. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the social pension plans. Under the plans, the
Group has no further obligations beyond the contributions
made.

The Group’s contributions to the above social pension
plans for its employees are fully and immediately vested
at the time of contribution, and may not be offset by the
contributions confiscated before being fully vested due
to termination of the plan with the employees. During the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were
no contributions forfeited by the Group on behalf of its
employees who leave the plan prior to vesting fully in such
contribution, nor had there been any utilisation of such
forfeited contributions to reduce future contributions. At 31
December 2023 and 2022, no forfeited contributions were
available for utilisation by the Group’s entities to reduce
the existing level of contributions.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

2.

Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Housing fund and other social insurances
The Group has participated in defined social security
contribution schemes for its employees pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC. These include
housing fund, basic medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance. The
Group makes monthly contributions to the housing fund
and other social insurances. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss on an accrual basis. The Group has no
further obligations beyond the contributions made.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Variable consideration for returns and rebates

The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of products with rights of return
and rebates.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Variable consideration for returns and rebates (Continued)
The Group has developed a statistical model for forecasting
sales returns and rebates. The model used the historical
return data of each product to come up with expected return
percentages. These percentages are applied to determine the
expected value of the variable consideration. Any significant
changes in experience as compared to historical return pattern
will impact the expected return percentages estimated by the
Group.

The Group’s expected rebates are analysed on a per customer
basis for contracts that are subject to some thresholds.
Determining whether a customer will likely be entitled to a rebate
depends on the customer’s historical rebate entitlement, sell out
and payment collection to date.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns
and rebates quarterly and the refund liabilities are adjusted
accordingly. Estimates of expected returns and rebates are
sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Group’s past
experience regarding returns and rebate entitlements may
not be representative of customers’ actual returns and rebate
entitlements in the future. As at 31 December 2023, the
amounts recognised as refund liabilities were RMB1,006,000 (31
December 2022:RMB1,716,000), and the amounts recognised
as rebates were RMB13,146,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB14,400,000).

A7 s et
31 December 2023
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

176 | Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. /& (xR AR AR

ERGRMHE RS (&)

fhEt T HEE N ()

FEREE (BB BE
AEBREREHURFEMBEHEHMEE
(BREERREE) BAEMRETR - &
REMFHNBLEESFHERRNER
EFRHROEMERERETRERNR - &
W EREECEPRBREEENEE
FWEEETRHENR - HEEXBREE
FEMMREEBRBETRMEE (AAF
ERHEXNAREREENRTE) - AR
ROREE - A FERLERAZEREE
ERFRHGFANRNINEEXHNAF
BEHAEETERLEEENEERA
AE - WMERAEREENE  AEEEAR
HHEERRCELEMNARRKES
mE - WERABEMBBRTUAFEZER
EREMNIRIE -

S

BERRFERBRRENEREERE
e
AEEERBRBERTEESEEIARN
EHEEER - BEXDERAFRUE
RN (iR RE - ERRL - P8
WRFHRE D) M TREFDAEABIA
BIEEE

BEEREENERAREBEBEMSGE
MEMETE - ARBEBRERER - FIAR
AIREMEENIRBEEEBBRLER - 80
mE - WEAKLERE (EANEERE)
EHBRARRE—FBL  EHREFED
EHEM - AERBBEENE - RER
SEH - BEBEMSEOTKTEN

VPN

& SR AR R -



Notes to Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
22.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 20 to the financial
statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for slow-moving inventories and net realisable
value of inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of
the Group at the end of each reporting period, and makes
a provision for slow-moving inventory items. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. A write-down of inventories to net realisable
value is made based on the estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount requires
management’s estimates and judgement. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of
inventories and the write-down/write-back of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture and
sale of cosmetic products.

The information reported to the directors of the Company, who
are the chief operating decision makers, for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of performance, does not
contain discrete operating segment financial information and the
directors reviewed the financial results of the Group as a whole.
Therefore, no further information about the operating segment is
presented.
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

i H R iva [P IN =
4. Operating Segment Information 4. &RZHILER (&
(Continued)
Geographical information i =B R
(a) Revenue from external customers (@) REIPEBEFHIWA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Chinese Mainland R B A 3t 4,171,263 2,656,680
Other countries/regions HMBER & 19,464 18,651
Total revenue FEU N 4,190,727 2,675,331
The revenue information above is based on the locations FIRABR TDEREFFEH ©
of the customers.
(b) Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Chinese Mainland B A At 879,204 726,882
Other countries/regions HMBER @ 58,366 66,118
Total non-current assets B EELE 937,570 793,000

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

RSB EEERNDEREEME
o TERBECHERE -

BFRETEFFHNEHR

REEHEBERERF - RREE2023F12
R31BIEFEREREE-FFPHWRAMN
REE10.00% 3k A _EWIA (20224 + —
EEP - 1511.9%) o

The Group has a large number of customers and no revenue
from a single customer is accounted for 10.00% or more of
the Group’s revenue during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: one, 11.9%).
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

5. Revenue 5. WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REEHBADTIT -
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AREET T
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWA
Sales of goods HEEM 4,182,239 2,666,649
Transportation services B R 7% 8,488 8,682
Total revenue FEV N 4,190,727 2,675,331
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@) DIHFWAER

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Types of goods or services EmgRgEn
Sales of goods HEEM 4,182,239 2 666,649
Transportation services BEHIRE 8,488 8,682
Total revenue from contracts with customers B P& L4 A 4,190,727 2,675,331

Timing of revenue recognition N AT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Goods transferred at a point in time REEER B EENE R 4,182,239 2,666,649
Services transferred over time BERE R EE N RIS 8,488 8,682
Total revenue from contracts with customers ~ FF A& L4 A 4,190,727 2,675,331
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5. Revenue (Continued)

(a)

(b)

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

5. WA (&)

Disaggregated revenue information (@) DIFWAER (&)
(Continued)
Timing of revenue recognition (Continued) WA FER B ()
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREINARE BB ALRR
recognised in the current reporting period that were HHYEHBENIMAZ SR
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
current reporting period:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFT
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFHMEHNERBEN
in contract liabilities at the beginning of SERWA
the year:
Sale of goods HESMm 41,416 81,120
Performance obligations (b) BREME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon receipt of
the goods by customers or delivery of goods, and the
payment period is generally uncertain, expect for certain
major customers where payment is due within 60 to 90
days from receipt.

Transportation services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered. Transportation services are for
periods of within one month, and are billed based on the
time incurred.

As at the end of the reporting period, the amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are
immaterial and all the amounts are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

ERAEBEROBEENERB AN

BHOBEINEPEWREMARNED
R EE e - N RERRR — R T RETE -
ERETEEREPME - IRREHR
%60 =90 KN EIH -

B R

B %) B 1 B8 2 AR 7% 1O 12 {F 1 B8 Bp () 4
BIETT - BRRGA—E A SHIR
RELREE -

MRBERR - PEEHRTENEL
(RETTHED REIT) IR ZERE
BUTEKR - BB SBEEHHN —
FAERBEA -
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

6. Other Income and Gains and Other 6.

%1@4&)\&4&%)},&1@%

Expenses
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=s AR®TF T ARBET T
Other income Hbg A
Government grants BT D (a)(b) 96,073 87,551
Bank interest income RITF BULA 9,365 814
Others HAth 14,178 11,498
Total other income H bW A 42%E 119,616 99,863
Gains g
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREED
equipment e 60 44
Foreign exchange gain SN UL 12,800 -
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair R A FEFF ABZN SR
value through profit or loss, net BEAV AWK FE 16,121 79
Others HAth 7,899 22,782
Total gains W iaEE 36,880 22,905
Total other income and gains H U A R 4878 156,496 122,768
Other expenses Hibp %
Inventory impairment and scrap FERE R HRE 26,708 33,546
Foreign exchange loss SMEEIE - 4,652
Others HAth 7,292 4,951
Total other expenses Hth [l 2 4258 34,000 43,049

(@)

The government grants mainly represent incentives

received or receivable from the local government in

connection with certain financial support to local business

enterprises for the purpose of encouraging business

development. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these grants.
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6. Other Income and Gains and Other 6.

Expenses (Continued)

(b)  The Group has received certain government grants related
to the investments in long-term assets in production
bases. The grants related to assets were recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the useful lives of relevant
assets. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

7. Profit before Tax 7.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

B I A T 2 T A
% ()

b) AEECURETEHAEEMWERNE
ERERENBRFHE - BEERE
MEBREEEEN A ERFHAE
BaRRTER - EBREZSMHN
RERGIFAHAER -

BRI B A

AEBHBRBATFE I EMG (GTA) A

(crediting): TRIBEER
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETT AREFTT
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFEK A 1,171,275 975,699
Depreciation of property, plant and Y B RERETE
equipment 14 67,367 63,272
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELEENE 16 29,275 25,994
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 17 2,737 3,669
Wages and salaries TERH® 389,636 334,713
Pension scheme contributions, social welfare JRK& T &I - L &R K
and other welfare HAEF 94,268 112,991
Share-based compensation expense AR BEMRAHME A 4,975 (886)
Foreign exchange differences HINE ZE BE 6 (12,800) 4,552
Marketing and promotion expenses BN IERER Y 1,745,880 848,428
Inventory impairment and scrap FERERRE 6 26,708 33,546
Interest expense MBR%Z 16,227 20,474
(Reversal of provision)/impairment losses on & & E (BEEE ), miE
financial assets, net E 1855 (15,252) 12,054
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant, HEYE - BEMEREEEH
and equipment &8 60 44
Listing expenses Emx - 33,747
Auditors’ remuneration 12 BRI 2 B 3,640 2,600
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair ~ ZAFEFABENESREE
value through profit or loss, net N EWRFE (16,121) (79)

Cost of inventories sold include expenses relating to depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and
employee benefit expense, which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

* EEFERAREEYE  BERRBIE £
REAEFERERBMHAXAMANER @ Ei
ERG AR LS EZSEAEBRENER
BT -
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31 December 2023

20234124318
8. Finance Costs 8. MR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BIERRADITIAT -
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥ETT AREFT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RIT R EAMEFKF S 12,201 15,264
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNS 16 4,026 5,210
Total “Et 16,227 20,474

9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s 9. EENRESTHEA S

Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BiE EMAL - BEERAKEHIE3I383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), ( )~ (o)~ () M (MEA R AR (HFEE EFz
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 BR)BROIFEHBEEFAEERERTH
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ABHMIT -

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR  AREBFT

Fees e 450 450
Other emoluments: Eiie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZRREWRET 2,878 2,924
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B 868 808
Performance-related bonuses FIAMEEEIEA 629 629
Subtotal NET 4,375 4,361
Total fees and other emoluments ek HME 8% 4,825 4,811
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31 December 2023

2023412431 H
9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EBR &GS THRA S M
Remuneration (Continued) (#&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIHHTES

Year ended 31 December 2023
EZE2023F12831 HLEEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension Performance
and benefits scheme - related
Fees in kind contributions bonuses Total
5o 2ER RIkE REEE
ik BENER B 6 B4 @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARBTR ARETR AR¥TR ARET:R

Independent non-executive directors: B IFHITES

Mr. Liu Yi ARt 150 - - - 150
Ms. Luo Yan (2217 Bt 150 - - - 150
Mr. Leung Ho Sun EMRE 150 - - = 150
Total @t 450 - = = 450

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31BIEFE
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Performance
and benefits scheme - related
Fees inkind  contributions bonuses Total
e RER RINE KA
ik BN HENGE N @t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARBTT ARBTRL ARETR ARET:R

Independent non-executive directors: B IFHITES

Mr. Liu Vi BIREE 150 - - - 150
Ms. Luo Yan (221 Bt 150 - - - 150
Mr. Leung Ho Sun DI 150 - - - 150
Total B 450 - - - 450
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors

and the chief executive

/0

THRAR

Year ended 31 December 2023

9. EENRBHITHAEFHMN
-,

(b) BTES  FUTESERES

BZ2023F12831ALLEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension Performance
and benefits scheme - related
in kind contributions bonuses Total
e RER Rk eyl
ENEF BEEE 4 @it
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®TR AREFT AR®Tr AR¥TR
Chief executive and executive director: BRTBRAER
WIEE:
Mr. Lyu Yixiong BEERE 459 217 - 676
Executive directors: WOIES:
Ms. Luo Yan (&) BRIL 1,084 217 42 1,343
Ms. Song Yang RAEZT 593 217 232 1,042
Mr. Feng Yifeng B—-k%st 742 217 355 1,314
Subtotal Nt 2,419 651 629 3,699
Non-executive directors: FHITES
Ms. Li Hangiong FRELLT - - - -
Mr. Sun Hao BEFEE (i = = = =
Subtotal Nt - - - -
Total st 2,878 868 629 4,375
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors
and the chief executive (Continued)

9. EERBRSITHA

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

# BN

il

(74&)

(b) BTES FUTESERES
ITHAE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20225 12 A31 B ILEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension  Performance
and benefits scheme - related
in kind  contributions bonuses Total
e 2Rk Bike ~H1EE
EMEN HELGE TE4T o
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®ETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Chief executive and executive director: H&Z{THAEH
HITES:
Mr. Lyu Yixiong BERERE 507 202 - 709
Executive directors: HTES:
Ms. Luo Yan (Z8%) ERuL 1,041 202 42 1,285
Ms. Song Yang REZT 666 202 232 1,100
Mr. Feng Yifeng BlgsE 710 202 355 1,267
Subtotal et 2,417 606 629 3,652
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Jin Ming SHEE (i - - - -
Ms. Li Hangiong FRELL - - - -
Mr. Sun Hao BELE 0] - - - -
Subtotal e - - - -
Total Hoh 2,924 808 629 4,361

The non-executive directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

Notes:
(i) Mr. Sun Hao was appointed on 30 September 2022.

(i) Mr. Jin Ming was appointed on 7 December 2016 and resigned on
10 September 2022 due to personal reason.

FRTEFERFAREKREBRE
ESOEATIE

BfaE

(i) HELENR20224F9 A0 R EE(E -

(ii) S ER2016F12 A7 AEZFERR
202249 A 10H BB AR HFHE ©
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10. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included nil

directors (2022: nil), respectively, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the

year of the remaining five (2022: five) highest paid employees

who are not the directors of the Company are as follows:

10. B2 &ReSHMNES

AEREIERESFHREEDHEBRETA
(2022%F : B)E% - HAEEHHFEH
R EXHES  REEEMBTH (20224 ¢
h#) FARREFH &K= FHBNEER 55
BT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR  AREBFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZUREMRER 4,093 4,365
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B 966 877
Performance-related bonuses FIAMEEAEA 264 329
Share-based payment LARR ) BETR B R 4,695 3,220
Total HEt 10,018 8,791

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMENATHEEANFEERSHHE
BABIT

Number of the employees

EEAH

2023 2022

20235 20224

Nil to HK$1,000,000 71,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,001 1,000,000/ 7 £ 1,500,001 7 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,001 1,500,001 78 7t &£2,000,001 78 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,001 2,000,001 £2,500,00178 7T 2 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T & 3,000,000 7T 1 -
Total HBET 5 5
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31 December 2023

2023412431 A
A N
11.Income Tax Expense 1. B
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETTT
Current - PRC BNER — fp B 109,824 11,431
Current — other jurisdictions BIHEY — Efb &AM m 166 3,145
Deferred tax EEFRIR (12,440) 2,576
Total tax charge for the year FRBIBRZ B 97,550 17,152

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the EIT
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% unless those are subject to
tax exemption set out below.

Shanghai Zhongyi Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. was accredited as
an “Advanced Technology Enterprise” from 2021 to 2023, and
therefore Shanghai Zhongyi Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. was entitled
to a preferential EIT rate of 15% for the year. This qualification
is subject to review by the relevant tax authority in the PRC for
every three years.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as small
and micro enterprises and are entitled to a preferential corporate
income tax rate of 20% during the year.

Hong Kong profits tax
The statutory rate of Hong Kong profits tax was 16.5% for the
year on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

AEBARAEEKE RAMEREZRN
AAERELARRAZSTHEMNNBRE
REELN IS -

El TSR
RE(PEARAXMBEEERFBE) ([
EMGBE]) R(EEMBBEE KK
By PEMBEARNEERSHRHEER
25% @ R T XFAEBH AR B ERID ©

EEH A ARRARR2021 FE2023F
WREAISAFRMEE]  ARAFE £
BHRHALEERAGAIREEREMEH
MEAS%NT - ZEEB=FAKLHEINA
ARSI EZ -

AEBEETHEMBRARNENREER
B RFERAREBELEMERHEE20%
L o

BBAEHR

REAR - REBEERME S ERTNE
BANERAERER16.6% °
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11.Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Income Tax of Other Jurisdictions
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate applicable in Chinese Mainland to the tax

M. FERRX (&)

Htp B A EMEH
R B E A BARE R OB IR VIR AR RS RA R
BAEMARETH -

ERARIR T B A EREER KA E R
BATH BRI AR RRERHR XA EL

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: MBS EERNT -
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=s AR®T T AREET T
Profit before income tax & BT 1S5 B 7B 559,213 154,232
Tax at the PRC corporate income 1525% K Bl S FTIS TR
tax rate of 25% MEFENTIEA 139,803 38,558
Effect of different tax rates of oM B AR TR EN
some subsidiaries o (87,743) (8,216)
Expenses not deductible for tax A HF R S 4,381 3,540
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A BRI IEEE (220) (3,731)
Tax losses not recognised FRIERBIEEE 3,234 459
Profits and losses attributable to joint BEDEREE QR EETE
venture and associates N E1E 1,501 307
Additional deductible allowance for research #iff 2% ff Sz #) &8 71 A] +0 )8 B {5
and development expenses (i) (13,406) (13,765)
Total tax charge for the year FRHIERZ B 97,550 17,152

(i) Qualified advanced technology enterprise can enjoy super deduction for
eligible research and development expenses for EIT purpose. During the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the applicable super deduction rates
were 200% and 200% respectively.
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B i5 R MY 5
31 December 2023
2023412318
12.Dividends 12.[RE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Proposed final - RMBO0.75 (2022: approximately BIRAREESR LB
RMBO0.25) per ordinary share ARHE0.757T (2022 4F -
HAR¥E0.257T) 298,468 99,489

At the shareholders’ general meeting held on 15 June 2023, the
Company declared a cash dividend of approximately RMB99
million to all shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2022.

At the shareholders’ general meeting held on 16 October 2023,
the Company declared an interim dividend of RMBO0.20 per
ordinary share, amounting to a total of approximately RMB80
million. The dividend has been paid before 31 December 2023.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

M2023F6 A15HEBITHRREAE £ - &K
NEADERRTIREE2022F12A31H
IFFEEMNREBREHARKIOEETT -

M2023F10 H16 B RITHREAREG L - K
REIEIRF R EEREBIRARK0.20
T AENAARKESEEL c REER
2023412 B31 BRI AT ©

HZE2023F 12 A31 B I-FE Ak R 8%

BAFARABRRRNERRRBFARE L
HEE -
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13.Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
397,911,329 (2022: 361,012,547) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

I NAEEERITE AR
EERAR

BREABNSENES AR EAER
BHEAEGABRRAFABETEAR
DR #397,911,3290% (20224 -
361,012,547 %) #HE1SH ©

AEBEREE2023F % 2022412 A31H
I FEEAAE BITEEBERD, -

BIRERBNIIIREIA T EURFE

2023 2022
202345 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR  AREBFT

Earnings &F
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of AR ESFREARRTIN
the parent, used in the basic earnings per AR EBERFEA
share calculation JEAE T 461,104 147,104
Number of shares
RAPEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Shares i 5
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESREARRRE
shares in issue during the year used in the basic FRNEEITERRINE
earnings per share calculation T 397,911,329 361,012,547
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) BREARESZT
(ARETT) 1.16 0.41
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31 December 2023

2023412 H31H
14.Property, Plant and Equipment 14. 9% - ERXE
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment improvements  in progress Total
ZER
BER EERER
e B3 AE e BENERE HRIE Azt

RMB'000  RMBY000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTz  AREYI  ARETR  ARRIR

31 December 2023 2023F12731R
At 1 January 2023; R2028F1 418 :
Cost R 501,946 211,864 24,489 30,773 49,316 10,730 829,118
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAE

impairment (76,709) (81,769) (10,198) (22,006) (37,185) - (227,867)
Net carrying amount BHFE 425,237 130,095 14,291 8,767 12,131 10,730 601,251

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 7820231818

depreciation and impairment TREHAER
Wi 425,287 130,095 14,291 8767 12,131 10,730 601,251

Additions AE 25,201 3,483 16,771 5,818 5,163 10,371 66,807
Disposals HE - (211) (3,234) (183) - - (3,628)
Depreciation provided during the year — ERHETE (25,016) (22,469) (5,828) (4,069) (9,985) - (67,367)
Transfers B 1,798 10,932 - 725 6,251 (19,706) -
Exchange realignment E 0% (1,145) (787) 1) ) - (631) (2,651)
At 31 December 2023, net of R2023E128318 -

accumulated depreciation and R EaER

impairment B 426,075 121,043 21,989 10,981 13,560 764 594,412
At 31 December 2023: R2023E12A31R :
Cost R 527,800 225,281 38,015 37,056 60,730 764 889,646
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAE

impairment (101,725) (104,238) (16,026) (26,075) (47,170) - (295,234)
Net carrying amount BAFE 426,075 121,043 21,989 10,981 13,560 764 504,412
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

14.Property, Plant and Equipment 14.43% - BENRE (&)
(Continued)
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
fF&-
BER EERER
5 K& ot FE  HEMERE ETR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2022 20225125318
At 1 January 2022 Ro00E1 18
Cost s 502917 194,505 30,955 33,801 28,007 891 793,256
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (53,005) (50,669) 9,048) (23,821) (11,195) - (1%68%)
Net carrying amount FHFE 449,822 134,836 23,907 10,070 16,902 891 636,428
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 7820221 A1H
depreciation and impairment R EaER
Wi 449,822 134,836 23,907 10,070 16,902 891 636,428
Additions AE 1,312 10,973 367 2,978 3,239 19,728 38,692
Disposals ik 1400) (682) (3,250) (340) - (208) (4,380)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ £z E 23,807) (23.174) (4,462) (3,819) (8,010) - (63.272)
Transfers E - 9,676 - - - 9,676) -
Exchange realignment B 3% (1,690) (1,534) (2.271) (129) - - (5,617)
At 31 December 2022, net of 2025128318
accumulated depreciation and TREHAER
impairment B 425,237 130,096 14,291 8,767 12,131 10,730 601,251
At 31 December 2022: 20225124310 :
Cost R 501,946 211,864 24,489 30,773 49,316 10,730 829,118
Accumulated depreciation and ZEERAE
impairment (76,709) (81,769) (10,198) (22,006) (37,185) - (227.867)
Net carrying amount BEFE 425,087 130,005 14,91 8,767 12,131 10,730 601,251
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2023%F 12531 H
15.Investment Properties 15. REWV
Industrial properties T
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTRT

As at 1 January W1A1H 9,286 10,523
Depreciation charge WEEH (1,221) (1,237)
As at 31 December M®12A31H 8,065 9,286
The Group’s investment properties are measured using a cost REBNKRENERBRAERXGE - I
model and depreciated to write off their costs net of estimated BEGREE M A E B F A Riss £k
residual values over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line AR (B fERTEE) BT E -
basis.
The Group’s investment properties are located on the land in the AEBNKREMEMNFE LM 2 £ =
PRC with a land use right period from 2009 to 2054, o FARE AR A 2009 F £ 2054 4F ©
Fair values of the investment properties as at the end of the year RAFEREEMENATFEET

are as follows:

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
M2023%F 720224
12A31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFRT ARBTRT

Investment properties in the PRC AR E Y% 123,200 118,850
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15. Investment Properties (Continued)

Industrial properties (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are determined by the valuations
conducted by Avista Valuation Advisory Ltd, an independent
valuer. Under the valuation models, an income-based approach
has been adopted for industrial properties.

The income approach is based on the rental income of the
properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable
in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which have been then capitalized
to determine the market value at an appropriate capitalization
rate.

The fair value estimations for the owner-occupied properties
were at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other level.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16.

At 31 December 2023, the investment properties with net
carrying amounts of approximately RMB8,065,000 (2022:
RMB9,286,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 28).
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FHEMNERBABNFELESRE M
EHHERRDHEEMNER L RET
BARNEEME -
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E=M o
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RREL EHARRESHEEARY
T -

REZE2023F12 31 B ILFE @ fEE A
HEHE =PRI EMBER -

REMERBKEHELETE=D7 H
E— B FHBHNME6
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8,065,0007T (20224 : AR#9,286,000
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A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

16.Leases 16. &

The Group as a lessee

The Group as a lessee has lease contracts for items of office
premises, plant and machinery and other equipment used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years,
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. Leases of office premises and plant generally have
lease terms between 2 and 10 years, while machinery equipment
generally has lease terms of 5 years.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets

REBEREBEA
AEBERABAREELMEROHRA
BEFT - MEREEREMRERBTAR
EAR - REBEDREAFL — KRR IR
METWBHEE T - BH/505 > MR
BEZETHHEENGR ST EEEN
ERIF0R » WARARBEHER—KRA2
E10F > MERRENER—RA5F -

(a) EHEEE
AN B 5 PR O PR T 1 B R

and the movements during the year are as follows: WEBBERIT

Office

Leasehold premises
land and plant Equipment Total
HEL WAEFREBE B @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

31 December 2023 2023F12831H

As at 1 January 2023 #2023F1H1AH 70,868 71,100 2,526 144,494
Additions "B - 15,952 - 15,952
Depreciation charge HEER (1,615) (26,670) (990) (29,275)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31H 69,253 60,382 1,536 131,171
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202341231 H
. 1= =
16. Leases (Continued) 16.HE (42
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FEREEE (&)
Office
Leasehold premises
land and plant Equipment Total
MEL BWAEMRESE & &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL AR®ET T AREFT ARETFT
31 December 2022 2022128314
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1 H 72,483 85,663 3,516 161,662
Additions NE - 13,548 - 13,548
Revision of a lease term arising from R &7 ] S5 A F &
a change in the non-cancellable EEHMMEMET
period of a lease - 4,722) - (4,722)
Depreciation charge NEER (1,615) (23,389) (990) (25,994)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31H 70,868 71,100 2,526 144,494
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the HEBBENEEERRNFANZEE
movements during the year are as follows: AT
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Carrying amount at beginning of year REEREE 77,829 94,976
New leases WHE 15,952 13,548
Accretion of interest recognised during the year — FRIERHF| 1% 18 4,026 5,210
Revision of a lease term arising from a change EHE T B aAE s
in the non-cancellable period of a lease BYHHEBERT - (3,948)
Payments (NEN (32,241) (31,957)
Carrying amount at end of year RERKEE 65,566 77,829
Current portion BIEAEE 7 29,763 26,890
Non-current portion JERNHREL 2 35,803 50,939
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBGERSHE B 9575 B 7% ik i
32 to the financial statements. FE32H R o
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2023%F 12531 H
16.Leases (Continued) 16.1HE (&
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) REZERNVEEHEBEFREN
relation to leases are as follows: -
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETET

Interest on lease liabilities HEHENE 4,026 5,210

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets CHREEETEER 29,275 25,994

Expense relating to short-term leases and HEHHAEREEEEE

leases of low-value assets leases TSR 1,308 1,727

Total amount recognised in profit or loss R RN AT 34,609 32,931
The Group as a lessor REBESHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) H2021FE#  AEBBERLHAE
consisting of one industrial property located on the land THRESEIREYE (MHE15) » &
in the PRC under operating lease arrangements since REE—IEMNARR T P T
2021. The terms of the leases generally require the M o MEKRK—MERBL LR
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic = WAREERST R FHAER
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market 4o AEBNREARNDERNFAS WA
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during A ARKET7 338,0007T (20224 : A
the year was RMB7,338,000 (2022: RMB7,338,000). R#7,338,0007T) ©

Annual Report 2023 £ E#R% | 199



Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R 2R MY 5 E

31 December 2023

20234%F 1231 H
16. Leases (Continued) 16. %
(¢) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c)

relation to leases are as follows: (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

E (&
REZEIANVEEHEBERIED
T (#&)

TEBERSHBEA (&
2023412 A31H » ALBEIRIKHA
TP RN I R A & L BT R PR AR
FERMABBEAERNROT ¢

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R2023%F 20224
12A31H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBTT

Within one year —FR 7,615 7,615
After one year but within two years —FREMERN 7,881 7,768
After two years but within three years MFERE=FNK 7,537 7,537
After three years but within four years =—FRBRENFRA 8,275 8,157
After four years but within five years WEZERFEA 8,396 8,396
After five years RF% 22,321 28,187

62,025 67,660
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202341231 H
. /22
17.Other Intangible Assets 17. Hth B EEE
Software Others Total
B4 Hith wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARETT
31 December 2023 2023%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2023, 5202241 1 BHA
net of accumulated Bk RET G
amortisation 17,236 2,188 19,424
Additions NE 187 a7 604
Disposals k= 2) (429) (431)
Amortisation provided FRFHZEH
during the year (2,732) (5) (2,737)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F 12 A31H 14,689 2,171 16,860
Software Others Total
LIS HApth HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT
31 December 2022 2022%F 12831 H
Cost at 1 January 2022, 202241 A1 HERA
net of accumulated PR RET G
amortisation 13,901 4,325 18,226
Additions NE 4,484 932 5,416
Disposals & @) (547) (549)
Amortisation provided FRFHREHE
during the year (2,534) (1,135) (3,669)
Reclassification EoiboR 1,387 (1,387) -
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12 A31H 17,236 2,188 19,424
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18.Investment in a Joint Venture 18. REETEMNIRE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARETT
Share of net assets I EEFE 2,698 -

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s joint venture that are not individually material:

R BHER

TRIFAEMNLFFEBERNATEEHE E D

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T AREET T

Share of the joint venture's loss for the year ElheatEFRNEE (4,652) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AREBRBELENRENR

investment in the joint venture A HEmE 2,698 -

19. Investments in Associates 19. REE R THHRE

2023 2022

2023%F 2022 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Share of net assets EREESE 64,184 1,797

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

TR 59 E B S B A O B A

of the Group’s associates that are not individually material: AN AR IEER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Share of the associates’ loss for the year JE(RE & QR FNEE (1,353) (1,229)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REEREE R TNRER
investments in the associates AHEEE 64,184 1,797
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20. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as

follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

20. IEIEFH IR

REFHRERREEZSINT

Year ended 31 December 2023

HENF12ANALEE
Losses
Impairment  available for
loss on offsetting  Impairment
financial  against future loss on Accrued  Unrealised
assets taxable profits  inventories expense profits Others Total
AHEERR
THEE ERBAVE HERE
HEEE B B8 Eiffix  AERAE Eff &5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AREF R ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2023 R202851A1H 10,205 34,629 6,507 3,400 33,317 21,435 109,493
Deferred tax (charged)/ ER(MGE)/HABRD
credited to profit or ERERE
loss during the year (6,355) (551) 1,804 (386) 2,217 16,544 13,273
Gross deferred tax assets at - 722023F 12 33104
31 December 2023 EREHEAELE 3,850 34,078 8,311 3,014 35,534 37979 122,766
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE0RENRANALEE
Losses
Impairment  available for
loss on offsetting  Impairment
financial ~ against future loss on Accrued Unrealised
assets  taxable profits inventories expense profits Others Total
AEEHRR
SREE  ERENE FERE
HEEE R B iz AERNE Efty @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFL  ARETR  ARETRT ARETR  ARETRT  ARETr  ARETR
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1A 7,486 26,499 7,654 6,570 34,614 29,154 11,977
Deferred tax credited/ ERztA/(MkA) Bl
(charged) to profit or loss ~ EFERE
during the year 2,719 8,130 (1,147) (8,170) (1,297) (7,719 (2,484)
Gross deferred tax assets at 74202212 A31H K
31 December 2022 EEHBRAELR 10,205 34,629 6,507 3,400 33,317 21,435 109,493
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

20. Deferred Tax (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as

follows:

20. EIERLIE (48

AEFHRLERAREZSNT

Year ended 31 December 2023

BE20235F12831ALFE

Accelerated

tax depreciation Others Total
INEFIEITE Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2023 #R2023F1 A1H 8,849 143 8,992
Deferred tax charged to  F AR BEEA
profit or loss during R IE
the year 805 28 833
Deferred tax liabilities at 72023412 A31 H#Y
31 December 2023 REBIEAE 9,654 171 9,825
Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A31ALLFE
Accelerated
tax depreciation Others Total
hnEREIET & HAth HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 202241 H1H 8,897 2 8,899
Deferred tax (credited)/  FR (FFA),/ R BB
charged to profit or loss KRR IE
during the year (48) 141 93
Deferred tax liabilities at 72022412 531 HHY
31 December 2022 EERIEBE 8,849 143 8,992
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Notes to Financial Statements

20. Deferred Tax (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statements of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

B 7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

0. EIERI A (&

RENME HETREREEERAED
REBIRRR AL - REBEMBIRS
RZMEERBREBRITNT ¢

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised — MA4RE B IS AR L R FERR IR A Y
in the consolidated statement of HEEFE
financial position 112,941 100,501

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses of RMB56,000 (2022:
RMB110,000) and deductible temporary differences of
RMB42,000 (2022: RMB98,000) arising in Chinese Mainland,
which will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses of RMB22,682,000 (2022:
RMB21,365,000) and deductible temporary differences of
RMB457,000 (2022: RMB437,000) arising in other jurisdictions,
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

72023912 A31 8 » WEFN BB R E
EHFIEE B AR 56,0007 (20224 :
AR®110,0007T) LA Ko AT F0080 5 5 1 = 28
AR%42,0007T (20224 : AR%98,000
TU) RIELEHIEEE - ZERIEER—Z
FF A B DA R 8 R SR AR R o

MR2023%F12 A31H » WERNEMEE
R EENTIEEEARKE22,682,0007T
(20224 :+ AR#21,365,0007T) A AT 40
BE R RE AR EE457,0007T (20224F -
AR#437,00070) RIEERIBEE « %
EFXEURAREKEEEEB AN RRE
AT
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

. ‘€&
21.Inventories 21. 7

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Raw materials R 116,030 99,564

Work in progress TR 16,664 20,069

Finished goods LUK 378,063 398,480

Total “ast 510,757 518,113

22.Trade and Bills Receivables

22. B 5 B FHIE R B EIE

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARETIT

Trade receivables E 5 EYGRIE 329,453 400,942
Bills receivable U E 3,798 7,240
Impairment BE (12,005) (34,197)
Trade and bills receivables, net B S RBGRIE R W R F 5 321,246 373,985

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
payment in advance, except for certain major customers, where
is normally on credit. The credit period is generally due within
45 to 90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. Bills receivable are
non-interest-bearing and have a maturity period ranging from
1 to 180 days for the financial years ended 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2023.
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Notes to Financial Statements

22.Trade and Bills Receivables

(Continued)

The net value of the Group’s trade and bills receivables due
from the Group’s related parties is further detailed in note 35 to
the financial statements, which are repayable on credit terms
similar to those offered to the major customers of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the bills receivable
with right of recourse of the Group were RMB3,798,000
and RMB7,240,000, respectively, were paid to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to some
suppliers. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks
relating to such endorsed bills, and accordingly, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of the endorsed bills and the
associated trade payables settled. The expected credit losses
rate for bills receivable is assessed to be immaterial, and thus
the loss allowance is immaterial.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables and bills
receivable as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

22.

B 7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

BEZRUWHERERERE

&)

REEEWE BT 0B 5 R UYGRIE R &
WREBFENMBREMEISE—FF
- ARERNARETERFPRHEMRS
(= R RN EE

MR2028F k2022512 A31 8 » A&EH
IR TFTEETHESHAERERKE
En Bl A ARES3,798,000 Tk AR
7,240,0007T * BN E D HERHE
SEMNFIE - EERE  AEBERBAI
SEBEER(BEEZEESEZREH
FENER)  BEUHEEEISESZED
2HEAERCEEHEE S EMNFE -
B EENEREEEBREIHATE
A BAREERETTERK -

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T AREF T

Within 1 year 1FE R 309,517 342,581
Over 1 year 1 F 11,729 31,404
Total st 321,246 373,985
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

22.Trade and Bills Receivables
(Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

22.

BEZRUWHERERERE

&)

B RWFIENREBEEEZSNT

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

At beginning of year REF A 34,197 26,421
Impairment losses, net REBEEE (17,698) 13,133
Amount written off as uncollectible WEE R T AT E ) SRR (4,494) (5,357)
At end of year RER 12,005 34,197

The decrease in the loss allowance in 2023 was due to the
decreasing amount of long ageing trade receivables.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on ageing on invoice for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group writes off trade receivables when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulties
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs sooner,
also taking into account legal advice where appropriate.

208 | Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. £/ (b RN ER AT

2023 F W B IEBER L 2 AN REREREN
B 5 RGBT

RERSAHRBBEEELETRED
i UM EBRHEEER - BEXTIRIE
ARRUEEEANZERF 2 EARN DN
BRRFRKRETE - %t ERBREL R A
R -BEEHFERRHEAHRTSARBE
18 - AR RRREE RN E
BRASEER o

AEERBERBREFTRREENH
7R £ Ko R SR A 5 38 T8 B R U (el (il an 8 F
TEETRERCEARERF  UBREF
ERE)BMEE SRR - MeEEE
BEER (mEn) -



22.Trade and Bills Receivables

(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

B 7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

22.BE5 EINFENREKRERE

(#4&)

DEEHES TR T B
SEUHE N EAARER

R2023F12 A31H

Less than
1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years Over 3 years Total
155 R 182% 2%23% 3FL #st
Expected credit loss rate  BHIEEEER 1% 16% 66% 100% 4%
Gross carrying amount  BRE 8
(RMB’000) (AEETFT) 308,852 11,917 4,908 3,776 329,453
Expected credit losses ~ EHIEEEHE
(RMB’000) (AREF) 3,132 1,866 3,231 3,776 12,005
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
Less than
1 year 110 2 years 2 to 3 years Over 3 years Total
1ENR 1228 2835 IFME @it
Expected credit loss rate  BHIEEEHER 49 30% 100% 100% 9%
Gross carrying amount  BRE 85
(RMB’000) (AEETFT) 347,782 44,736 3,986 4,438 400,942
Expected credit losses ~ BHIEEER
(RMB’000) (ANREF7) 12,442 13,331 3,986 4,438 34,197
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

23.Prepayments, Other Receivables

and Other Assets

23. FEF X

RHEMEE

-

18~ Hfh BRI

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT
Deductible input VAT AT HURHE BRI (E 71,066 55,741
Corporate income tax recoverable Al Bl FFTIS B 2,437 7,784
Right-of-return assets WS EEE 558 436
Deposits and other receivables Ze N H A U FTE 66,251 23,875
Other financial assets included in T ATE FUE K H A E WK IE A
prepayments and other receivables HEMEemEE 21,176 13,016
Prepayments SR/ 129,041 75,060
Others Hith 44,121 26,833
Impairment allowance B RS (2,838) (1,885)
Current portion BNEREE 5 331,812 200,860
Rental deposits HEZe 10,213 8,606
Prepayments TERT IR 8,737 8,142
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 18,950 16,748
Total “ast 350,762 217,608

REEIR - AK B H A RS RIERR
RABREMNERRR  BAUHAEEDF
HEMmEEFENEREEERE12(EA
EMEEBRETLTEX -

As at the end of the reporting period, other receivables of
the Group are considered to be of low credit risk and thus
the Group has assessed that the ECL for other receivables is
immaterial under the 12-month expected credit loss method.
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24.Financial

Assets at

Through Profit or Loss

Notes to Financial Statements
I RS R 2R MY R T

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

Fair Value 24.%’&$E%"|‘AT§EH’9§E§
g5 =

-

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T AREF T

Wealth management products B E M 318,042 -
Current portion BNEAEE 7 216,812 -
Non-current portion JEENHAER > 101,230 -

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by licensed financial institutions. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest. The underlying investments
of the current portion financial assets were primarily short-term
treasury bonds and principal protected securities, which were
very liquid with a relatively short-term maturity and the expected
returns are based on actual performance. The underlying
investments of the non-current portion were fixed income
securities, which have maturity of 2 years and the expected
return are based on the actual performance.

The Group has redeemed the above current portion wealth
management products, amounting to a total of approximately
RMB200,545,000 subsequently in 2024.

LFHAFEHEERFESREBRITHE
MER FEAORSREYLIEAN
e RAE - M@ 08 ARAFER
ABENEREE - REENHIT DK
HERETEREHBEEBEMRAES &
mHIREE  Emn @R - ARHEER
RIBEREEME - JERIHM D AR
BRBETRaES  ERBRA2F - B
HIERIRBERFEAME

AEEFER R 2024 F fE 0] i 12 B &= & BD
BEn - At ARE200,545,0007T °
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

25.Cash and Cash Equivalents and

B5. B RATEBYURE

. =+
Pledged Deposits ERER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREF T
Cash and cash equivalents HekReZEW 697,689 1,147,708
Pledged deposits BEER = 11,500
Total K 697,689 1,159,208
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T ARETF T

Cash and cash equivalents and AT S ENERE S &

restricted cash denominated in BEEEBMURZRAIRE

- RMB — AR 677,001 330,739
- JPY - A7t 5,890 14,311
- USD — %7 2,795 3,050
- HK$ — B 12,003 811,108
Total @t 697,689 1,159,208

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in JPY, USD and HK$ amounted to
RMB5,890,000 (2022: RMB14,311,000), RMB2,795,000 (2022:
RMB3,050,000) and RMB12,003,000 (2022: RMB811,108,000),
respectively. The RMB is not freely convertible into other

currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign

Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,

and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the

Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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Notes to Financial Statements

25.Cash and Cash Equivalents and

Pledged Deposits (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

26. Trade Payables

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

25.

26.

B 7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

ReRPSZEMLRE
A1k ()

FRI|BITNRSERT HRITFERF EZ
BRI REREA S o 2 HEHFREFR
HNF—HEZEALE  REAEED
BRI B RME - IR EH 2 HERF
R R BRERA B - RAT A BRTF RO IE B
BRI B E B RIFHOIRTT ©

B ENRE

RBEARNEZERNRBERERAS
B ERER DTN

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®EF T AREF T

Within 1 year 15 R 517,731 423,400
Over 1 year 1A+ 882 750
Total FEE 518,613 424,150

The amount of the Group’s trade payables due to the Group’s
related parties is disclosed in note 35, which represents credit
terms similar to those offered by the Group’s related parties to
their major customers.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within 6 months.

AR B R A SR B AR 05 B 5 AN FRIR Y
SR T35 (B {5 A B B AN SR I BR B 07 1)
HXB2EFPREERE) HE -

B HRNFETFE - —RR6EA NS
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

FEETE R

=+,
27.0ther Payables, Accruals and Other 27. E{tfE{fFIE
" mgug N ==
Current Liabilities NEMREEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARETT AREFIT
Current BN A
Contract liabilities AHAaE 0] 38,824 41,416
VAT and other tax payables REH R H A fER IR 41,098 18,195
Staff payroll and welfare payables ERNETTERER 48,735 36,977
Accrued operating expenses JERHEZE X 104,707 73,198
Payables for purchase of property, BEME - BEL&EERS
plant and equipment RIE 5,259 13,582
Deposits bigcra (ii) 23,051 29,804
Listing expenses payable e EmAX - 18,787
Others HAh, 5,150 3,763
Total current portion BNEAES o 425t 266,824 235,722
Non-current JEENHER
Deferred government grants R ST IS AT 7 B 12,391 14,264
Total “aEt 279,215 249,986
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27.0ther Payables, Accruals and Other
Current Liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Notes to Financial Statements
I RS R 2R MY R T

27. E fth & {5 R IE
REMREE

31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: iy BHNEENFBET :
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Advance payments from customers &P FEN FIAE 25,678 27,016
Sales rebates 55 Bl 13,146 14,400
Total contract liabilities AHEERSE 38,824 41,416

The Group’s contract liabilities include advance payments
from customers and sales rebates. The decreases in
contract liabilities was mainly due to the decreases in
short-term advances received from customers in relation
to the revenue generated from sales to online and offline
distributors.

Deposits mainly represent deposits from customers at the
end of each year.

Except for the aforementioned deposits, other payables
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(i

AEENENEBERERPENNEA
RHERM - BHNAEERDHEER
B P YE ) B[R AR 2 357 K AR
TR EEENRAE B EH
TEURBRFOR D P

BREIBRENEFERNEFLPES -

B R E s - R ENRIBSEE
A RERARERER -
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B 75 i M ek
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

- 2 Y Al =+,
28.Interest-Bearing Bank and Other 28.3tESRITRHEMMERR
Borrowings
2023 2022
2023F 2022
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIRAIE (%) HE ARBTR  ERAE) g ARBTR
Current BE
Bank loans - secured ROER - BER 2.50-3.55 2024 100,008 2.10-5.20 2023 420,278
20245 2023%
Bank loans - unsecured BTEHN - BER - 2.55-3.65 2023 100,000
20234
Current portion of long term bank ~ REIRITE AL - 475539 2023 70,000
loans - secured #5 - BER 2023F
Total - current &5t - HH 100,008 590,278
Non-current FENE
Bank loans - secured BIEN - BER - 475 2024 60,089
20244
Total - non-current @i — 3£ - 60,089
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREF T
Analysed into: SHWR
Bank loans repayable: JEEBIRITER
Within one year or on demand 1F RN B RkE 100,008 590,278
In the second year RE2F - 60,089
RESFEESF
In the third to fifth years, inclusive (BEEEMTE) - -
Total FEE 100,008 650,367

216 | Shanghai Chicmax Cosmetic Co., Ltd. £ (b RN ER AT



Notes to Financial Statements

28.Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s bank loans amounting to

RMB40,000,000 were secured by mortgages over the Group’s investment
properties with net carrying values of approximately RMB8,065,000 with
interest rates of 3.40% (note 15).

RMB60,000,000 were guaranteed by the Group with interest rates of 2.5%-
3.55%.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s bank loans amounting to

(i)

(ii)

RMB219,752,000 were guaranteed by the Group, and secured by mortgages
over the Group’s buildings and right-of-use assets with net carrying values
of approximately RMB256,515,000 and RMB70,868,000, respectively, with
interest rates between 3.4% and 5.39%.

RMB80,000,000 were secured by mortgages over the Group’s investment
properties with net carrying values of approximately RMB9,286,000 with
interest rates of 3.45%-4.20% (note 15).

RMB250,500,000 were guaranteed by the Group with interest rates of 2.1%-
5.20%.

28

B 7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

ATEERIT R EMERR (&)

GEX

M2023F12A31 8 » AEERE FRITERWT

(i)

(i)

AR¥40,000,000 7T A A EBREFEHOAR
18,065,000 MR E W EIRIBIEER - FlX R
3.40% (Ki5E15) ©

AR#60,000,000 7T AEBHER - FIKNF
2.5%Z3.55% °

M2022612 A31 8 + AEERE FRITERWT

(i)

(il

AR#219,752,000 7t A S BER - W LAH A
LEREFED AN AARE256,515,0007T &
AR¥70,868,000 CHIIE FUAKE AREEEIRE
PRI - RN T3.4%%5.390% 2 °

AR#80,000,000C A A EBREFEHAR
#£9,286,000 7T #1#% & W IR B IER A - FIE N
F3.45% % 4.20% (FizE15) °

AR¥250,500,000 Tl AKBEER - MR F
2.1%%5.20% °
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31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

29. Share Capital 29. Ig 7K

Shares dn)
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRETE
397,957,900 ordinary shares of 397,957,900% (20224 :
RMB1.00 each (2022: 396,958,000) 396,958,000 %) FI AR ¥
1.00TCEY & i Ak 397,958 396,958
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RATRAEEHAMIT -
follows:
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
2EITRHMEE B
RMB’000
ARBET T
At 31 December 2022 and 2022412 A31 H 220234
1 January 2023 1A1H 396,958,000 396,958
Issuance of ordinary shares relating BTEERNAFREEGHEN
to initial public offering* il 999,900 1,000
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H 397,957,900 397,958
* On 13 January 2023, the Company partial exercised the over-allotment * 202391 A13H * AR RIHZEIRHAR25.20%
option in respect of an aggregate of 999,900 H Shares, at the Offer Price of THBEE - BOTE T AMAE £999,900KH
HK$25.20 per H Share. Upon the completion of partial exercise of the over- R BB R AL AR © PO EBREACARBERE S D 1T TR
allotment option, the registered share capital and total number of the shares % AARMFEMBRARBZEITROBES B A
issued of the Company were changed to RMB397,957,900 and 397,957,900 AR#397,957,9007T % 397,957,900 /% ©

shares, respectively.
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30. Share Incentive Schemes

Mr. Lyu Yixiong has implemented 5 share incentive schemes
(hereinafter referred to as “plan I” to “plan V”) through the
shareholding platform controlled by the controlling shareholder
of the Group, to encourage and reward people who contribute
to the operation of the Group. Eligible persons include directors
and other employees of the Group.

In March 2021, 3 employees (including directors) of the Group
entered into an agreement (plan V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong Under
this agreement, Mr. Lyu Yixiong granted these 3 employees
1,080,000 shares of the Company with no vesting period.

In March 2021, 43 employees of the Group entered into an
agreement (plan V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong. Under this agreement,
Mr. Lyu Yixiong granted these 43 employees 4,176,000 shares
of the Company with vesting periods dated from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2024.

In March 2021, 4 employees entered into an agreement (plan
V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong which is deemed as modification to the
terms and conditions of plan Ill.

In August 2021, 1 employee of the Group entered into an
agreement (plan V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong. Under this agreement,
Mr. Lyu Yixiong granted this employee 72,000 shares of the
Company with vesting periods dated from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2024.

In August 2021, 3 employees (including directors) of the Group
entered into an agreement (plan V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong. Under
this agreement, Mr. Lyu Yixiong granted these 3 employees
108,000 shares of the Company with vesting periods dated from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2024.

In July 2022, 4 employees of the Group entered into an
agreement (plan V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong. Under this agreement,
Mr. Lyu Yixiong granted this 4 employees 198,000 shares of
the Company with vesting periods dated from 1 July 2022 to 30
June 2026.

B 7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

30. B B st 3

98 e 50 A5 B AN 5 UL 1 R AR SRR 6 B
BT A E BB BRGEMEE (A TERE
TEHBIZETEBIV]) - ASE R AAE
EEEELEROAL - ABERALEE
REEEEREGES -

202163 A » "EESREE (BIEE
F)HEERELET LHE (GTEIV) - R
BZhE nBRBEEERTZIZEER
1,080,000 A& 27 & BA ) 2R 2 R AR AR ©

2021463 H  AEBE43BEEHaEE
SAERT B (FTEIV) - REZH® 2%
ERERTZASEIEE 4,176,000 A1
AL - FEHIA20219F1 A1HE2024
F12H318 -

R2021F 3R 4 ZREHBHRIERER L
Wz (GTEIV) - R AT ENHER RGN
CHIE

20215687 » AEB1ZEEMRARMS
EERT e (GTHEIV) - IRIEZHH® - 2518
EERTZERERE 72,000 AR B KRG -
SFEBHIA2021F1 A1 HZE2024F12 A31
H o

R202148AH » "EESKEER (BIEE
R)HEEFRHERET R (GHEIV) - 1R
BazthsE oBZBTERTZIEEES
108,000 AR RIS - 658 HR /2021 51
A1BZE2024F12A318 °

202267 A - AEBAGEEHSEMRL
ERT B (FHEIV) - RIEZBE A&
SR Fiz4% R 8 198,000 AN A AR
7 REHA2022F7 A1BE2026%6 8
308 °
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30.Share Incentive Schemes
(Continued)

In July 2022, 1 employee of the Group entered into an
agreement (plan V) with Mr. Lyu Yixiong. Under this agreement,
Mr. Lyu Yixiong granted this employee 108,000 shares of the
Company with vesting periods dated from 1 July 2022 to 31
December 2024.

Shares confer rights on the holders to dividends and to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The following share incentive is outstanding under the “plan I” to
“plan V” during the year:

30. R EBET & (&

2023

20234

Weighted
average

subscription

202267 H - REB1REERERMEL
ERT 1 (GTHEIV) - IRIEZH® - 288
TR T %% EB 108,000 A A FIMEG -
5B A2022F7 A1 HZE2024F 12 A31
H o

Bt B TR A AR RIS BCR K
RENER -

S

+

RER - [FHEI =T EIVI AT HARITE
M AT

2022
20224
Weighted
average
subscription

price RMB Number of price RMB Number of
per share shares per share shares
pil;:d hntE
FHRBE FEREE
BRAR®T ROBE BRARET Bt 8B
At 1 January W1A1H 1 12,477,600 1 14,475,600
Granted during RERE D
the year - - 1 306,000
Forfeited during RERR UL
the year 1 (288,000) 1 (2,304,000)
At 31 December W12 A31H 1 12,189,600 1 12,477,600

The fair values of the share incentive schemes granted
during the year was nil (2022: RMB6,902,000), of which the
Group recognised a share-based compensation expenses of
RMB4,975,000 (2022: RMB837,000) during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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31.Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents reserve arisen
from share incentive schemes. Details of the movements in the
share-based payment reserve are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

The increase in the Group’s share premium for the year was a
result of listing the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange as described in note 29 to the financial statement.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, each company in the PRC is required to allocate 10%
of the statutory after tax profits to the statutory reserve until the
cumulative total of the reserve reaches 50% of the company’s
registered capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC
authorities, the statutory reserve may be used to offset any
accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the
company. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend
distribution to shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the contribution
from the ultimate holding company and shareholders, business
combinations under the common control and the excess of the
consideration over the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests acquired. Details of the movements in capital reserve
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different
from the Group’s presentation currency.
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32.Notes to the Consolidated 32.
Statement of Cash Flows

N

GERTMEBRME

(a) Major non-cash transactions (@ EEHFRERH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions FRN - AEEEBASMEBEHEE
to right-of-use assets of RMB15,952,000 (2022: THERNERAEEENFEREAE
RMB13,548,000), and lease liabilities of RMB15,952,000 BARKE15,952,0007T (20224 = A
(2022:RMB13,548,000), respectively, in respect of lease K#13,548,0007t) F HEABEAA
arrangements for office premises and plant. [R#15,952,0007T (20224 : AR
13,548,0007T ) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBEENEELEH
activities
2023 20234
Interest-bearing
bank and other
borrowings Lease liabilities
FFESRITR
HA &K HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFT
At 1 January 2023 R2023%F1 A1 H 650,367 77,829
Changes from financing cash flows BERSREE (550,359) (28,215)
Interest expense BRI - 4,026
Interest paid classified as operating DEREEREREN
cash flows EAIF A - (4,026)
New leases MEE - 15,952
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H 100,008 65,566
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32.Notes to the Consolidated 32.%48BE&REFXME(EZ)
Statement of Cash Flows
(Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REZBEENEEEE (&)
activities (Continued)

2022 20224

Interest-bearing
bank and other

borrowings Lease liabilities

FTEIRIT R
HAb &R HERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
At 1 January 2022 202291 A1H 190,059 94,976
Changes from financing cash flows BMERSRELH 460,308 (26,747)
Interest expense FEMZ - 5,210

Interest paid classified as operating DEAKERSRENEHHF

cash flows B - (5,210)
New leases g - 13,548
Non-cash movement R E - (3,948)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 650,367 77,829
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20234124318

33.Pledge of Assets 33. EEK#H
Details of the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other REEUKREBEEEEROG SRITE
borrowings, which are secured by the assets of the Group, are TR EMEFE B H R IS KT 5E28 o

included in note 28 to the financial statements.

34. Commitments 34, FGh
The Group had the following contractual commitments at the RER - REBBUTNEREHE

end of the year:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEFT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRTABE KRB -
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB R 19,415 10,724
Capital contributions to an associate mEENREE 189,984 -
209,399 10,724
35. Related Party Transactions B. @I RS
(@) Name and relationship: (@ HE BBKEBEE:
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
i yap At BN £ B R B 1R
Mr. Lyu Yixiong (“E & ") The controlling shareholder
BEBELE AR
Shanghai Misu Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (“ F/EZEL @ AR D F") Associate
EERRARERAR /NG
Shanghai Ximei Commercial Co., Ltd. (* E/BEXEEFR QA" Associate
LBEEEERRAR [ dal/NC]
Weifang Hongmei Economic and Trade Co., Ltd. Associate
(AT REERR AR
I RSB BR AR kN
Shanghai Shangxin Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (“ E/& F#{biaRBR AR Joint venture
EEEFEARBRAR AEDE
Suzhou Xiongze Packaging Co., Ltd. (‘BN 2B EHFR A A" Entity controlled by close relatives
of Mr. Lyu Yixiong
HFMNEEZBRERA R EBBLENIRESNERE
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2023%F 12531 H
35.Related Party Transactions 35.BEIX5 (&)
(Continued)
(b) Related party transactions: (b) BHMAERS :
The Group had the following transactions with related REERAEF BB T T N5 A2
parties during the current year: 2
2023 2022
20234 20224

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M  AR®TRT ARETT

Associates: /NI

Sales of products HEEM 0] 6,712 8,426
A joint venture: ER=NI=ES

Sales of products HEEM 0] 10,190 -

Entities controlled by close relatives 5 &= 2 50 4 B 3T 15 HIl A9

of Mr. Lyu Yixiong: T5
Purchases of products BEEM (ii), (iif) 74,316 28,156
Notes: B 3E
i) The sales of products to the related parties were made according to 0} MBS HEEER N2 ETMERRE
the prices and terms offered by the related parties with reference to TR R B RIGRIED -

the market price.

(ii) The purchases of products from the related parties were made (ii) MBS EEERH2EMEIRE @
according to the prices and terms offered by the related parties with TR A B RIGERIEL -

reference to the market price.

(iii) This related party transaction constitutes continuing connected (iii) ZEAE T X 5B EMRAEFMAERT
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. ARERIFERERS -
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35.Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

5. @B IR (&)

(c) EERFEES MV REELER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Trade: g5
Associates: /NI
Trade receivables B 5 W GRIE 7,033 8,369
A joint venture: SR
Trade receivables 2 5 FEWGRIE 11,204 -
Entities controlled by close 2 E F ST A R T HI A
relatives of Mr. Lyu Yixiong: gE
Trade payables 2 5 HRIE 31,362 15,628
(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) TEEFEEEENESMNH N
of the Group
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Short term employee benefits HEEEER 7,997 4,549

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 9 to the financial statements.
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202341231 A
- - .A.| NI —\ E
36. Financial Instruments by Category 6. BERETHWEMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RWER  SEepMIANKRELT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost:  HEEGHK A Z A% Bl EZE -
Trade receivables SN RE 317,448 366,745
Financial assets included in ETATERRIA « HAbEYWGRIE K&
prepayments, other receivables and ~HEMEEMNSREE
other assets 84,589 35,006
Financial assets at fair value through 12 A FEFABZHSRHEE
profit or loss 318,042 -
Pledged deposits BHIRTFR - 11,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIBEEEY 697,689 1,147,708
Total #Et 1,417,768 1,560,959
Financial assets at fair value through &2 FEF AR M Z EHA 79
other comprehensive income: THEE
Debt investments: EHIKE -
Bills receivable JEW 5 3,798 7,240
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36.Financial Instruments by Category 36.%ZEHEOMEMT A

(Continued) (%)
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETF T AREFIT
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: &K A FREI LR E & -
Trade payables Z SN RE 518,613 424 150
Financial liabilities included in other st AE A EM B KL ETEHRN
payables and accruals TR BE 137,161 137,418
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERIT REMBE R
borrowings 100,008 650,367
Total “st 755,782 1,211,935
37.Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy 37. AFERELMIEAFE
of Financial Instruments J& &%
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial rEEeRmIA(REEEATESERE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that e TAERIN) MEREERAFERNT

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE NEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20225 20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTE AR%®Tn ARETE

Financial assets TRIEE
Financial assets at fair value &2 A F(EFT ABIRAY

through profit or loss SREE 318,042 - 318,042 -
Debt investments at fair BRAVEFAEMER

value through other IWAREBIRE

comprehensive income 3,798 7,240 3,798 7,240
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37.Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

Notes to Financial Statements

of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

ERTERE
(£—%)
RMB’000
ARBTR

B 75 S R P ot

31 December 2023

20231231 H
7. A FERETRMITAEAFE

B (&)

TEHAAEECHIANATEHEE

=

BATEFENEE

Fair value measurement using
ARAFEFENSE
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTEHE EBEAFIJHE
WAHE WABE
(B=H) (E=4) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Bills receivable

H2023%12 A31H
BAFERABEDN
EMEE

BAVEFARMEZE
WARMBEHRE
FE W&

318,042 - 318,042

3,798 - 3,798

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

ERTERE
(£—%)
RMB’000
ARBT R

Fair value measurement using
ARAFEFENSE
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTEHE EBEAFIJHE
WAHE WABE
(B=) (=) FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

As at 31 December 2022

Debt investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Bills receivable

H2022%12 A31H
BAFEFAREMEE
IWARERIEE

AE S

7,240 - 7,240
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37.Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy
of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of financial instruments:

7. A FERESRIAEAYE
B (&)

SRTEFABENEARGEEIZH AL
BEtaan T

Valuation technique Significant observable input

BESE BRAE R AR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Trading price method Recent observed price
BRATEGFABENE/MEE R GEIE i ENE R (B

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, bills receivable, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, current bank loans, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at the end of the
reporting period were assessed to be insignificant.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
corporate finance team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the board of directors. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the chief financial officer and also are discussed with the audit
committee.
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38.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, lease liabilities, and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to support the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing these risks
and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s major businesses are in Chinese Mainland and
the majority of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB. The
Group does not have material foreign currency risk during the
year.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

38.cRERETEEEREE

CRMEERBENATEEZEBRETNE
AR (RFBFRERIN PRIERH
TAMSBEARK -

FEBEMIESRIARERSRESE
BY HEABRHEBTRAMER -
ZESBTANTIEANR AL AEN
MEE - AEEASARMEREERS
- MEAER AT B
R SR 2 -

AEESRTAEENHEBARAINER
g EEERERDESAR  EFEE
B R e B IR S AR MO BOR - FE B
mF -

SN LB
AEBEBEBUAREANBRALH X
DUANRIELT - AEBABSEERA
EAANREEE - RFER - AEEYEE
AOMERR ©
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38.Financial Risk Management 38.EREAKEEBEREE

Objectives and Policies (Continued) (#&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRAFERFERMEER (&
(Continued)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial 25 e AemEENRKREE -
assets.
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12 A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs Total
TZ{EATEHE
FEFR 2 BRBEEEE @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

F-BR FRR KR L%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR ARETT AR%TR

Bills receivable e 3,798 - - = 3,798
Trade receivables* B S RE" - - - 329,453 329,453
Financial assets included in FFATERFUE - EtbEKEIE

prepayments, other receivables  REMEEN S REE
and other assets

- Normal** —EE™ 87,427 - - - 87,427
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY

— Not yet past due — WABH 697,689 - - = 697,689
Total st 788,914 - - 329,453 1,118,367
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38.Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

B.eRAREEEFERER

(75

RARERFRER (&

R2022%12A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs Total
TZEAES
FERE PHEREERR @5t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
—B&ER EME F=BR N7
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Bills receivable EREE 7,240 - - - 7,240
Trade receivables™ B HRUIE - - - 400,942 400,942
Financial assets included in STAERFIE - B ENEIE
prepayments, other receivables ~ REMEAEMNLHEE
and other assets
- Normal** - 36,891 - - - 36,891
Pledged deposits ERER
~ Not yet past due — MRS 11,500 - - - 11,500
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY
— Not yet past due — HABH 1,147,708 - - - 1,147,708
Total st 1,208,339 - - 400,942 1,604,281

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
22 to the financial statements.

e The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 26% (2022: 18%) and 69%
(2022: 80%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer and five largest customers,
respectively. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancement for the balance of trade receivable.

HREZREFEMS - AREREREBGHE
% BRBEEENERNB BRI E22H

=

FEABENTOE - At ERTRREMEEN SR
BENGEERRABNBHERAIES | R
BANBETLREENEERR B VFERUR
EAREEN - TR SREENEREZRRAA
[Arge] -

RMEBAR - BRAEE26% (20224 :
18%) K69% (20224 : 80%) K& 5 &I
FNIESHBEBAEENZEAES KA K
BPRIE  WAEEFE—TERENEE

FEBEFR - NEEBIWERE 5 EBKIBL
BRIE A A 1R Y S SR fh (5 B o

i
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38.Financial

Liquidity risk

Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a

recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity

of both its financial instruments and projected cash flows from

operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

3&%@@%%@5

ERER

mE

RBE SRR

AEERBEEUERDERFETA &
REBESERNEAR - HTAEEZEHES
BMTAIMBEMEEREXHNARRS

S=}
ILE °

ERANRBEANT  AEE2RAER
REMRODEBEROT

R2023F12 A31H

Within 1to
1 year 5 years Total
1FR 1E5%F HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR®BTR ARETR
Trade payables 80 ANESE 518,613 - 518,613
Financial liabilities included in other &t AE A0 BN B R EETE AR
payables and accruals SRAE 137,161 - 137,161
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERITRHAMIE
borrowings 100,675 - 100,675
Lease liabilities HEARE 33,637 36,867 70,504
Total st 790,086 36,867 826,953
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38.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2022

A7 s et
31 December 2023
20234 12 31 H

3. 2REMEEBFEREE

(#4&)

/=

REBESRERE (&)
R2022%F12 A31H

Within 1to
1 year 5 years Total
15K 1255 st

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETIL ARBTT ARBTT

Trade payables B SN RIE 424,150 - 424,150
Financial liabilities included in other — FF A AL E FRIB K ERTE A

payables and accruals SRAE 137,418 - 137,418
Interest-bearing bank and other ETERITRHAMIE

borrowings 600,465 62,149 662,614
Lease liabilities HEARE 30,585 52,997 83,582
Total st 1,192,618 115,146 1,307,764

Capital management ELER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No change was made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debt divided by the total assets. Total debt includes current
liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total assets include current
assets and non-current assets.

AEBECEENTIZANIREAEE
BRENFEKEREFRRBEA L EIURX
SHEBMERREEKAL -

AEBMEEBHEEAEELRBECEMRTY
SR BEEEENRBFGYE EELA
B BRRFUABEALEE  AEEH
BRARERGTHORE - MBREHFEERY
BATHAR o NE B Z A/ R 50 A
BELHBEMR - HE2023F12A318 &
2022F 12 A1 HIEFE - EATIEER -
sk g -

AEBRBEER G (BREBE AR
BE)EREL - REBEERDABNRIFE
MBAE - REECRERABEENIRD
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38.Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period are as

3. 2REMEEBFEREE

b

E2EHE (B)
WEMARNAERBELEMT :

follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Total debt* BE 165,574 728,196
Total equity A RE 2,029,227 1,706,645
Gearing ratio BEAMELE 8.20% 42.70%

The Group’s total debt were defined as total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities.

39. Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group
after 31 December 2023.
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40. 71 B) B AR R 3R

40. Statement of Financial Position of
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the AARRREBHROFHARRKER AT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB RE&E 13,667 14,384
Prepayments, other receivables and ~ JEfTRUE « E b fE UL FRIE |2
other assets Hi&EE 5,081 6,899
Right-of-use assets FREEE 29,207 22 764
Other intangible assets HEthEREE 14,730 17,105
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR MRE 572,702 527,016
Investment in a joint venture REETENEE 2,698 -
Investment in an associate REEE N R HIRE 39,200 -
Financial assets at fair value through &2 F(ExH AIBzE
profit or loss SREE 101,230 -
Deferred tax assets EEFRTBEE 18,498 29,505
Total non-current assets JEmBEERE 797,013 617,673
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 3,467 5,412
Trade and bills receivables SRR & RN R 721,745 723,003
Prepayments, other receivables and  JEfTRUIE « E b fE W 308 &
other assets HtEE 378,701 70,195
Financial assets at fair value through &2 2QF{ET AIBIEHY
profit or loss SREE 216,812 -
Pledged deposits =giilEE - 11,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIBEEEYD 219,983 953,258
Total current assets RBEERE 1,540,708 1,763,368
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40. Statement of Financial Position of
the Company (Continued)

40. N2 BB R (A&

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETF T ARETTT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S ENFHIE 221,496 33,080
Other payables and accruals H M5B M ERTE A 28,573 156,294
Interest-bearing bank and other FTRRITREME K
borrowings 40,008 350,615
Lease liabilities HEA®E 12,799 7,853
Tax payable FEf IR 30,560 16,996
Total current liabilities RENBELRRE 333,436 564,838
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,207,272 1,198,530
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABAS
LIABILITIES 2,004,285 1,816,203
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBER
Lease liabilities HESE 18,861 17,286
Total non-current liabilities JEmBAEARE 18,861 17,286
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,985,424 1,798,917
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 397,958 396,958
Reserves e 1,587,466 1,401,959
Total equity e 1,985,424 1,798,917
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40.Statement of Financial Position of 40.7K QAT ERNE (&
the Company (Continued)

Note: P3E -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARREBREWNT -
Share-
based Statutory
Share Share  payment Capital reserve  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve funds profits Total
WA
R
BE  RGEE  AREE  EARG LTREEE  RIAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®Tn ARETx
At 1 January 2022 M2022%1 /18 360,000 - 194,969 110,602 30,556 397,326 1,093,458
Dividend declared BERRE - - - - - (200,000) (200,000)
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZAWALE
the year - - - - - 96,506 96,506
Issuance of ordinary shares BIEERDRES
relating to initial public offering BRI ZBMK 36,958 809,450 - - - - 846,408
Share issue expenses RABTRY - (36,564) - - - - (36,564)
Equity-settled share-based IESEE R AENR
compensation bl - - (836) - - - (886)
Transfer from retained profits BREMHER - - - - 9,651 (9,651) -
At 31 December 2022 and 50002512 A31E R
1 January 2023 20231418 396,958 772,886 194,083 110,602 40,207 284,181 1,798,917
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZEWALE
the year - - - - - 340,230 340,230
Final 2022 dividend declared ERFI2022FRERE - - - = - (99,489) (99,489)
Interim 2023 dividend 2023 F R ER S = = - - - (79,592) (79,592)
Issuance of ordinary shares BTHENDREE
relating to initial public offering M@K 1,000 20,777 - - - = 21,777
Share issue expenses RABTRY - (1,394) - - - - (1,394)
Equity-settled share-based INEREERNAER
compensation igEzi| - - 4,975 - - = 4,975
Transfer from retained profits EREBFIEER - - - - 34,488 (34,488) -
At 31 December 2023 12023412 A31H 397,958 792,269 199,058 110,602 74,695 410,842 1,985,424
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41.Approval of the Financial Statements 41, #it /BB 3R K

FEMROTN2024F3 A21 B EESE it
AR AR T B -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 21 March 2024.
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